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FOREWORD

Any value which this study may have snould be creuit-
eu L0 the many people who assisted me. I am inuedted Lo
the staffs of the University Library anu the State Histor-
ical Library. Prof. Gerald Senultz of Iperia, ko., kr.
Everett King of Vieana, ana Mr. John Terrill of Belle
assisted me particularly.

Dr. Robert Lee Ramsay, whose wisaom and learning
have been & continual source of amazement and inspiration
to me during the past four summers, has helped in the
arrangement of the form and contributed meny pointed and
practical suggestions.

To her, without whose confidence and gentle nagging
this study would never have been completed, I am also

indebted.



INTRODUCTICN

The study of place-numes is a most absorbing one.
Not only 40 tne names themselves provide plenty of inter-
ést, but the people intervieweu have much Two tell whieh is
irrelevant but extremely entertaining. H.L. Mencken, in
his chapter on place-names in The Americen language, says
of American plece-names, "There are Spanish, French and
Indian names as melodious ana charming a&s running water;
there are nemes out of the histories and mythologies of
all the great reces of man; there are naumes grotesque and
names almost anblima."l Stevenson, in his "Across the
Plains", says of the euphony of American placo-nam‘a,
".ee if the new Homer shall arise from the western conti-
nent, his verse will be enriched, n1§ pages sing spontan-
eously, with the numes of stutes und cities that would
strike the fauney in a business aircnlar“.a

Thera are, however, msny place-names which are
neither pleasing nor uppropriate. lLouis N, Feipel ex-
aggerutes tnis aspect anc overlooks the beuutirul nsmes
which many American places Dear when he suys,"The map of
the United States slone is thickly dottea with an incon-

gruous medley of names, for the most part utterly in-

appropriate and fulfllling very insufficiently the chief

l. P, dzé
&. The Amateur Emigrant, 1925 Ed., p. 101
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purposes which names are intenaeu 40 tulril".3

Place-numes reveal much concerning the nistory,
customs, and ideals o0l the people wno gave them, but they
seem Lo be the particulser concern of the stuaent of woras,
although they have only recently been added to his fiela.
The work began in Europe. Consiaerable progress has been
made in the British Isles by the English Plece-Nume
Society. Norway, Sweden, Denmark, France, Holland, and
Germany have made marked progress, The work in the
United States has just begun., The field here is the most
fertile one in the world because of the very fact that
America is the great melting-pot for the world. French
and German are side-by-side. Almost any county in the
State of Missouri contains names from several nationalities;
the names in some counties represent many nationalities.

One of the first American place-name studies was Henry

Gannett's "The Origin gﬁ’Certain Place~-Names in the United

States”, first published in 190Z by the Unitea States
Geological Survey of the Department of the Interior. Tne
first Missouri place-nsme stuay of importance wus uone vy
Daviu Eaton, who publishea his results in a series of
articles during 1916, 1917, and 1918 in vhe Historical
Review. Later, these articles were publishea in book form

under the title, How Missouri Counties, Towns, and Stireams

$. "American Plmce-Nemes", American Speech, I(1925),p.79.
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Were Numed. The work in Missouri wes further stimulated
by an srticle by Allen Walker Read in the Missouri Histor-
ical Review for Jenuary 1, 1928, entitled "Plunse for the
Study of Missouri Place-~Nemes™. Dr., Robert L. Ramsay of
the University of Missouri, ¥r. Read, and Miss Esther G.
lLeech published "The Study of Missouri Place~Names" in
1935 which reported the progress made up to that time by
students under Dr. Remsay's supervision snd which also
contained a practically complete bibliography. Eight
master's theses have been completed covering sixty-four
counties. Three more master's theses, including this
study, are being eompleted this summer, dbringing the total
number of counties completea up to eighty-two.

The six eounties covered in this study, usage,
Gasconade, Miller, liaries, FPhelps, and Pulaski, lie south
of the Missouri River and east of Jefferson City. They are
dreined =nd joined by the great Osage River and its tribu-
tarid® end the beautiful Gasconade River and its chief
trivutary, the Big Piney. For scenic beauty I have seen
nothing to compare with these foothills of the Ozarky,
especially in Phelps and Pulaski Counties. All of these
counties are rocky and hilly, with fertile land to be
found usually in the river valleys, “oreek bottoms", and
& few small prairies. Gasconade County, the oldest of
this group, was formed in 1820 while Missouri was still a

territory. It is a long, narrow eounty, though at one
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time it was known us the "State of Gasconade” bDecause it
included nearly alil of the fterritory southwest of St.
Louis.

In compiling this study, I began at the library of
the State Historical Society and included all of the
names to be found on maps, atlases, postal guides,
gazetteers, and county histories. After I had collected
all of the numes found in the library, together with as
many of their solutions as possible, I went into the six
counties and interviewed old residents, those interested
in the county history, and other well-informed people,
£i1ling in the gups and verifying the library material.
The numes of all are listed in the bibliography.

I have attempted to exclude all irrelevant material,
although the temptation to ineclude some of the "tall tules"
had to ve resisted. There has been no surmising except
where indicated and whers there was good founaation for
the surmise. If the explsnation of & name is not reauson-
ably certein, I heve indicated thes fact by placing an
asterisk before the name. If no ressonable explunation
wus found, I have inaicated the fact by & double asterisk.

In the second chapter, the names are grouped as
porrowed, nistorical, personal, environmental, and sub-
Jective. Various subdivisions make the analysis clearer.

Chapter Thnree ghows the specisl features of the names;
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these include thelr composition, linguistic features,
pon-English numes, changes in names, auna {olkwuys and
folklore.
A dietionury of dialect words end imericenisms will
be found in the Appendix. At the end is given & complete
bibliogrephy.



CHAPTER ONBE
DICTIONARY OF PLACE~-NAMES

Included in this chapter are all the names studied,
and, with the exception of a few names, all forms of the
name. Practically =11 named places of the counties
have been studied. Churches and schools which take
their names from a town or postoffice still in existence
have not been considered as distinctive ones. Execluded
for the same reason are such general names as Iberia
rcademy and Rolla School of Mines.

Under each name has been entered its exact loeation,
its pronuncistion, where in any respect doubtful or
significant, given in the stendard alphabet of the
International Fhonetie issociation, the earliest known
dates and the relevant facts about the origin or
discovery of the place and its name, and a complete
list of the authorities used and persons consulted.

One asterisk marks unsolved names which were
probably mistakes of a mapmaker or historian, or were
arbitrarily assigned; two asterisks mark names which

»re unsolved for lack of information.
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Adeams School (Phelps)
In Meramee T. A family name. (¥.7. Melone)

Adkins School (Maries)
In n.e. Jefferson 7. A family name. (A.L. Joyce)

Adolph (Osage) edolf
A discontinued p.o. in n.e. part of e¢o. near Baliley's
Creek. Namea for Adolph "ittenbach who owned much of
the land there. (P.G. 1904; Map 1904; E.M. Zevely)

Alder Springs Church of Christ (¥iller)
In Bichwoods T, near e. ¢o. line. In early days azlder
bushes grew arouna the spring there. Org. about 1lB64.
(¥rs. Josie Atwell)

Alder Springs School (killer)
In Hichwoous T. near e. ¢o. line. Named for Alder
Springs Chureh (g.v.). (Mrs. Josie Atwell)

Ve
Alhambra Crotto (Phelps) 2|hzembre
A recreation park at Newburg for the use of Jasons in S5t.
louis. Namea for & lurge chapter of the Masonic Loage in
5t. lLouis. (W.¥F. Duncen)

Allen School (Miller)
A aiscontinued school near Ulman. A family nume.
(E.¥. Durham)

Anderson School (Puluski)
In Cullen T. Org. in 190U, HNemed for “.S. Ainderson, who
donated the lana. (G.M. Heed)

Antioch School {Phelps)
In s.e. Spring Creek T. Also known as Roseberry School
for the owner of the land., WYamed for Antioch, Syris,
mentioned in Aets 13:1. This is a favorite name for
churches, used here because church services were often
held in the building. (K.T. Preeman; Henry Fsmond)

-Argyle (COsage) aY‘Q“I/
A p.o. in s.w. Yashington T. s0 named through the influ-
ence of John Connor, an Irish farmer in the neighborhood,
for the Duke of Argvle. Argyle is a county in Scotland
whiech extends in the direction of n.e. Irelund. Also
known ss Campbell's Cwitch for John Cempbell, sn engineer.
(P.G. 1910f; John Terrill)

Argyle lake (Osage)
located between Argyle, tor which it is namea, sand
Koeltztown. It is slso kxnown as Koeltatown lake.
{MeCanse, 183 John Terrill)
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Arlington (Phslgf)
In Arlington T. The place was lala out by 7.C.

Harrison and nemed for his old home, Arllangton, Va.
Taylor says the name is "a corruption of Arlie, wife
of the first storekeeper”. The two explenations do
not necessarily conflicet, for the lady's name may
have suggested the choice of the Virginias name; but
it is more likely that this similarity wes accidental
and merely came to notice later. (P.G. 1876f; R.M.;
Hist. ILsclede, 675; Eeton, 341; ¥.F¥. Duncan)

Arlington Township (Phelps)
In the w, part of the co. Formed in 1857 and named
for Arlington (g.v.), which was then the prinmcipal
town in its borders. (W.F. Duncan)

Ash Cave (Pulaski)
In e. Union T. on the Casconade R. JlMeny layvers of
asheg from Indian fires have been excavated in this
cave*by archseoclogiste. (J.T. Andres)

Ash Creek (Casconade)
See Frene Cresk

Asher Hollow School (Phelps)
In e. Meramec T, Named tor the family who lived near
and for its location in & sort of hollow. (M.¥. Malone)

Atlantic and Paeific K.R. (Phelps, Pulaski)
See 2t. [ouls sna San Franciseo H.ER.

Atwell (Miller)
A discontinued p.o. in s.e. Richwoods T. named for John
T. Atwell, land-owner. (P.G. 1895-1910; Schultz, 16;
¥rs. Josie Atwell)

Atwell School (Miller)
¢ mi. s.e. of Iberia. Named for the Atwell family.
(5,¥. Durhem and ¥Mrs. Josie Atwell)

Auc (Osage) ad :
A p.0. in s. Benton T. Named for Joseph Aud who owned
the land. (P.0. 1990f; Maps 1904f; E. M., Zevely;
J.R. Garstang) ™

Aurora Cave (¥iller)
See 3tark Cave

+Aurora Springs (Miller)
A discontinued p.o. in Franklin T. near EKldon. The
town was lald out in 1880 by Abram Fulkerson. It
immedistely began to "boom™ and was the largest town in
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the co. during the 80's and 90's. The Jefferson City
Pooglat Tribune, Aug. 10, 1881, said it had twelve hun-

people ana that "Every man who goes there or passes
through buys a lot on speculation”. Mineral springs were
responsible for its growtn. Doubtless an ideal name from
the Goddess of Dawn in Classical mythology. (D.G. 1886~
1910; Hist. Cole etec., 56¥; Sehultz, 81)

Aurora Springs Braneh (Miller)
A tributery of lLittle Gravois Creek near Aurora Springs,
for which it is mamed. (John Stark)

Austriaz (Phelps)
In e. ¥erameec T. Nothing could be learned ¢f this place,
It was probably named for the country, like Mexico.(R.M.)

**Avory (Maries) evyi
In 8. Johmnson T. An Avory family is known to have lived
in Johnson T., but the location of the town is unknown
and the origin of the name uncertain. (Map 1887;
Everett King)

*Avory (Phelps)
Appears on the line between Folla T. and ¥iller T. in
Campbell’'s Atlas. Nothing could be learned of this place.

Bebbtown (Osage)
A discontinued p.o. in e¢. Jackson T. Named for a Mr.Babbdb
who lived there. (FP.G. 1886-1904; Maps 1904f; John
Terrill)

«Bagnell (Killer)
A town in s.e. Franklin T. on the Osage R. The town was
started in 1882 when & branch line ot the ¥o. Pac. R.R,
was built to this point from Jefferson City. Named for
william Bagnell, the contractor who built the branch
line of the Mo. Pac. R.R. of which Begnell is the
terminal. (P.G. 1886f; Schultz, 80; E.P, Weeks)

~Bagnell Dam (Miller)
BSee (Osage Dam

Bailey (Pulaski)
A Giscontinued p.o. in Roubidoux T. It was first known
a8 Dundas p.o. in 1876, It is not xnown why. Sometime
during the following ten years the name was changea (o
gailey fo§ the postmaster, A.F., Balley. (P.C. 1876-1910;
<M. Reed

Bailey's Branch (Miller)
Rises in Richwoods T. and empties into Barren Fork. Named
for R.B. Bailey, an early settler, who came from
Tennessee. (alvin Bailey; Gecl. Miller, 16, 196)



«10-

Bailey (Holiness) Church (Yaries)
In w. Johnson T. Named for Dan Bailey, who built the
ehurch. (Xverett Xing)

Baileys Creek (Osage, Casconade)
A trioutary of the Missouri R, Rises in Usage Co. and
empties into the Miss-url . at Morrisomn in Cesconude Co.
Named for an early setiler. (J.R. Carstang)

bBailey's Creek (0Osage, Gasconsade)
A trivutary of the Missouri K. Nsmed for the fumily who
entereu tne lund om it. (G.H. Caughell)

baileys Creex (Osage)
A diseontinued p.o. in Benton T. Nemed for the creek
wnich it is near (y.v.). Misspellea Builies on map in
Osage Dir. 3Spelt %&T&y'ﬁ in P.C., 1B23. (P.C. 1850-1904;
¥eps 1660-1915; J.R, Qurstung)

Baldriage (Pulaski)
A Pe0. in Piney T. est. 1886 or earlier and discontinued
in 1vol. Nemed for the family who owned the lsnd.
(P.G. 1886-19Ul; Robert Page)

Baldridge Creek (Pulaski)
A small tributary of the Big Piney P. in Piney 7. Named
for the Baldridge family. Cf. Baldridge. (Robert Page)

Barbarick Sehool (Gasconsade)
In 8. Third Creek T. Named for Joseph Barbarick on whose
farm it 1s loeasted. (J.C. Price)

Barnett (Waries)
See Barneti's Station

Barnett Baptist Chureh (¥iller)
In Glaze T. on Bear Creek. DNamed for Geo. Barnett, an
eurly lundowner. (J. Burton)

Burnett School (¥iller)
In Glaze T. on Bear Creek. Named for Ceo. Barnett, an
early lundowner. (J. purton)

Barnett's Station (Maries)
An absnaoned village in n. bDoome 1. Named for Ur.
Harrison Barnett, who was a physician ithere in the eruly
OU's, Shown as Burnett in Campbell's Gaz., v48, anu as
Barrett's Stution on maps 1665, l8o7. (Lverett Kiung)

Burren Fork (Miller) bevam , barn
A tributury of Brushy Fork Creek in w. kichwoous T.
Probably 80 culled becuuse there is very little timber
along the oreek, mostly serub ocak. (leps 1l87of;
Jas, W, Dinwiddie)
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Barrett's Station (Maries)
“ee Barnett's “tation

Bartlett's ¥ill (Pulaski)
See Bartlett Springs

Bartlett Springs(Pulaski)
4 discontinued p.o. in Cullen T. A family name. There
are three large springs there. Aleoc known ms Bates Mill
and Bartlett's ¥ill for former owners of the old mill
there. (P.G. 1918; Hist. laclede, 128; G.M. Reed)

"Barton School (¥iller)
o mi. s. of Brumley. Named for an early settler, who
donated the land. (Mrs. Spearman)

Bartonville (Casconade)
Zee Bartonsville

**partonsville (Gasconade)
The ¢o. seat before Osage and Maries cos.  were formed.
The co. seal was moved here in 1820 when Gesconade Clty,
the first co. seat, wus floodeda. In 1828 Bartonsville
was flooded, and the ¢o. seat was moved to lt. Sterling.
Spelled Bartonville in Bist. Franklin ete. It was locat-
ed on the Casconade K. in wnut is now Osage Co. The
origin of the neme coula not de determined. (Wetmore,

!2222!9_-. 1857; &st, Er!gsagu ete., 68, 830)

Bat Cave (Miller)
2 mi. . of Bagnell. Naemed for the bats which, at one
time inhabited the cave. (McCanse, 20; G. Schultz)

Bat Cave (Miller)
Another Bet Cave in Jim Henry T. near Hoecker. Named for
the bets which, at one time, inhabited it. ILarge cuanti-
ties of gueno were mined from this cave about 20 years
ago and marketed. (D. Graham, G. Schultsz)

Bates ¥Will (Puleski)
See Bartlett's ¥ill

Bates School {Pulaski)
In . Tavern T. HNamed for James Bates, who owned the
lsnd., (Thomes J. Cain)

Baumhoer School (Miller) P&™ hawr
Near St. Blizabeth. Named for Herman Baumhoer who owned
the land. Also known as the Red School because it used
to be kept painted red. (Johm Iuetkemeyer)

Baur (Casconude) h oo wy
See Tea
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Bax Creek (Miller)
A tributury of the Osage K. It heeds near St. Zlizabeth.
A family neme. (John luetkemeyer)

* Bay (Casconade)
A pe0o. in ¢. Boulware T. The origin of the name could
not be determined. (P.3. 1867f; Maps 1873f)

Bear Cave (Cmsconade)
On Dry Fork. ZXnown to the early hunters as the resort
of bears, and s0 pumed by them., (Hist. Franklin ete.,
619; Campbell, £09; Conrsd, IIXI, 5)

Beur Creek (Miller)
Heads in Gleze T. and emptles into the Osaege 3. There
were many bears in this section in early days.
{John Jones)

Bear Creek (Osage)
See loose Creek

Bear Ridge (Pulaskl)
A ridge on the e. side of the Gasconade R. in Tavern T.
Named for the animal which was once common nhere.
(tobert Fage)

Bear Ridge 3chool (Pulaski)
In 8. Tavern T. Nameda for Bear Riage (g.v.) on whieh it
is locamted. (Hobert Page)

Bear 3School (Miller)
Smi. . of Tuscumbiua. HNamed for Simeon Bear, who owned
the land the school was built on. (L.A. Barton)

Beaver (Gusconude)
See Pem

Beaver (Phelps)
A station on the Frisco “.l. in Folle T. MNemed for
Beaver Creek (q.v.) near which it is located. Also
known us Beever Vslley. (Campbell's Gaz., 303
Frank Croves)

Beuver Eranch R.R. (Phelps)
An sbandoned branch of the Frisco R.RE. running 4 mi from
Beaver to Besver Creek Mine. Named for Beaver (q.v.)
which is at the junction of Beaver Branech kK.E., and Frisco
F.R. (Campbell's Gaz., 435; Frank Croves)

Beaver Creek (Phelps)
Fises in Cold Spring T., crosses s.w. cor. of Folls T.,
and empties into lLittle Piney Creek. Named for the
animal. Early settlers found muny beaver dems tnrown
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across this ereek. (Taylor; Frank Groves)

Beaver Creek WMine (Phelps)
An iron mine in s. Rolla T. near Beaver Creek (g.v.)
tor whieh it is nemea. (Prank CGroves)

Beaver Pond (Gasconade)
Its margin is decorated with small islands supposed to
have been the work of beavers. Iocated on Iry Fork.
(#ist. Franklin ete., 619; Campbell, 209)

Beaver Union Chureh (Phelps)
Tn s. Rolla T. on Beaver Creek (q.v.) for which it is
named. Jt is c2)lY¥ed a union church because it is used
by several denominations. (Frank Croves)

Beaver Valley (Phelps)
See Beaver

Beckman's Cave (Miller)
In Jim Henry T. Named for a Nr. Beckman, who owned the
land. (Geol. Miller, 1lz)

Bee Creek (Pulaski)
A tributary of the (asconade K. in s.e. Union T. 5o
named because of bee trees in the vicinity.
(Campbell's; G.M. Reed)

Besmont Methodist Chureh (Sasconace)
In e. FBoeuf T. Namea for the village of peemont which
is meross the county line in Franklin County.
(H.H. Lengeberg)

Bell Bluff (Phelps)
A blurf on the Gasconade H. in n.w, Miller 7. Namea for
a Mr. Bell who enterea the lana. (Thomas A, Young)

Bell Bluff Cave (Thelps)
A cave in Bell Bluff (g.v.) for which it is named.
(Thomas A, Young)

+*Belle (Maries) .
A town in n., Jefferson T, J.S. Ridenhour, the first
postrmaster, who petitioned for the p.o., submitted the
nemesd, Belle, Boy, and Bey, specifying & preference for
Belle. It is not known why. (P.C. 1893f; Maps 1904f;
R.¥, Ridenhour)

Bellefonte (Pulaski)
A discontinued p.o. in Liderty T. It is said to have
been named for the place in Tenn. from which the early
settlers came. (P.G. 1876-1922; O.¥, Reed)
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Bell sSchool (Maries)
In Dry Creek T. A fumily name. (G.W. Cordsmeyer)

Bell's Creek (Pulaski)
A tributary of the Gasconade R. in Tavern T. A femily
nane. (Gouo B“d)

Bell's Creek Christian Church (Pulaski)
In Tavern T. on Bell's Creek (g.v.) for which it is
obviously named. (Hist. Laclece, 164)

**Rem (Gasconade) bem
A discontinued p.o. in ¢. Brush Creek T. The origin of
the name could not be determined. Formerly known as
Beaver becasuse there were so meny beavers in Dry Tork
Creek bottom. The neme was changed when the p.o. was
est. becsmuse there was another Beaver in Mo.
(P.C. 1876-1932; kamps 1873f; August Studenbroker)

Bend (Maries)
A diseontinued p.o. in Jefferson T. Named for Sinful
Bend (g.v.). (P.G. 1901-1915; Laps 1904f; Lverett King)

Bend School (Osage)
In Crawford T. 8o named because of its location in the
bend of the Casconade R, Also known as Horseshoe Bend
School for the same reason. Also known as Heckman
School for the femily on whose land it is located.
(John Peters; H.¥. Waldecker)

Ben ¥ore School (Phelps)
In w. Cold Spring T. Named for Ben Fore, landowner.
(Frank Groves)

Benson's Island (Osage)
In Missouri R. between St. Aubert anu Chamois. Named
for the man who eatered it. (Map 191l5; John Peters)

Benton Township (Osage)
The n.e. township, nameda for Thos. H. Benton, U.G.
Senator from Missouri for 50 years (bl772; dlBd8).
Org. 1841, (John Peters; Hist. Cole etc., 646; Hist.
Chariton, 46-48)

Bentown (Miller)
See Keethtown

,
Berean Baptist Church (Pulaski) bD¢7i®"
In e, Iiberty T. Org. 1866. Prodably named for the
chureh in Beroea, or Berea, in MYacedomia, which is
highly commended inm Acts xvii 10. (Hist. laclede,
158, 159)
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Berry School (Miller)

5 mi, e. of Iberia. A femily name. (E.M. Durham;
G.A. Berry)

Bert (Maries)
See Honseville

Bethel Baptist Chureh {Casconade)
In Third Creek T. Bethel means"house of Cod" (Judges
xxi. 2). Also known as Third Creek Baptist Churc -
cause of its location near the head of Third Creek.
{(J.C. Price)

Bethlehem Baptist Church (Pulaski)
In lLiverty T. Named for the birthplace of Jesus (Mat.
1. 1), t?e name meaning "house of bread". (Robert Page;
G.M. Reed

Beulan (Phelps)
A pP.0O. in 8. Spring Creek T. Named for a duughter of one
of the first postmasters. (P.G. 1887f; Taylor)

Big Berger Creek (Gasconade) badse
Rises in Boeuf T. and empties into the Mo. R. FPike calls
it Shepherd Hiver, and Lewis ana Clark, ed. 1895, p9,
Shepherd cr. Coues's note, 565, says, "1 am told by R.J.
Holcombe that the word is not the common ¥. noun berger,
a shepherd, but a personal nsme, probably of the old Ger.
pioneer, Caspar Burger, s founder of the colony there; if
80, it should not have been translated into English. The
word is mangled into "Boeger" on the besutiful chart of
the Mo. R. Comm."™ Also spelled Burger by Coues, J3095.
Berger, in French, means shepherd. The soft pronuncia-
tion of the g would indicate that the word is French.
(Littre)
Big Lick Hollow (Phelps) :
In Pillon T. near head of Bourbeuse K. An artificial
%ick whor? elk pawed a hollow about an acre in area.
N.B. Cox

Big Maries Creek (Maries, Osage)
See Maries River

Big Piney (Pulaski)
A p.o. in Piney T. near the Big Finey R. (g.v.) for which
it is obviously numed. (P.G. 1886f)

Big Piney Baptist Church (Phelps)
In Spring Creek T. mear Big Piney K. for which it is
obviously named. Org. about 18ed. (Hist. laclede, 681)

Big Piney Creek (Phelps)
See Big Piney River



-] 6=

+Big Piney River (Phelps, Pulaski)
Rises in Texas Co. and empties into the Gasconade R. in
Pulaski Co. One bend about a mile long lies in Epring
Creek T., Phelps Co. Also known as Eig Piney Creek,
Piney River, Piney Creek, and Piney Fork. It is called
Big to distinguish it from Little Piney Cr. which is
distinctly smaller. Named for the pine forests along
its upper course. (Taylor; G.M. Reed)

Big Piney River (Pulaski, Phelps)
See Phelps County

Big Prairie (Phelps)
See St. James

Big Richwoods (Miller)
See Iberia

Big Spring (Pulaski)
At ¥aynesville. The nume is descriptive. (G.M. Reed)

Big Tavern Creek (Niller)
A large tributary of the Osage K. originally known as
Caverne Creek. It was 80 named by some early Frenchmen
for the large cave at the mouth of the ereek. JSochultz
says it 1s marked "R. a la Caverne” on a French map
dated 1802 in the Library of Congress. It is sometimes
known as Tevern Creek. Apparently Tevern is & popular
etymology for tne French "Caverne". Two other Tavern
Creeks were foumd, each with a cave at its mouth. Both
are tributeries of the Missouri R., one in Callaway Co.
and the other in St. Charles Co. In euch case the cave
at the mouth of the c¢reek was known in early days es
The Tavern because travelers on the river often spent
the night in them in bad weather. In both cases the
stream received its neme from the cave. The one in
Callaway Co. was known as Big Tavern Creek also.
Practically all the early travelers on the Missouri R.
refer to one or the other of these "Taverns". (Flegg,
Pike, Brandbury, Maximilian, Floyd, lewis esnd Clark,
ete.) Coues, in a footnote in his edition of Pike's
Journal, refers to a cave or "tavern” where the early
Osage boatmen used to put up (p. I¥8). Another version
is that the best hunting in the early days was along
this creek. There was always plenty of game. The
hunters called it Tavern Creek because food and good
water were as easy to get es in & tavern. (Schultsz, 11;
Conrad, VI, 157; Thwaites EWT, XXVI, 76, 72, V 41§ iXII,
259, VI, 45; Thwaites L & C, VII, o, VI, Pt. I, 2%, 5¢;
Coues's Pike, 368, 378, 565; Ceol. Mo., 195; Wetmore,
£58; L.A. n)
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Black Cave (Phelps) ‘
A large cave in e. Spring Creek T. Named for Israel
Black, owner. (J.B. Clark)

Bleckmer (Miller) bleemd
A discontinued p.o. in Glaze T. Eaton (194) says it is
@ femily name. (P.G., 1892-1910; Maps 1904, 1924)

Bland (Gasconade)
A town in w, Clay T. Named for Richarda P. Bland, who
was for many years a member of Congress for Mo. from the
district of which Osage Co. formed a& part. (1875-1878,
1883-1894, 1897-1899) (Eaton, 169; Hist. Franklin ete.,
685; P.G. 1886-1935; Osage Dir., 32)

**Bleschke Island (Gasconade)
Nothing could be learned of this place. Possibly it wes
one of the many islands in the Missouri R. which appear
and disappear frequently. (Map 1913)

Bliss (Miller)
A discontinued p.o. in e¢. Frnnklin Tep, 16 mi. w., of
Tuscumbia. A family name. (P.C. 1870; Schultz, 110;
Map 1873; Campbell, 568; G. Schultz)

Bloodland (Pulaski)
A p.0. in w., Piney T. Named for a ¥r. Blood who owned
the land. (P.G. 1899f; Robert Page; G.¥. Lane)

Blood School (Pulaski)
In w. Piney T. Now abandoned. Named for a Mr. Blood
who donated the lamd. (G.W. Lane)

Blood Spring (Pulaski)
In w. Pin T. Nemed for a Ni. Blood who owneda it.
(G.W. Lane

Bloody Island (Osage)
In the Osage R. near Folk. So named because two fisher-
men got in an argument on this island and killed each
other. (Map 1915; Henry Scheppers)

, / RS '

Bloomgarden (Maries) blumigordn ,
On the Gasconade R. in ¢. of ¢co, 8aid to have been
named by Charles James for his fine gerden. Mr. James,
a German, doubtless called it "Blumengarten", i.e.
flower garden, which has been anglicized to Bloongardcn.
(Meps 1866, 1867; John Terrill)

Blooming Rose (Fhelps)
A p.o. in s. Spring Creek T. Named for the profusion of
wild roses there. (P.G. 1876f; Taylor)
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** Bloomington (Maries)
See lois

Blue Spring Baptist Church (Miller)
¢. Franklin T. org. 1844. Also known as Blue Springs
Chureh. Named for and located on Blue Spring Creek
(gev.). (Campbell, 568; Sehultz, 85; J.H. Vernon)

Blue Spring Creek (Miller)
hises in Saline T. una empties into Little Gravois Creek.
Hamed for a tributary spring which empties bluish water
into it. (J.H. Vernon)

Blue Springs Baptist Chureh (Miller)
See Blue Spring Baptist Church

**Blythe's Creek (Miller)
A tributary of the 8. loreau which rises in Saline T.
Also known as Elythe's Fork. The origin of the name
:oul? not be determined. (Geol. Miller, 18; Map 1874,
904

**Blythe's Fork (Miller)
See Blythe's Creek

Blyze (Miller)
A discontinued p.o. in n.e. Richwoods T. Family name.
(P.G. 1901-1904; Cramm's Atlas; John Ferguson)

Boatwright Cave (Pulaski)
In 8. Tavern T. on the Cassconade ;. Named for a former
owner. (Robert Page)

Boaz (Osage) be®z
A discontinued p.o. Boaz was the wealthy man who
married Ruth (Ruth iv. 1f.). Boaz was also the name of
one of the pillars in the porch of Solomon's temple,
It means "in him is strength". (ko. Gaz. 1860, 21)

Bobtown (Miller)
See Mary's lHome

Bode School (Osage) bod, bod.
In n. Benton 7. Named for the Boae family. (John Feters)

Boegers Store (Osage) bos@’“) betgr
See Hope

Boes School (Osage) brs
In w., Crawford T. Nemed for Joseph Poes, a farmer, who
owned the land on which the sehool was built.
(John Peters)
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Boettcher School (Gasconade) beljr
In 8. Third Creek T. Named for Wiegman Boettcher on
whose farm it is located. (J.C. Price)

Boeuf Creek (Casconade) bt
Rises in Canaan T. and empties into the Mo. R. in Frank-
lin T. WMisspelled Boeff in Campbell, 208. Well known
also, as Buffalo Creek, a translation of the French word;
for the French in Missouri usually called the buffale
boeuf, i.e. cow. Appears as Niviere au Boeuf in Beck's

Gaz. (Littre)

Boeuf Township (Casconade)
In e. part of the co. Probably nsmed for the creek which
crosses its s.e. cor.

Boiling Spring (Pulaski)
In Union T. in the bed of the Casconade R. below the
mouth of the Big Piney R. Its flow is 4&,000,000 gallons
per day. The name is deseriptive of its bubbling aetion.
It is & cold spring. (McCanse, 28)

/

Boillot School (Osage) baro

In Linn T. Nsmed for an early family. (John Peters)

Bolan's Creek (Miller)
A branch of Big Tavern Creek in e. Richwoods T. <Spelled
Bolins and Bollins on maps 1914 and 1931. Originally
spelled Bowlin's after the Bowlin family. (John
Ferguson)

Bolin Sehool (Miller)
In Glaze T. Discontinued sand now consclidated with the
School of the Osage (g.¥.). Nemed for W.L. Bolin, who
owned the land. (Mrs. Burl Henderson)

Bond School (Miller)
In Saline T. Nemed for u.B. Bond, who owned the land.
Formerly known as Pleasant Grove School, a descriptive
name. (Eugene Bond; J.J. Bond)

Bone Cave (Miller)
In Glaze T. near Brumley. 3o ¢alled because of the many
bones that have been found in it. (Sechultz, 152)

Bonnots (Osage)
See Bonnots ¥Mill

¥ /\hGTs
Bonnots ¥ill (Osege) banais) b
In Iinn T. on the ¥o. R. and ¥o. Pec. R.R. The town was
leid out in 1852 by Felix Bonnot, end his mills guve the
plece its name. Eaton says it was named for Benoit, or
Bonnot, who built a mill here. Coues in a ft. note says
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it is "the place where one Benet, Benite, Bennet, Bonnet,
Bonnot, or Benight built his mill". Coues mentions a
place across the river near the site of Cote sans Dessein
which was known as Dennet's lag. Bonnots Mill also known
as Dauphine. The dauphine was the wife of the heir to
the French crown; Dauphine was aulso the name of one or
the ola provinces of France. Also known s Boannots.
(Hist. Cole ste., 68l; Eaton, vd7; Coues's note, 4V0;
§,§. 1867f; Osage Dir., 1b; E.W. Zevely; J.H. Garstang)

Boone Township (Maries)
The n.w. vownship. Numed for Neathaniel Boone, one of the
earliest residents of the county and a distant cousin of
Deniel Boome. (Bverett King; John Terrill)

Boon Township (Gasconade)
The first session of the co. court divided the co. into
three townships of which Foon was one. It included all
the southern part of the co. It was later spelled Doone.
In 1822 Skaggs T. (g.¥.) was formed from part of Boon.
Boon T. no longer exists. Cne of the earliest millowners
was)nnnsd Daniel M. Boon. (Hist. Franklin etc., 625, 626,
0z7

Boulware Township (Gasconade) bulwer
In the w. part of the co. When the co. was first divided
into just three townships, Boulware was the ¢. one. After
the creation of Osage Co. in 1841 Casconade wus redivided
into four townships of which Boulware was one. Fhilip
Boulware was the first constable of Boulware T. (Hist.
Franklin ete., 625, 66, 628)

Bourbeuse River (Gasconmde) DP23
Fises in Casconade Co. Formed by the union of Dry Fork
and “ateon's Fork. &Spelled Bourbois on lap 1915 and in
Hist. Frunklin ete. Beck calls it the Bourbeuse (or
Muddy ) rfver. Wetlmore also hus the word muudy in paren-
theses after the name. DOUrbeux, vuse means miry, muddy,
sloughy, sloshy. The name a0es not seem very appropriate
because the Dourbeuse is oruinaurily a clear stream.
(Wetmore, 2es; Beeck, 263) (Litire

Bourbois (Gasconade)
See Hosebud

Bourbois River (Gasconade)
See Bourbeuse River

=)
Bourbois Township (Gssconads) bér}b

The s.w. township. Org. May 5, i1828. Probably named for
the river which heads in it. (Hist. Franklin, etc., 6£5)
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Bowen Creek (Casconade) boen
A tributary of the Pourbeuse R. in Bourbdeois T. Named for
Col. Isaiah Bowen who build a mill at 1ts mouth and
entered the land. (Hist. Franklin etc., 621; Tom Bowen)

Bowles Chapel (Maries)
A Methoalst ehurch in n. Johnson T. Named for Dr. Bowles
who donated the land. Frevious to 1885 it was known as
Double Chimneys Church because it had s fireplace at each
end. It was established about 1836 and probably was
originally Fresbyterian. During the slavery controversy,
like so many other protestant churches in this section,
it joined the M.%. South denomimation. (Lverett ¥ing;
G.%. Cordsmeyer)

** Box (Phelps)
Nothing coula be learnea of this place. (P.C. 1893)

Bradish Flat (Phelps) bre C\‘S
A small prairie in w. ILiberty T. Namea for the first
settler. (W.E., Duncan)

d
Brady Mine (Phelps) bredt
An iron mine in s.e. Meramec T. Named for the owner,
(¥.P. Malone)

Branson Methodist Church (Maries)
In e¢. Miller T. Named for Branson School (g3.v.).
(7.1, Birdsong)

Branson School (Maries)
In c. ¥Miller T. Nsmed for Judge Branson who lived near-
by. (N. Prater; J.''., Birdsong

Brays (Miller)
A discontinued p.o. in n.e. Richwoods T. Named for Tom
Bray, who built a mill there in early days. (P.G. 1896~
1922; Mups 1904f; Tom Clerk)

Brewary Cave {(Miller)
On Big Tavern Creek. So named because an old Cerman ran
& beer brewery in it for many years. (L.:. Burton)

Brick Pentacost Church (Casconade)
In n.e. Brush Creek T. The church is built of bdbrick.
Pentacost is u misspelling for "Pentecost”, the day of
the outpouring of the Holy Spirit (Acts ii.), which con-
stituted the birthday of the Christian Chureh. This is
the denomination known as the Pentecostal Church, or
Church of the Nazarenes. (Mrs. NEdward Shelton)

Bridge School (Phelps)
In Rolla T. So named becasuse it is near the Frisco R.R.
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pridge over Little Piney Creek. (W.F. Duncan)

Brinktown (Maries)
A p.o. in Miller T. HNemed for the Brink femily. Former-
ly Viessman and Viessman Station for Wolfgsng Viessman,
who ceme Ifrom Polend and settled here about 1885, It is
saia thet & NMrs. Brink, a widow, donated £500 to the
loecel Catholie Church on condition that the name of the
town be changed to Brinktown. (P.G. 1904f; Maps 1904f;
Everett King; V.M. Krone)

Broadway (Maries)
A diseontinued p.o. in e. Johnson T. The road wus called
Broadwusy as & neighborhood joke, and the settlement be-
came known by this neme. (P.G. 1899-1921; Map 1913;
Everett King)

Brockman (Miller)
A daiscontinued p.o. named 1or an old family. (I.G. 1892,
G. Schultz; Judge brockman)

Brocikman's Fora (Miller);
Midway between Tuscumbia and Bagnell. Named for John M.
Brockman, & pioneer settler. (Ceol. Miller, 7o; Judge
Brockman) o

Bronson lMine (Phelps)
An iron mine in s.e. Meramec 1. Hamea for L.G., Bromnson,
the ovner. (M.F. Malone)

Brouses Bena (killer) broaviozr
See Hoecker

bBrownfield (Fulaski)
A discontinued p.o. in &. [iberty T. Nsuzed for the
Brownfriela family. (P.G. 1900-1930; C.W. Lane)

Brown School (Miller)
In Richwoods T. Named for the Brown family.
(slvis Bailey)

Bruce Cave (Pulaski)
In e, Uinion T. on the GCasconade R. Named for the Bruce
family who own the lsna. (J.7. Andres)

-Brumley (¥Willer) byam

A village on ¥ill Cr. in c. Glaze T. with & p.o. since
1870, There was a store on the spot in 1868, and the
place was known as Thnompson's 3tore. It was later named,
like Erumley Creek (g.v.) for the bBrumley family, which
had been prominent in local affairs since the beginnings
of the ¢o. Daniel Brumley settled in ¥iller Co. before
1868, William Carroll Brumley waus sheriff and collector
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for the vo. after the Civil Wer. Schultz says that J.M.
Hawkins laid out the town inm 1877 end named it in honor
of W.C. Brumley, under whom he was serving as deputy
sheriff. Elsewhere, however, he says it was aslready one
of the twelve p.0.'s in the ¢o. in 187¢. Huton says it
was laid out in 1869 and named for John Brumley, an early
settler. Conard says it was laid out in 1858. It seems
likely that Hawkins merely resurveyed the site, ana that
it slready had the name Brumley. It was also known as
¥ill Creek for the cereek on which it is located. Mis-
spelled Erumly in Hand-book Mo. 1881, (P.Q. 1870f;
Schultz, 15, lé; Campbell's; Hist. Cole ete., 8903

C. Schultz; Conard, I, 407; Hand-book Mo. 1881, 198)

Brumley Creek (Miller)
A tributary of the Crand Auglaize in Claze T. 8. of
Brumley. Named for the Brumley family. (C. Schultsz)

Brumley {(Miller
See Prumley

Brush Creek (Casconade)
A tridbutary of the Bourbeuse R. in Brush Creek T. 8Se
named for the growth of brush slong its banks,
(Tom Powen)

Brush Creek (¥iller)
Rises in Saline T. and empties into the 8. Moreau K.
Named from the thick growth of brush slong its banks.
(Priest sllee)

Brush Creek (Osage)
A tributary of the Gasconade R. which rises near Rich
Fountain. 8o named from the brushy land through which
it flows. (J.R. Garstang)

Brush Creek Township (Casconade)
The s.e. township. On May la, 1858, Bourbeis T. was
divided and Brush Creek T. formed. It is probably named
for the stream which empties into the Casconade R. with-
in its boundaries. (Hist. Franklin ete., 6z8)

Brushy Creek (Miller)
See Brushy Fork Creek

Brushy FPork (Miller)
See Brushy Fork Creek

Brushy Pork Creek (Miller)
Rises in Claze T. and empties into PBig Tavern Creek.
Also known as Brushy Pork and Brushy Creek. Named from
the thick growth of brush along its banks. (Maps 1873f;
Jas. W, Dinwiddie)
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Bryant Bluff (Phelps)
A bluff in n.w. Arlington 7. on the Gasconede H. Named
for the owner. (W.E. Duncan; Thomas A. Young)

Buck Elk Baptist Church (0Osage)
In Jefferson T. Named for Buck Elk Creek (g.v.) which
it is near. Also known as Filot Enob Baptist Chureh be-
cause it is near a high hill or knob on which was built
a lookout tower used for map-msking. Org. 1860.
(Tom Walker; John FPeters; Sam Robertson)

Buck Elk Creek (Osage)
Iises near Belle ana flows into the Gasconsde H. in
Jefferson 7. Elk were common here im early days and
have been seen occasionally of late years. (Tom "alker;
John Peters)

Buck Elk School (Osage)
In Jefferson T. Numed for Buck Elk Creek (g.v.) which
it is near. (Johmn Peters; Tom Walker)

Buckendorf School (QOsage)
In Linn T. Nemed for Fritz Buckencorf, farmer ana Civil
War veteran. (John Peters)

Buckhorn (Pulaski)
A village in w. Cullen T. Named Ior ola Buckhora Tavern
there, a famous stopping place Ior stagecoacies on tLhe
road from st. louis L0 Springlfiela. The sign of the
tavern was a large palr 01 deer aantlers over the door.
(G.M., Reed)

Buckland (Phelps) |
An abandoned village in kolla T. Named for the Buckland
family. (Cumpbell's Gaz., oV, 439; W.E, Duncan )

Buckland Mine (Phelps)
A sulphur mine im Holla 7. Named for the Bueklana
family, who own the lamd. (W.E, Dunean; CI. Bueklana)

Bucksnort (Maries)
See Lichey

Buffalo Creek (Gasconade)
See Boeurl Creek

Purchard School (Gasconade)
In w. Brush Creek T. Named for P.W. Burchard, a lauyer
who lived there. (lLouis lLandwehr)

Purnett School (Pulaski)
In ¢. Union T. A family name. (Mrs. A.5. Idck)



Burns School (Maries)
In Boone T. Named for Johm Burns, leandowner. (N. Prater)

Busse School (Osage)  basc
In n. Benton 7. A family name. (John Peters)

Butcher Ford (Osage)
Across the Gasconade R. A family nsme., (A.A. Schmudde)

Buzzard Roost Sechool (Pulaski)
In ILiberty T. Naeamed for the bird which is common here.
(G.M. Reed)

Byrne (0Oazage)
See Byron

Byron (Osage) batran
A discontinued p.o. in s.e. Jefferson T. Misspelled
Byrne in Campbell's Quz. 1l874. 3aid 0o have been named
for lord Byron, the poet. (P.G. 18Y0-1918; Kaps 1873f;
John Peters)

Caaet Creek (Osage) kaed«
A small branch of loose Creek in Linmn 7. Named for a
pionser rfumily. (John Peters; A.A. Schaoucae)

Cadet Creek School (Usage)
In w. Linn T. on Caaet Creek (y.v.) ior waich it is
obviocusly nsmed. (John Peters

Cadmus (Maries)
A discontinued p.o. in Spring Creek T. Nawmea by
Columbus Harrison, the postmaster, for Cadmus of Greek
mythology, who sowed the dragon's teeth. (F.C., 1896«
1904; Maps 1904, 1956; Everett King; John Terrill)

Cainby (Miller) Kenbe
A discontinued p.o. in e. Osage T. sald to have been
named by Tom Doubliken for Cainby, Englend, which adjoin-
ed his old bome, Claxby, England; but neither nasme
appears in any available English atlas or gazetteer.
(P.G. 1896, 1897, 1910; Clifford Clark)

Califorunia House (Pulaski)
An o0ld tavern located in Cullen T. near Waynesville on
the main road from St. louls to Springfield. It was
built eerly in the 1850'as by Hugh MeCoin and named by
him for the State of Calirornia where he had been
successful in the gold fieldas. It is no longer standing.
(Hist. Lacleds, 111, 1335; G.M. Rees)

Calvary Baptist Church (Pulaskl)
In n.e. Cullen T. near Hooker. Calvary was the hill in
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or near Jerusalem on which Christ was crucified.
(Thos. J. Cain)

Campbell's Switenh (Osage)
See Argyle

Camp Ground Methodist Church (Maries)
In Boone T. So nsmed because of its situation on the old
Carnes Camp Cround (g.v.). Everett King; N. Prater)

Cemp Ground School (Maries)
In Boone T. Named for its situstion on the old Carnes
Cemp Ground (g.v.).

Ceamp CGround School (Osage)
In e. Linn 7. So nemed because of the religicus camp
meetings which were formerly held there. (John Peters)

Cansan (Gusconade) kenen
A discontinued p.o. in n.e. Clay T. The p.o. was est.
1855, und discontinued in 1l9o8. A Williems femily from
Franklin Co., and some Teunesseans settled in Canaan
prairie in the 1840's or 1800's. It is sala that because
they liked the place so much better than their ola homes,
and becsuse Iouis Williams was & preacher, they numed it
Canaan., They sald it was "their"promised land™.
(P.G. 1867-1932; Mo. Guz., 40; Collier; Maps 1865¢)

Canasan Township (Casconade) :
In the e. part of the co, Org. in 1846 from Third Creek
T. Named for Cenaan (g.v.). (Hist. Frasnklin etc., 628)

Capps (¥iller)
A discontinued p.o. in n. Osage T. on the Csage K. The
town was named for Jacob Capps, who at one time operated
a ferry there aend was a pioneer Baptist preacher. Also
known as Ramsey for Ceorge Reamsey of Jefferson City, who
bought many R.R, ties here. (P.C. 1893-1910; Schultsz,
16; Map 1904; L.A. Barton)

Carnes Camp Ground (Maries)
In Boone 7. Nemed for a Rev. ¥r. Carnes, an eurly
settler, ?ho held camp meetings here. (Everett King;
N. Prater

Carroll (Miller)
A discontinued p.o. A femily nsme. (P.G. 1896; John
Ferguson)

Castle Rock (Osage)
A discontinued p.o. in mn. Jackson T. on a bend of the
Osage R. It was founded just before the Civil War by
Col. Ceo. B. Boomer, who secured a mill, factory, stores,
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hotel, chureh, and school for the town. Col. Boomer
wae killed in the war end the town died. Nowever, the
plece is still known as Castle Poek., It is named for
rocks near there which resemble a castle. The p.o. was
est. in 1866. (P.C. 1867-1876; ¥o. Qaz., 49; Hist. Cole
ete., 642; KE.¥, Zevely; Menry Scheppers; John leters

*Cat-tail Creek (¥iller)
A tributary of Dog Creek. It rises in Equality T. The
origin of the name eould not be determined. Obviously
from the plant. (Meek's Map 1€73; Ceol. ¥iller, 117)

Cave Will (Casconade) ,
About a mile 8 of Bay. $So caslled because there is a
cave in the side of it. (H.F. Waldecker)

Caverne Creek (¥Miller)
See Big Tavern Creek

Cave Spring (Pulaski)
A discontinued p.o. iu n. Roubidoux T. A small spring
issues from a cave nearby. (P.C. 1837w; G.M. Reed)

Cave Spring Creek (Phelps)
See Tick Creek

Cedar Branch (GCasconade)
See Ceaar Fork

Cedar Creek (Maries)
Rises in Jefferson T. and empties into the Casc-nade R.
in Jackson T. Named from the many cedar trees which
11“‘ 1to (:.Pa ﬂal‘t)

Cedar Creek {(Osage)
A tributary of loose Creek in Linn T. So named from the
many cedar trees in the section through which it flows.
(John Peters)

Cedar FPork (Casconade)
A tributary of Third Creek in Third Creek T. So named

. for the many cedar trees along its banks. Also known as
Cedar Braneh. (J.C. Price)

Cedar Grove School (Pulaski)
In w. Iiberty T. on the Casconade 7. The name is
descriptive. (C.¥M. Reed)

Cedar ¥Hill School (Pulaski)
In ¢. Cullen T. It is named for the cedar trees sure-
rounding it end its locution on & hill. (G.N. Reed)
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Central Baptist Church (Miller)
org. 1900. In Saline T. &0 named because it was near
the center of its membership. (Schultz, 83; Dave Craham)

Central Point School (¥iller)
In Franklin 7. Probably soc named because it is near the
central point of the divide between the VWissouri and
Csage rivers. (John ., Eunch)

«Chamois (Osage) SSYWO'L
In n, Benton T. on the lMo. R. end ¥o. Pac. [,R. Laid out
in 1856 by Jsmes V. Shobe and named by ¥organ Harpor for
the Alpine deer or chamois, because the precipitous hills
reninded him of his home in Switzerlané. The official
seal of the eity has a chamois on it. (Osage Dir., 21;
ist. Cole ete., 87&; J.R. Garstang)

Charlestown (Miller)
See 5t. Elizabeth

Charleytown (Miller)
See 5t. Elizabeth

*#Charlotte (GCasconade)
A discontinued p.o. Notning could be learnea of this

place. (P.G. 1889-1302)

Chester (Miller)
See (Olean

Chinchbug (Maries)
See Lois !

Christ Zpiscopal Church (Phelps)
In Rolla. Org. 1379. A stock name for Zpiscopal
churches. (Col. Charles 1., 7oods)

Chureh of 3t. Theresa of the Child Jesus {Pulaski)
See 3t. Theresa's Catholie Chureh

Church of the Holy Tamily {(Cathollc) (Osage)
At Freedurg. The Holy Family refers to Joseph, Mary and
Jesus. (Rev. Wenry Cooper)

Church of the Little FTlower (Pulaski)
See 8t. Therssa's Catholie Church

Church of the Sacred Meart (Catholie) (Osage)
At Rieh Pountain. Crg. 1840. There are five organiza-
tions of the Sacred Peart of Jesus listed in the Catholie
Zneyclopedia., It is a cormon name of Catholiec Churches.

(Iist. Cole etec., 688; Rev. Henry Cooper)
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Clark Mine (Fhelps)
An iron mine in Meramec 7. named for a Mr. Clark who was
foreman for many years. Also known as Pickles Mine for
the man who opened it. (¥.F. Malone)

Clark Sehsol (Miller)
About 4 wi. s.e. of Capps. A family nsme. (Tom Clark)

Clark Township (Gesconade)
Org. 1820, It was the n. one of the three original
townships. The name no longer exists. The origin of the
name eo?ld not be discovered. (Hist. Franklin etec.,
625,626 R

Claxby (Miller)
A discontinued p.o. in Osage T. on Plg Tavern Creek.
Zaild to have been nsmed by Tom Doublikan in whose house
the first p.o. was located, for his old home, Claxby,
England; but no such place is to be found in any avail-
able wnvlish atlas or gazetteer. (P.0. 1893~1304;
Map 1914; Henry Clark)

Cley Township (Casconade)
In the s.w, part of the co. It was formed Irom Third
Creek and Pourbois townships because of the inconvenience
of voting precincts far apart. Named for Henry Clay,
the famoue statesman. (¥W.F, Strehlman)

Clear Creek Braneh (Cusconade)
A small tributury of Crider Creek in Third Creexk T.
The nome is descriptive of its chsracter. Also known
a8 Clear Fork. (W.F. Strehlman)

Clear Tork (Gasconade)
See Clear Creek Branch

Cleavesville (Gasconade) KleZVI‘
4 discontinued p.o. in Clay T. Named for Clesvelana
Inster, the first storekeeper. Doubtless he was called
"Cleave" for short, and the suffix ville was added.
(P.@. 1867-1902; Mape 1902f; Hist. Franklin etc., 685)

Cleino School (Thelps) klaine
In Dillon T. Named for Henry Cleimo, an early sheriff,
on wh?se land the school was built. (Col. Charles L.
Woods

/ - \
nlarn
*Clementine (Fhelps) Kl wa
A discontinued p.o. in Liberty T. TFrobably & feminine
personal name, like Beulah. (F.G. 1893-1926; C.V. Lane)

Cleveland School (Maries)
In ¥iller T. Named for President Cleveland. (Everett
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Clifty Creek (Casconade)
A tributary of Big Berger Cr. in Doeuf 7. So named be-
¢ause ius course is througn hilly eoumtry. “Clifrt"
(for ¢liff) and "clifty" are obs. foims which have sur-
vived in local Am. usage. (H.H. Lengeberg)

Clirty Creek (Maries)
A tributary of the Gasconade K. in Dry Creek T. Its
course is in hilly country. Cf. Clifty Dale.
(Everett Xing) -

Clifty Dale (Maries)
See Gaines Fora

Clifty Sehool (Maries)
Ia Dry Creek T. on Clifty Creek (g.¥v.) for which it is
named. (Everett King)

Clinger Cave (Miller)
See Klinger Cave

Clinking Beard Hollow (Miller) ,
Near the s. ¢0. line at tne head of Big Tavern Cresk.
A corruption of the family name, Clinkenbeard.
(Maps 1914, 1931; G. Schultz)

Clinton Bank (Puelps)
See Clinton Mine

Clinton Kine (Phelps)
An iron mine in s.e. Merumec T. Named for Jake Clinton,
who opened ié «bvut iBe¥Y. Also known «s Clinton Dank.
(M.F. Malone)

Cold 3pring Township (Fhelps)
In the s. part of the evuaty. Furmea im iBd7. &¢ named
because of the many oold springs within its vorders.
(Prank Croves)

*%*Coles Creek (Gasconade)
A tributary of the Missouri R. in BRoark T. The origin
of the name coula not be determined.

College Hill Baptist Churech (Csage)
In Jefferson T. It was probably named for College Hill
School (g.¥.). Formerly known as Mud Spring Baptist
Church for the muddy spring which is nesr the site,
(Tom #alker; John Peters)

College Hill School (Osage)
In Jefferson T. There never was a college in this
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vieinity. Probably it was jocularly given this name
beceruse of the school. (Tom "alker

Collier Schocol (Casconade)
In s.w. Brush Cresk T. &0 named beonuse it is located on
the Collier farm. (louis Landwehr; Wm. Collier)

Collins Scheool (Fhelps)
In Dawson T. A family neme. (Mrs. Adolph Nickles)

Colly Hollow (Pulaski) Kald
A small tributary of the Gasconade R. It rises in
Roubidoux T. and empties into the Cusoconade K. in w,
Cullen T, Numed for Cyrus Colley, who settled here about
1818.5)(cumpboll'a; lilst. Lascleae, 102; Enc. Hist. No.
Vv, &6,

Colon School (Pmelps) Kol@n
In 0. Liberty 7. The name is a corruption of the word
"ecoaling”. This place usea to be a center of the chare
coaling industry cerried on to supply the iron furnaces.
(¥.F. Duncan; M.T. Freeman)

*Combs (Pulaski)
Nothing could be learned of this place. (P.2., 1893)

Compton ¥ill School (Osage)
See Vietor Zehool

Concord Baptist Church (Miller)
Est. 1873 at Goti's Graveyard. An ideal name., (Hist.
Cole ete., §80) ‘

Concord Methodist Chureh (Pulaski)
In n.w. Tavern T. An ideal name. (Robert Page)

Contrary Creek (Osage)
Rises near Linn and empties into the Gasconade H. Owing
to the terraln this creek flows in a direction opposite
to that of the Cascounade H. and the other creeks that
flow intoc it. (John Peters)

Cookville (Pulaski)
A P.0. in Roubidoux T. Named for #.J. Cook, who was a
storekesper and mill owaer there. (P.G. 1Buef; Hist.
luclede, 101; Robert Page)

Coon Creek (Niller)
A tributary of tne Osage K. between Pantner and DoOg
Creeks. There useu to be many raccoons slong ite bpanks.

(Geol. Miller, 1o; L.a. Barton)



Coocper (Miller)
A station on the Mo. Pac. R.R., in Franklin T. between
Eldon and Bagnell. HNemed for Joel Cooper, who owned the
land. (Maps 1904f; Jemes R. Pruitt)

Cooper Hill (Osage) Kupr
A pP.0. in n.e. Jefferson T. Named for Dr. Jas. ¥. Cooper,
who lived there. (P.C. 1867f; E.M. Zevely)

Cooper School (Miller) ,
o mi. 8. of Eldon. Named for Joel Cooper, who owned the
land. (Jsmes R. Pruitt)

Coppedge Spring (FPhelps) K “f’Ld5
See Relfe Spring y '
im0
Corinth (Phelps) Kor
In e. Miller T. Named for Corinth, CGreece. (Col.
Charles L. Woods)

Cotton (Miller)
See Cotton's Spur

Cottons (Miller)
Sew Cotwn's Spur

Cotton's Spur (Miller)
A station on the Mo. Pac. K., n. of Bagnell in
Franklin 7. Listeda in Band Mclally's Commercisl Atlas
(1935) as Cotton. Shown as Cotltons in Crem's Atlas
1904 anda 1924, DNamed for a Mr. Cotton, o owned the
land. (James R, Pruitt)

Cove (Miller)
3ee QOlean

Cowan School (Pulaski) Kavun
In s.e. Tavern 7. MNamed for the Cowsn family.
(Thomas J. Cain)

Crabtree Cave (Miller)
On the Osage R. near the moulh of Tavern Creek. Named
for a Civil War bandit, who used it for a hiding place.
(Tom Clark)

** Craddock {Phelps)
A p.o. in s.e. Spring Creek T. Numed for Dan Craddoek,
first postmaster. (P.C. 1895f; M.T. Freeman; Henry
Esmond )

Crawford Township (Osage) Tl
The e. Township. Org. 184l. Origin of the neme coula
aot be determined. Hist. Cole etec., 1lB4l) )
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Crider Creek (Gasconude) Krazdr
Rises in Clay T. and empties into Third Creek in Third
Creek T. Named for the Crider femily which lived on it.

(F.C., Price)

Crocker (Pulaski)
A town in Tavern 7. laid out in 1869, It wes built soon

after Jumboldt, about a mile north, was abandoned.
Named for a stockholder in the A. & P. K.K., who lived
there. (2.G. 1876f; Hist. Laclede, 1%50; Lobert Page)

Crook (Osage)
A discontinued p.o. in n. Crawford T. B.A. Caume, first

postmaster and owner of the store, jokingly accused the
men who built the store of being a erook and included
the nume in the list of names submitted to the T.0. Dept.
Crook was the name chosen dy the P.0. Dept. (P.C. 1904~
1918; Mups 1904f; B.A. Caume)

Crossroads 8chool (Maries)
In Jerfferson T. S0 cslled because the original bullding

was located at a crossroad. (G.". Cordsmeyer; R.H,
hidenhour)

Cross School (Viller)
Smi. e. of Iberia. A family name. (E.V¥. Durham)

Cub Creek (Miller)
A small creek in Jim Henry T. emptying into the Csage K.

Obviously en animsl name,

Cullen Township (Pvlaski) knlen
In the ¢. snc w., part of the county. Crg. 1l8od. KNamed
for « compenion of Joseph [oublacux, the well known
French trepper snd explorer who foundeu St. Josepn. The
Cullen family settled here in 1816. (Hist. lacledae, 1lé;

Hem. [ist. Czark Heg., &8)
**Cullins Township (Cesconade) knlinz

Leid off in 182z. No longer exists. Cf. Cullen
Township. (Hist. Franklin ete., 6z¢)

Curry's Christian Church (¥iller)
7 mi. s.w., Of Iberia. MNamed for the Curry femily.

(®.¥, Durhem)

Curry &ehocl (¥iller)
7 mi. s.w. of ITberia. A femily name. (%.!, Durham)

Curtis (Pulaski)
A discontinued p.o, in Cullen T. NXemed for J.¥. Curtis,

&n early county Judge. (P.C. 1918 G.¥, Lane)
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Curty School (Miller)
See Cageville School

*Dailey (Osage)
On Mo. R. and Mo. Pac. R.R. S8hown on the County and
Railway Map, p. 1ll, in Campbell's Atlas, 1875, 4th ed.
No other trace could be found of the place.

pemsite (Miller) demsat
A (Union Electric) company town started in 1929 for the
workers near the site of the Osage Dem in Franklin T.
The name is obviously a pun.

Dan (Maries)
A discontinued p.o. in n.e. Jefferson T. HNamed for
Daniel Boone Crider, an early settler. (P.G. 1901-1904;
Map 1904; R.E, Terrill)

Dauphine (Osage) dofen
See Bonnots Mill

Davis School (Muries)
In Spring Creek T. Named for the Davis family, who owned
the land. (J.P. Hart)

Dawson Township (Phelps)
The n.e. T. Also known as York's leg for W.C. York, the
first presiding Jjudge (1857), becuuse of his activities
in securing the passage of an act adding it to the co.,
and becuuse of its shupe. Named for William Dawson, an
eurly presiding Jjudge. (Hist. lLaclede, 635; N.B. Cox;
E.A. Branstetter)

Dean School (Phelps) *
In 8. Dillon T. A family nesme. (Col. Cherles L. Woods)

**Debruin (Pulaski)
A discontinued p.o. in Cullen T. The origin of the name
could not be discovered. (P.C. 1867-1904)

L/ by
De Camp (Phelps) do Kemp
A discontinued p.o. in Meramee T. Named for De Cemp Mine
(g.¥.) which is near. (P.G. 1910-1925; M.F, Malone

De Camp ¥ine (Phelps)
An iron mine in Meramec T. Named for an official of the
mining compeny. Also known as lenox Bank for Hamilton
lLenox, who opened the mine. (M.F. Malone)

Decker (Pulaski) ,
A discontinued p.o. in Cullen T. Named for Charles
Decker, a clerk in the store in which the p.o. was
located. (P.G. 1902-1910; Eaton, 343; G.W. lLane)
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Deer (Osuge)
A discontinued p.oc. in ¢. Benton T. Deer were abundant
here in early days and this is still good deer hunting
territory, which probably aceounts for the name.
(P.G. 1902-1955; Meps 1904f)

Deer Creek (Osage)
A small tributary of the Missouri K. near St. Aubert.
So called probably for the many deer in this sectiom in

early days. (J.R. Garstang)

Deer Creek School (Osage)
In Benton T. on Deer Creek for which it is obviously

named .

** Delphi (Gasconade)
A diseontinued p.o. in Bourbois T. It was still a p.o.
in 1860. Neither the location nor the origin of the name
could be discovered. (P.8. 1837, 1853; Maps 1865, 1867,
1873; Yo. Gaz., 70)

Demoerat School (Fhelps)
In w. Spring Creek T. A voting place. 4All the residents
in the neighborhood mre Demoerats. (J.B. Clark)

Democrat Ridge (Phelps)
In w. Spring Creek T. All the residents are Democrats.
Cf. Demoorat Sehool. (J.B. Clark)

Descher Sochool (Osage)
In n. Washington T. A family name. (John Peters)

Devil's Backbone (Phelps)
A long bluff or ridge on the Gasconade R. im Miller T.,
the shape of which suggested the name. (W.F¥, Duncan)

Devil's Elbow (Pulaski)
A P.0. in n.e. Cullen T. on the Big Piney R. S0 named
becsuse it is on & sharp bend in the river. (P.G. 1928r;

W.W, Howerd)

Devil's Tea Table (Miller)
At Hoecker on Osage R. A large rock similar to a table.

(Tom Clark)

Dillon (Phelps) dilen
A p.0. in ¢. Dillon T. The first co. seat ana the oldest
place in the co. First known as Wishon's Store for John
Wishon, the owner, when it was a stopping-place on the
stage line from St. Iouis to Springfield. When the p.o.
was secured, it was named for John A. Dillon in whose
home the co. court held its first meetings. (P.C. 1867,
1915f; Enc. Hist. Mo., V., 112; Tuylor; N.B. Cox]
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Dillon Township (Phelps)
In the ¢. part of the c¢co. Named for John A. Dillon in
?hoao hou? the co. court held its first meetings.
N.B. Cox

Dingley (Osage)
In s.e. Jefferson T. An abandoned village named for the
Dingley femily who lived there. (Nap 1913; E.M. Zevely)

Dingley School (Osage)
In s.e. Jefferson T. Wamed for Edwsrd Dingley on whose
farm the school was built. (Tom Walker)

.Dixon (Pulaski)
A town in n. Union T. laid out in 1869 when the K.R.
was built to this point. It was named by some of the
R.R. workers for their home town, Dixon, Illinois.
(Hist. laclede, 14Z; P.G. 1876f; W.". Howard)

** Dixie School (Maries)
In ¢. Jefferson T. Formerly known as Dugout School be-
cause groundhogs had "aug out"™ under the builaing. The
reason for the name Dixie is not known. (John Terrill)

Dodd Christian Church (Osage)
An abandoned chnurch in ¢. Beaton T. named for the Dodd
family. (E.M. Zevely)

Dodd School (Osage)
In ¢. Benton T. Nemed for the Dodd family. (E.M. Zevely)

Dog Creek (Miller)
A tributary of the Osage R. in Equality T. According to
& local story, a hunter was attacked by a dog here in
early days, and the c¢reek was named for this reason.
(Maps 1875f; L.A. Barton)

Doolings Creek (Osage)
fee Doolins Creek

Doolins Creek (Osage)
A tributary of the Missouri R. at Chamois. Naumed for
the Doolin family who lived on it. Spelled Doolings on
Mep 1913. (Map 1913; John Peters)

Dorl Spring (¥iller) )
S mi. n. of Tuscunmbia. Nsmed for Cedlup Dorl, the
present owner. Formerly khown as Shackleford Spring
for John Shackleford, who owned the land for many years.
(John Stark)

Double Chimneys Church (Maries)
See Bowles Chapel
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Douglas Prairie (Casconade)
Named for Fred Douglas, who owned the land. (Hist.
Frankliin etec., ©20; Campbell, 208)

Dover School (Maries)
In Jefferson T. Named for Dover, Del. It is not known
why. (John Terrill)

Dreke (Casconade)
A p.o. in Boeuf T. named for Semator Charles D. Drake,
U.S. Sen. from ¥o. 1867-1871. (P.C. 1870f; Hist Franklin
etc., 685; Hist. Chariton, 52, 53)

*Drennanville (Phelps)
Nothing eould be learned of this place. (P.C. 1876)

Dry Auglaize (Miller)
A branch of the Crand Augleize (g.v.) (ef. Wet Auglaize,
§,!,). Also known as the Dry GlaiZze. It does not flow
n dry weather but stands in pools. (Jas. W. Dinwiddie)

Dry Creek (Maries)
A small stream in Dry Creek T. Empties inte the Gascon-
ade R. It is dry except in rainy weather.

Dry Creek (Puleski)
A small ary weather ereek in Cullen T. which empties
into the Big Piney R. (G.W. Lane)

Dry Creek Baptist Chureh (Puleski)
In Cullen T. about a mile from Dry Creek School (g.¥.)
and nsmed for it. (G.M. Reed)

Dry Creek School (Pulaski)
In Cullen T. on a small dry weather creek which gives it
its name. (G.M. Reed)

Dry Creek Township (Maries)
The s. township on the w. side of the Casconade F.
Named for the creek (g.v.) within its boundaries.
(Everett King)

Dry Pork (Casconade)
A tridbutery of the Bourbeuse R. Also known es Dry Fork
Creek. So e¢=lled becsuse it does not run during « large
part of the yesr. (W.F, Strehlman)

Dry Fork (Phelps)
Rises in Dent Co., crosses the s.e. cor. of Phelps, and
empties into the VWeramec R. Jjust over the Crawford Co.
line. The name is desoriptive of its character. During
part of the year it is a considerable stream, but in dry
weather it is a mere trickle. (N.B. Cox)
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Dry Fork Creek (Gasconade)
See Dry Pork

Dry Glaize (Miller)

See Dry Auglaize
Drysse (Maries) drat'st
See Summerfield

Dublin Baptist Chureh (Pulaski)
In Iibverty T. Some of the Irish lasborers who helped
build the R.R. organized this chureh about 1870 snd
nemed it for Dublin, Ireland. (Robert Page)

Dugout School (Maries)
See Dixie School

Duke (Fhelps)
A p.o. in w, Spring Creek 7. Before 1905 the p.o. was
across the line in Pulaski Co. At about the time the
P.0. was secured the most popular smoking tobaceco was a
brand known as Duke's Mixture. This was a nickname for
the store and was used for the p.o. (F.G. 1899f;
J.B. Clark; W.E. Duncan)

Dunavan (Phelps)
An abandoned village in Dillon T. Named for Mike
Dunavan, who for many years was the only settler im that
part of the co. (N.B. Cox; E.A. Branstetter)

sDundas (Pulaski)
S8ee Bailey

Dyer Baptist Church (Phelps)
See Spring Creek Besptist Chureh

Easter Cave (Phelps)
In n, Miller T. Named for Isasc Easter, the owner.
(Thomas A. Young)

Bast Fairview School (Maries)
In 8., Jefferson T. A descriptive name. Cf. Vest
Fairview School.(A.L. Joyce)

*Ebb and Flow Spring (Pulaski)
In Piney T. Originally, known as MeCourtney Spring for
the owner. Also known as Siphon Spring becnuse of the
behavior of its water whieh flows for several hours and
then ebbs for a few minutes. Also known as Willer
Spring for a former owner. The flow varies from
5,100,0% 8‘1. to 13’000'000 g‘lo rer day- (Gvﬁo R“d;
lkeCanse, 84)
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*Edanville (Pulaski)
goth%ng could be learmed of this place. (P.G. 1899,
910

'Edgar Prairie (Pnelps)
S8ee Edgar Springs

Edgar Springs (Phelps)
A p.0, in e. Spring Creek T. Iaia out in 1871 ana first
known as Edgar Prairie. It is on a prairie. The place
was named for John Edgar, the first settler, who came in
1840, There is a spring on his farm. (P.G. 1876r;

Hist. Laclede, 629, 674; Handbook Mo., 2207 Col. Charles
Toootar -5, Clark) '

*Enlenberg (Casconade)
In Roark T. WNothing could be learped of this place.
(R.M, 1936) \

/ \
Eichorst School (Phelps) <K hast
In Meramee T. Named for John Eichorst, who owned the
land. (M.F. Walone)

«Eldon (Miller)
In s.w. Saline T. on the ¥o. Pac. and Roek Island R.R.'s.
The largest town in the co. (pop. 3171, 1930 census). It
was laid out in 1881 and inc. in 1904. The place was
first named Elmira for the wife of G.R. Weeks, an early
settler, but this name was rejected by the p.o. depart-
ment because there was another Elmira in Missouri (in
Ray Co.). It is said that Eldon was the given name of
a surveyor for one of the railrosds. (Hist. Cole ete.;
E.P. Weeks; John Ferguson)

Elk Prairie (Pnelps)
A discontinued p.o. in n. Cold Spring T. Also known as
Prairie because of its location on a prairie. Nemea for
the animsl which was found here in great numbers in early
days. (P.G. 1886-1910; Taylor; Jacob Scnwartz)

Elliott Sehool (Miller)
In Richwoods T. Naumed for the Elliott family. (Alvis
Bailey; E.A. Condra)

Elmire (Miller)
See Eldon

Elm Spring Beptist Chureh (Miller)
S mi. s.e. of Bagnell. Org. about 1850. There is a
spring there and elm trees. (John Jones)

Elm Spring Sehool (Miller)
Near Elm Spring Church, for which it is nemed. (Jno.Jones)
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Elm Spring School (Phelps)

In ¢. Spring Creek T. There is a spring and a grove of
elm trees there. (M.T. Freeman)

Enge lbert (Osage) %7 %‘3‘ bt
See Freebdburg

Enterprise School (Maries)
In s.w. Jacksom T. Obviously an iaeal name,

Enterprise School (Osage)
In Iinn T. An ideal name. (John Peters)

Equality Township (Miller)
The middle T. of the c¢o. It conteins the co. seat,
Tuscumbia. It was formed late in 1857. Iacludes old

Reed T. (g.v.). Obviously an ideal name. (Hist. Cole
ete., 541

Etter (¥iller)
See Etterville

Etterville (Miller)

A village p.o. in Saline T. on the R.I.R.R. Listed as
Etter in P.G., 1904; Zaton says it was named for a
proninent local femily. M¥r. Schultz says it was named
for Samuel Etter, who owned a still near there at an

early date. (Eaton, 194; Hist. Cole ete., 537;
P.C. 1904f) ST St

Evening Shade Scnool (Phelps)

In e. Spring Creek T. There are large trees on the w.
side of the school and an open farm omn the e. side giving
it shade in the late afternoon. (J.B., Clark)

Excelsior School (Maries)
In n.e., Jackson T. OQbviously an ideal or "motto" name.

*Fainswick (Maries)

In n.w. Jackson T. No trace of this place could be
found. (Maps 1867, 1873)

Fair Play (Miller)
A discontinued p.o. in Jim Henry T. on the Osage K.

S8ehultz lists it as a p.o. in 1860 ana 1874 (164, 166).
Obviously an ideal name. (Map 1873)

Falrview Baptist Church (Pulaski)
In Roubidoux T. A descriptive name. (G.M. Reed)

Palrview Christian Chureh (Miller)
In Riehwoods T. A desceriptive name., (Mrs. Josie Atwell)
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Fairview Christian Church (Osage)
About 2 mi, n.e, of Limn. A descriptive name. Also
known as Weeks Christian Church for the Weeks famlly.
(E.u, Zevely)

Pairview Methodist Church (Phelps)
Org. 1878, Could not be located. Tne name is obviously
intended to be desoriptive. (Hist. laclede, 654)

Fairview School (Phelps)
In 8. Dillon T. A stock deseriptive nume for schools.

Fairview School (Pulaski)
In Roubidoux T. A deseriptive name. (G.M. Reed)

Faith (Miller)
A discontinued p.o. in s.w. Richwocds T. The Ralls
family owns the land on which Faith was located. A
daughter of the first settler was named "mith for whom
the place was probably named. (P.G. 1901-1904; R.M.
1936; W.C. Brumley)

Fancher Hollow (Miller) fe “{SY
In Osage T, A family nsme. (Ceol. Miller, 2J; Judge
Brockman)

**Paulkner (Miller)
The place could not be located nor c¢ould the origin of
the name be determined. (P.C. 1902)

Peaster Spring (Maries)
In s.w, Jefferson T. An old time preaching and gather-
ing place numed for tne Feaster family who owned it.
This is probably the Jenkins Spring mentiouned in
Campbell. (Campbell, 346; Everett King)

Feeler School (Maries)
In Spring Creek T. A family neme. (J.F7, Hart)

Ferndale 3chool (Phelps)
In n. Dillon T. A descriptive name. (C.D. Brewster)

/
Feuersville (Csage) frugzvil
A discontinued p.o. in n.e. Jefferson T. Named for the
Feuers family. (P,G. 16886-1915; Mups 1904f; E.¥.Zevely)

First Creek (Casconade)
A tributary of the Casconade R, Rises in Boulware T.
and flows through Roark T. and Riehlend T. S0 named
because it is the first large creek im Gesconade Co.
up the river from its mouth, (Geo. Schneider)
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Flag Spring School (Phelps)
In St. James T. Probably named for the spring end the
iris there. (N.B. Cox)

Flanders Cave (Miller)
6 mi. s. of Eldon. Named by Chas. Fleetwood for Flanders
Field in Belgium, because ne thought there was & resemb-
lance. Doubtless he had in mind John MeCree's poem
about "Flanders field, where poppies blow”. Formerly
known as Agee Cave tor #¥m., Agee, who owned it for a short
time. (John Stark, Jas. R. Pruitts)

Flat (Phelps)
A p.o. in 3pring Creek T. Also known as Flat Wood be=~
csuse it is located in a level forest. (P.G. 1867, 1876,
189%6f; J.B. Clark)

Flat Grove School (Phelps)
In Dillon T. The name is descriptive. (N.B., Cox)

Flat Roek School (Osage)
In Benton T. The original building was on a large flat
sand rock. (B.A. Gaume)

Flat Top School (Maries)
In w. Jeckson T. A deseriptive neme. The school sits
on the flst top of & hill. (XN. Prater)

Platwood (Willer) :
A discontinued p.o. in xqunlit T. Probably named for
Flatwoods Baptist Chureh (g.v. (P.G. 1891; ®.A.Condra)

Flat %Wood (Phelps)
See Flat

Flatwoods Baptist Church (Miller)
See Harmony Church

Flatwoods Methodist Caurceh (Miller)
See Harmony Churech

Fletcher 3chool (Miller)
In Glaze T. on ILittle Bear Creek. Named for a Nr.
Fletcher, who owned the land. (J. Burton)

** Flora (Osage)
A discontinued p.o. in n.w. Crawford T. The origin of
the name coulu not be discovereu. Formerly known &s
Grange Store for the Grange, farmer's organization.
(P.G. 1886-1897; Map 191d; J.R. Garstang)

Flynn (Pulaski)
A discontinued p.o. in Liberty T. Named for Iuther Flynn,
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the first postmaster. (P.G. 1904; G.W. Lane)

Folk (Osage) Folk
A P.0. in Jackson T. Named for Joseph W. Folk, gov. of
Mo. 1904-1908. (Eaton, 337; E.M. Zevely)

Forbes Clay Pit (Phelps) Fovrbz
In s.e. Miller T. A valuable deposit of aluminum-
bearing fire clay. Named for the cwner. (C.D.Brewster)

Forest Crove School (Osage)
In Crawford T. The name is descriptive of the location.
{John Peters)

Fort Wyman (Phelps)
An old fort at the edge of the City of Folla. Built
during the Civil Wur when Rolla was union hesdouarters.
Nameda for a Union Colonel, probably Powell T. Wymsn
(died 1862). (G#. Lane; Hist. Reg. U.3. Army, I, 1Ué4)

Fox Crossing School (Puleski)
In n. Union T. near a R.R, crossing. Named for the
Fox femily. (Mrs. A.8. lick; Thos. J. Cain; W.¥. Petty)

Frame Creek (Gasconeade)
See Trene Creek

**rrancis (Pulaski)
A discontinued p.o. in Liderty T. The origin of the
gmu oenl;l not be discovered. (P.C. 1889-1904;
.W. Lane

Frankberg (Osage)

See Freeburg {

kanstain

Frankenstein {(Osage) Fr®n
A discontinued p.o. in e. Linn T. Probadbly named for
Gottfried Franken, who was an early settler in this
neighborhood. The first Catholic Church here was bduilt
on his land. He owned a large amount of land. There is
& town named Frankenstein in Silesia, Germsny, whieh may
also have been in the minds of those who selected the
naeme. (P.G, 1895-191€; Maps 1913f; Osege Dir., 15;
E.M. Zevely)

Pranklin Chureh (Maries)
In e. Juckson T. near Franklin School and mamed for the
seme family. (C.W. Cordsmeyer)

Franklin School (Maries)
In e, Jackson T. A femily name. (C.W. Cordsmeyer)
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Franklin Sehool (Miller)
In Pranklin T. Neamed for an old family. (Jas. R.Pruitt)

Franklin Township (¥iller)
The w. T. Org. 1860, WNamed for am early femily promi-
nent in politics. (John Ferguson)

Franks (Pulaski)
A p.o. and stetion on the ¥Frisco R.R. in e. Uniomn T.
Nemed for Frank Stanzel, a R.R. stone mason who lived
there. (P.G. 1890f; A.S. Lick; W.W. Howard)

Fredericksburgh (Casconadse)
A p.0. in w. Richlend T. on the Gasconade R. est. 18583
and discontinued 1922, It was named for a Freaericks
family who were the first settlers. The place is now
a summer resort. It touches the c¢o. line, and before
189& the p.o. was located across the lime in OUsage Co.
(Maps 1875f; P.C. 1855-192Z; Frank Johnson; Hist.

Franklin ete., o84)

‘Freeburg (Osage) .
A Pe0., in 8. Washington T. originally known as Engelbert
for the first postmaster, Engelbert Ffrunke, who was
appointed in 1886. In 1888 the pname was changed o
Frankberg for the same man. In 1894 Mr. Franke retired
as postmaster and was succeeded by John Welscameyer, who
ehanged the name of the p.o. to Freeburg. "Free" ia
inglish for the CGermsn "Franke". (Usage Dir., 16;

P.G. lesesfr) -

Freedom (Osage)
A p.o. in e. Crawford T. Obviously an ideal name.
(P.G. 1890f; Maps 1913f)

Freeman Spring (Phelps)
See Relfe Spring

Fremont Town {(Phelps)
See Jerome

French Villuge (Osage) ’
long ago abandoned, it was about 1/4 mi. below the
present site of Ponnots ¥ill on the Y¥o. E. It was the
first settlement in Osage Co. Consisted of French from
the village of Cote sans Dessein in Callaway Co. which
had begun to wash away. Nrs., Bonnot's store was in
French Village. Descendants of this group still live
in Bonnots ¥ill and vieinity and French is spoken. The
river finally washed Frenech Village away. (Hist. Cole
ete., 634; Saver, 90, 94; Comnrad, V, 28)
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Frene Creek (Gasconade) fren
A tributury of the Wissouri R. Coues says Lt wus named
Riviere aux Frénes by the French and eppears as Frume cr.
(doubtless a corruption of Frene), which is om Mo. R.
Coms. map. It is also known as Ash Cr. Hermenn is at
its mouth. Fréne — ash. (Coues's note, J86; Littre)

Friendship Baptist Chureh (Pulaski)
In e. Roubiadoux T. An ideal neme. (Robert Page)

Frisco lake (Phelps)
A small lake in Folle named for and owned by the Friseo
E.R. (MeCanse, 56; Col. Charles L. Woods)

¥risco F.R., (Phelps, Pulaski)
See St. Ipuis snd San Francisco R.R.

Fyan (Pulaski) tarsn
A éaiscontinued p,o. in Iiberty T. Nemed for Fobert W.
Fyan, representative in Congress 1883-1885, 18v¥1-1895.
(F.G. 1899-1910; G.W. Lane)

Geddy Hollow (Phelps)
in Arlington 7. Nemed for the owner. (J.T. Andres)

Guady School (Pulaski)
In 8. Union T, A family name. (Thos. J. Cein)

Gageville (Miller)
An 0ld lead mining settlement in Saline T. Now cefunct.
Named for a Mr. Gage, who wes supt. of the mine. Also
known a8 the Hackney Dtgslnga. In 1872 W.A. Hackney
opeued & shaft here. Geol. Miller, 171; J.C. Peoples
Tribune, Mar. 381, 1880; Duve afﬁiams "

Gageville School (Miller)
In Seline T. Numed for the ola town of Gageville (g.V.).
Originally known as Curty Sehool for Davia Curty, who
owned the lanu. (Dave Graham)

Gaines Pord (Meries)
A discontinued p.o. in Dry Creek T. on the Casconade R.
Named for Jas. Oaines who owned the land at the ford.
Formerly Clifty Dale p.o. The name was descriptive of
the location. Clifty is & common disleet word in this
section for eliffy. (D.C., 1867-1887, 1982; Nups 1879,
1880; Everett King)

Galloway's Prairie (Maries)
A small prairie im the n.e. cor. of the co. named for
the Calloway femily who lived on it. (R.H. Ridenhour)



-46-

Gallaway Station (Osage)
In s.e. Jefferson T. Also known s Gellaway's Store. A
station on the Rock Island R.R. Neamed for the owner of
the store. (Map 18735; Cesmpbell's Gaz., 4lz; John Terrill)

Gallaway's Store (Osage)
See Gallaway Station

Cardner Branch (¥iller)
See lenox Branch

Garfield School (Osage)
In Jefferson T. Nemed for President James Carfield
(1881-1884). (Tom Walker) ,

-Gasconade (Casconade) geskone d
Near the mouth of the Casconade K. for which it is nsmed.
It was the first co. seat. In 1825 on account of a
flood, the co. seat was moved to Bartonsville. It once
came within 2 votes of securing the state capital in-
stead of Jefferson City. It was also known as Gasconade
City. There is & government boat yard there. (Maps
1865f; P.G. 1870f; Hist. nklin ete., 628, 630, d3
Beck, 2817 Mitehell's Map

Casconade Baptist Church (Pulaski)
In Union T. on the Gasconede K. for which it is named.
It was first known as Needmore Baptist Church because
it was put to use before it was quite finished. They
said, "It needs more work". (Thos. J. Cain; W.M. Petty)

Gasconade City (Gasconade)
See Gasconade

Gasconade County
Org. by an act of the territorial legislature Nov. 29,
1820, before Mo. became a state, from Franklin Co. All
the unorganized portion (nearly omne fourih) of the state
south and west was attached to it. It was frequently re-
ferred to as the "State of Gasconade”. In 1841 it was
divided, end Osage Co. formed. In 1869, 36 sq. mi. were
trensferred to Crawford Co. On the north is the Missouri
R.; on the west, Osage and Maries Co.'s; on the south,
Phelps and Crewford; on the east, Frenklin. It is nemed
for the Gasconede R. (g.v.) which empties into the Mo. R.
within its boundaries. 1t originslly included most of
the present Maries Co. (Campbell, 208; Hist. Franklin
ete., 625-625; Wetmore, 75)

Gasconade Perry (Casconade)
A discontinued p.o. on the Casconade R. in Riehlana T.
Obviously named for the Casconade R. (P.C. 1830, 1867~
1876; Maps 1867, 1873, 1880)
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‘CGasconade River (Pulaski, Osage, karies, Casconade)
Rises in Pulaski Co. and flows through Maries Co.,
crosses the s.e. part of Osage Co., ana empties into the
Mo. R. in Gasconade Co. Coues says it "got its name
from the way c¢ertain persons bragged about their exploits
when they returned %o 5t. Louis". Eaton says tne name
was applied by the early Freanch to the Inaians living on
its banks who bragged about their exploits ana tnat the
name is also descriptive of the waters of the river,
which are "boisterous and boastful™. At any rate the
name is from the French word scon, a boaster, braggart,
a Gascon. The CGascons, inhabftants of the province of
Gascony in France, were noted for their boastfulness.
The verb, Gaggongor, means to brag. Also sconnade is
a noun meaning ast, brag. Gesconer, to brag an
gasconade n. are EZnglish words. !Rﬂian. 169; Coues's
note, o87; Littre )

Gasconade Township (Pulaski)
Org. in 1833, now discontinuedi. Nemed for the Gasconade

R. (9.¥.), the prinecipal stream in the co. (Hist.
laclede, 114)

/

Gascondy (Osage) geskand:
A p.0o. in s.w, Jefferson T. on the Gasconade R., and the
R.I. R.R. It was a considerable summer resort at one
time, It would seem to be & recent and rether clumsy
coinage from the name of the river, perhaps with a faint
reccllection of the Freneh province of Gascony.
(g&g. 191073 Maps 1913f; E.M. Zevely)

/ N
Guscozerk (Fulaski) g ®skozavK
A highway settlement in w. Liberty T. The name is ob-
vicusly & combination of the names Casconade and Ozark.
It is, of course, in the Ozarks and near the Casconade H.

(G.M., Reed)

Gebler (Casconade) %EM*
A discontinued p.o. in Roark T. Named for W.S5., Gebler, a

pioneer who est. a store there. (P.G., 1888-1901; Maps
1904, 1936; Baton, 169) & !

Georgetown School (Osage)
In Crawford T. Named for George Boyse, farmer.
(B.A. Gaume)

**Gibson Township (Gasconade)
Laid off in 1822 from Clark T. snd later discontinued.
The origin of the name could not be discovered.
(Hist. Franklin etc., 626)

Ginger Ridge School (NMiller)
In Equality T. Much wild ginger grew in early days near
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the school, which is built on a ridge. (John Harrison)

Gluize (Miller)
See COrand Auglaize

Glavin School (Osage) @ l=vam
In n. Benton T. A family neme. (John Peters)

Claze (¥Miller)
See CGrand Auglaize

Glaze Township (Miller)
The s. T. formed in 1838. A eorruption of Augleize.
Nemed for the creek (g.v.).(Sechultz, 16)

Glenco l=ke (Osage)
In n.e. Jefferson T. An srtificial lake developed by
Oscar Herkert, an official of the Glenco Distilleries in
Kentucky, end named by him for his company. The name of
the company was doubtless taken from Clencoe, Scotland,
famous for Scoteh whiskey. (F.A. Schaeperkoetter)

*Glenn (Phelps)
Nothing could be learned of this place. (P.G. 1886,1887)

**Glenn's Landing (Osage)
At the mouth of the Osage R. It was doubtless located
at what is now the town of GCasconade. Tne origin of the
name could not be determimed. (Coues's note, 570; Map
of ¥Mo. E. in Massey; Geo. Schneider)

Glenwood Baptist Churech ixillor)
Org. 1901. 1In Saline T. A deseriptive name.
(Schultz, 83; Dave CGraham)

Goodmans (Miller)
An abandoned station on the Mo. Puc., in the n., part of
Saline T. Also known as Coodman's Spur. Numed for
Capt. Joseph Goodmen, who owned a large farm here. The
R.R. built a spur here for the convenience of Capt.
Goodmen and his mneighbors. (Priest Allee; Jonn Ferguson;
Maps 1904, 1914)

Goodman's Spur (Willer)
See Goodmans

Gospel Ridge School (Pulaski)
In Cullen T. 8o named because of its location on a ridge
and the fact that it was used for church services.
(Thos. J. Cein; W.¥. Petty)

Gott Christian or "New Light" Chureh (Miller)
An sarly church known as "Hew Light" denomination, ¢ mi.
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n. of Brumley. It was org. in 1870 and numed for Jesse
Gott, who donated 15 acres for the church and graveyard.
(Jus. W. Dinwiddie)

Gottschall School (Fhelps) oo tfo|
In n. Arlingtoun T. Namea for one of the first settlers
who donated lund for the school. (Thomas A. Young)

Gourd Creek (Phelps)
A small tributary of Little Piney Creek in Cola Spring
T. Nemed for the many wild gourd vines thers.
{Frank Groves)

Gourd Creek Cave (Phelps)
In Cold Spring T. On Courd Creek (g.v.) for which it is
named. (Frank Groves)

Grace School (Casconade)
In n. Bourbois T. Named for a Mr. Grece who donated the
land. (0.F., Scheel)

/ AY

*Grand Auglaize Creek (Miller) D%‘!el
A tributary of the Iske of the Czarks formed by the Dry
Auglaize and the Wet Auglaize. It rises in Camden Co.,
and though it is not the largest tributary, it forms the
largest arm of the lake. Often Cramnd CGleize, Crand
Glaze, Glaize, or Claze. Schultz says it is marked
"R. Grande Glaize™ on & French map dated 1802 in the
ILibrary of Congress. Auglaize is a French phrase meaning
"at the clay" or "at the loam™. The French word for
loam or clay is now spelt glase, (potter's earth). There
is much clay near the headwaters of the ereek. In the
spring of the year, whnen the waters rise, they sre as red
&8s blood. Probably the early Frenchmen who numed it, saw
i: a:gfnis stage. (Senultz, l4; Jas. W. Dinwiddie;

tt

Grund Glaize (Miller)
See CGrund Auglaize

Grange Store ((Osage)
See Flora

Cranny Baker céve (Phelps)
In n.w. Miller T. Nameua for the wiaow of the {irst
settler in this section. (Thomas A. Youang)

Granny Buker Graveyard (Phelps)
In n.w. Miller T. Cf. OCranny Beker Cave. (Thos.A.Young)

Crayson School (Phelps) &7¢3°M
In Cold Spring T. A family name. (Frenk Groves)
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Gray Township (Caseconade)
lLaid off in 1822 and later discontinued. Named for a
Cray family. (Hist. Franklin ete., 626; W.F.Strehlman)

Greenbush Sechool (Phelps)

In Cold Spring T. The neme is descoriptive. (FPrank
Grover )

Creen Ridge Baptist Church (Miller)
Org. 1868, In Saline T. near Olean. The name is des-

eriptive of its situation. (Sebultz, 8Y; Hist. Cole ete.
580; Priest Allee) S

Gremp Cave (Pulaski)

In Union T. Named for Josepnh Gremp, the owner.
(¥.T. Andres)

Crovedale (Maries)
A discontinued p.o. in e. Jefferson T. The name is

deseriptive of the location. (P.G. 1876-1910; Map 1913;
Everett King)

Gum Creek (Miller)
A tributary of the Osage R. from the n. between Seline

and Lick Creeks. There are many gum trees along its
banks. (Geol. Miller, 15; James Wright)

**Cussie (Miller)
An abandoned village in Glaze T. on the Osage ¥, The
origin of the name could not be determined. It is

g:g:?bly from the feminine christian name. (Neps 1914,

Hackney Diggings (Miller)
See Gageville

Hadley (Maries)
Ia Jefferson T. A villsge named Tor Herbert 5. Hadley,
Governor of Mo. 1908-1912., Fommerly Heck P.0. named for
Valentine Heck, the storekeeper. The name was changed
after the p.o. was discontinued. The naeme was changed
Just after Geo. Hadley's election because tne Heck
family had moved away. (R.M. '06; Mups 1904, 1915;
P.G., 1901-1904; Everett King; Johm Terrill)

Hale School (FPhelps)
In ¢, Meramee T. A fumily neme. (M.¥. Malone)

Haley Bend School (Pulaski)
In the s.e. corner of the co., on a bend of the Gasconade

R. Named for the Haley family who owned the land.
(Robert Page)
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**Halloway (Gasconade)
A diseontinued p.o. Nothing could be lesarned of this
place. (P.C. W1837)

Hamby School (Casconade)
In 8. Brush Creek T. A family name. (louis Lendwehr)

Hamilton Cave (Phelps)
In we Spring Creek T. Also known as Lawson Cave for a
former owner. Named for the present owner.
(#.E. Dunean)

Hamilton School (Pulaski)
In w. Unlon T, A family name. (Thos. J. Cain)

Haneock (Pulaski)
A village in e, Tavern T. on the Frisco R.R. Laida out
in 1869, The place was first known as Iron Summit be-
cause there is ilrom ore there and it is on one of the
highest points in the co. Named for Jap Hancock, an
early oitizen. (P,G. 1876, 1886f; Hist. Laclede, 118,
151; W.M. Petty; Thos. J. Cain)

Hanging Rock Brameh (Miller)
See Hanging Rock Creek

Hanging Rock Creek (¥iller
Zee Humphrey's Cresek

Hanley Cave (Phelps)
A smull gave in n. Liberty T. . family name.
(w.2. Duncan)

Hanna (Pulaski)
A p.o. in n. Roubldoux T. Named for Senator Mark Hanmna,
who had become famous for menaging the presidential cam-
paign of President VcKinley. The p.o. was established
énc u;xt ear after MeKinley's deatn. (P.C. 190zf;
oga .ed '

Harbison School (Miller)
In Saline T. Named for Willism Harbison, who owned the
lana. (Dave Graham)

Hermony Church (Miller)

In Eguality T. The church has burned down ana been dis-
organized. The building was used by both Baptists and
Methodlists. The two congregetions are said to have got
elong always in harmony, hence the nsme. Originally
each denominstion hed its own church building. They
were known as the Flatwoods churches., Flatwoods Baptist
Church was org. in 1872 end Flatwoods Methodist Church
somewhat later. They were soc nemed probebly because they
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stood in wooded flats. (Hist. Cole ete., 580; E.A.
Condra; Jas. K. Pruitt; J%Esc Erockmaen) '

Harmony School (Miller)
Near Harmony Chureh and named for it. (Jas. R. Pruitt)

Harmony Township (Pulaski)
Org. probably in 1834, Now discontinued. Obviously an
ideel name. (Hist. laclede, 114)

Harrison Schocl (Phelps)
In n.w. Dawson T, Named for Everett Harrison, who aonat-
ed the land. (Mrs. Adolph Nickles)

Hawkeye (Miller)
An abandoned village and p.o. in s.w. Riehwoods T, John
Keith built a store there and named the plsce Hawkeye
probably because of the distance one can see from the
place. It is the highest point in the co. (P.0. 1895~
1897; G. Schultz)

Hawkeye (Pulaski)
A p.o. in the n.w. corner of the c¢o. It is s0 named be-
cause from its high position one can see for a long
distance. (P.C. 1886f; Robert Page)

Pawkins (Pulaski)
A discontinued p.o. in Liberty T. Also known locally
as Punkin Center, a specimen of local humor. The origin
of the name, Hawkins, eould not be determined.
(P.G. 1910-1925; G.¥. Lane)

Heyden (Maries)
A p.0. in Dry Creek T. WNamed for Hayden Copeland, the
first postmaster. (P.C. 1691f; Maps 1913, 1922, 1936;
John Terrill)

Hay Hollow (Maries)
In s.w. Boone T. on Sugar Creek. Early settlers put up
prairie grass from this hollow for hay. (N. Prater)

Hay Hollow School (Maries)
Ia s.w. Boone T. Numea for Kﬁy Hollow (g.!o), in which
it is located. (Abandoned) (N. Prater)

Heek (Maries)
See Hadley

Heckmen School (Osage)
See Bend School

Heckman's Island (Casconade)
In the Gasconade R. in Boulware T. Named for the owner.



(#.F. waldecker)

Held's Island (Casconade)
In the Gasconades k. between Boulware 7. and Riehlsnd T.
Nemed for the owner. (H.F, Waldecker)

Heln (Pulaski)
A station on the Friseo R.R. in n.w. Union T. Named for
the man who entered the luna. (K,¥.; Thos. J. Cain;
W.M. Petty)

‘Hermann (Gasconade) haman
A wown on the Missouri R. in hoark T. Hermann was settled
.. ana lalda out by the "Germun Setilement Association of
Pniladelphia™ Nov. &, 18567, on which date the name of the
town was discussed and this decision was reached: "That
the city to be built on the land bought by the Cerman
Settlement Association should receive the name of
Hermann™. The p.o. est. 1l840. Numed for the German hero,
Herman, usually known as Arminius, (17 B.C.-&1 A.D.) who
defeated the Romans in the Alps. (P.G. 1u55f; Yaps
18456f; Sauer, 166;3§%, Oaz., 116; Raton, 169; L.%., Robyn;
Ene. Brit., V II, )

Hickory Grove Christian Church (Maries)
In Jochason T. The original bullding was located in the
midst of a hickory grove. (J.P., Hart)

Hickory Crove School (Puleski) .
In Liverty T. Named for the grove of hickory nut trees
in which it is located. (G.¥. Reed)

Hickory Point Baptist Chureh 'Miller)
Near Hickory Pcint Christian Chureh (g.v.)

Hickory Point Christisn Church (¥iller)
11l mi. 8. of Tuscumbia. Schultz says est. 1849. Hist.
Cole «tc. says est. 1878, It is locsuted on & "point® of
sand on whieh are hickory trees. (C.B. Bass)

Hickory Peoint School (Miller)
Near the Hickory Point churches and named for %them.
(C. B. Bass)

Hiekory Point School (Phelps)
In #.e. Arlington T. HNamed for its location om a hill
covered with hickory mut trees. (¥.E. Duncan)

Hicks Senool (Miller)
Near St. Anthomy. A family name., (E.M. Durham)

Hicks School (Pulaski)
In a. Tavern T. A family name. (Robert Page)



High Gate (Maries)
A p.o. in s.e. Jefferson T. Named by a Mr. Kinsey for
tne section of london from which he came. (P.G. 18856f;
Everett Xing; Maps 1680f)

Highgrove (Maries)
A discontinued p.o. in Johnson T. The nume is deserip-
tive of the location. (P.0., 1867-1904; Maps 1875, 1680
1904, 1913; Everett Xing

Highgrove School (Maries)
In Johnson T, The name is descriptive of the locatvion.
(Everett Kiag)

Highlend Sehool (Gusconade)
In e. Bourvois T. A deseriptive mame. (0.¥., Scheel)

Righ Point Baptist Church (Osage)
In Iinn T. The name is descripitive of the silte.
(John Peters) A

High Point School (Pulaski)
In n.e. Union 7. The nume is descriptive of the loca-
tion. (Thos. J. Cain; W.¥. Tetty)

Hilton School (Pulaski) .
In Liverty T. A family name. (G.M. Reed)

Einkle (Pnelps)
L p.o. in Dewson T. Named for Churles Hinkle, itne first
postmaster. (P.G. 1915f; Mrs. Adolph Nickies |

Hinton School (Gesconads)
In Censan T. Nemed for the Hianton femily. (Mrs. Edwsrd
Snelton)

Hirsche School (Fhelps) F\sj‘
In Rolla T. A family name. (Prunk Groves)

Hochstetter School (Phelps)
In s.w. Spring Creek T. A femily name. (¥.T. Freeman)

Hoecker (Miller)
4 discontinued p.o. in n. Jim Henry T. on the ®.I. E.R.
and the Osage R. Est. 19028, Nemed for James Hoecker,
first postmaster. Formerly called Brouses Bend for
Thomas Brouse, who entered a tract of land along the
Csage R, in 1837. (Schultz, 82; C. Schultz)

Holder 3echool (Miller)
7 mi. s.w. of Eldon., A family name. (Jas. K. Pruitt)
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Holy Trinity Cathollc Church (Maries)
In ¥iller T. at Brinktown. Named for tne Holy Triamivy.

Honey Springs Schceol (Miller)
In Glaze T. There is a small spring nearby, out novahing
élse about the Lume could be dlscovered. (E.i. Conura;
Judge Brockman; Mrs. Spearman)

/

Honseville (Muries) hamsvI
In Spring Creek T. A store named for Robert Honseé, who
formerly owned it. Formerly known as Bert for Bert
Allen, the first postmaster. (R.M, 1936; P.C. 1890~
1899; Everstt King)

Hooker (Pulaski)
A village in n.e. Cullen T. on the Big Piney K. Named
for & man who, at one time, owned most of the laund here.
(P.G. 1901f; Thos. J. Cain; W.¥. Peity)

Hope (Osage) ha P
A p.o. in n.e. Crawford T. Also known as Boegers Store
for Simon Boeger who put up the first store building in
1859. An ideal mname. (P.0. 1876f; Osage Dir., 18;
Hist. Cole etec., 682; John Peters)

Hopewell Chureh of Christ (¥iller)
In Osage T. Org. about 1885. An ideasl name. (R.A.
Helton )

\

Hopewell Schnool (Pulaski)
In e. Piney T. Obviously an ldeal name.

Hopkins Spring (Phelps)
See Wiikins Spring

Hoppe School (Gasconade)
In w. Riehlund T. A family neme, (G.H. Caughell)

Horseshoe Bend School (Osage)
See Bend School

Horseshoe Cave (Miller)
1/4 mi. w. of Aurora Cave. It is a horseshoe-shaped
tunnel with two openings. (John Stark)

Howell School (Miller)
i1mi, s. of Ulmen. A family nsme, (Jas. W. Dinwiddie)

flumboldt (Pulaski) :
A villege in e. Tavern T. One mi. n. of Crocker. Aband-
oned before 1869. Numed for « ¥r. Humboldt who owned a
store there. (Map 1873; Thos. J. Cain)
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Hunphrey's (Maries)
A store in w. Boome T. near the head of Little Tavern
Creek. Numed for the storekeeper. Formerly Tavern p.o.
for Little Tavern Creek. (P.G. 1686-1932; Mups 1404f;
Everett EKing; N. Prater)

Humphrey's Christian Chureh (Miller)
Org. 1859, Near Capps. Named for the creeck on wihich it
1‘ located. (Lci’io Bﬁrtﬂn} :

Humphrey's Creex (Miller)
A tributary of the Osage H. in Osage T. A family name.
Also xknown as Hanging Rock Creek and Huuging Rock Branch
for tae locally faumous hanging rock at its mouth of the
g;:g:)a. (Coues, 373; Meek's Map; L.A., Bartoam; Tom
I

Hymen Eranch (uiller)
See Whalen Branch

“*Iberia (Miller) at burje
A town in s. Richwoods T. There was a store there about
1858 and a p.o. as early as 1851 (probably earlier).
Iberia is the aneient nume for Spain. The tradition
that the town was nemed by Civil War veterans for New
Iberia, loulsiena, where they had been stationed, is
¢learly erroneous. Iberis appears on meps of lio. 1844
and 1945 and in Jefferson City newspapers 1842 and
1860, It was originally called Rocktown for the large
rocks fringing the tosn. At ome time it was known as
Qakhurst. It was also known as Big Richwoods, because
the surroundaing land is of excellent quality and has a
growth of timber larger than in most of ithe nearby
country. Misspelt Ibernia in Handbook Mo. The nume may
of course have been borrowed f[rom New Ilverie or from
Iberia Purisn, la., at an esurlier date. It is ulso
found in Ohio. (8ehultz, 16, 16, 78, 174; Hist. Cole
ete., 961, D42; Suuer, 48; Colton 1845; Comerd VIII, o4é;

gg bell 1974; Mo. Gez.; Handbook ko., 1vd; Geol. mo.,
/

Idumesa Baptist Churenh (Pulaski) arcdumia
In e. Liberty T. Org. 1872. ldumea is another nume for
the land of Edom or Hsau, from which came the sncestors
of Eing Herod. It seems & strunge name for a chureh,
put its choice may be explained by the fumous &3rd
chapter of s bDegluning "who is this that cometh
from Edom, w dyed garmenis f{rom Dozran?" -- & propheey
taken as referriag to Christ. (Hist. laclede, 149;
gen. 36: &, 9)
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Immaculste Conception Catholic Chureh (Osege)
At Ioose Creek (town). Est. 1839, Immaculate Conception
refers to the supposed immaculate conception or birth of
the Virgin, It is & common nume for Catholie¢ churches.
(Hiet. Cole ete., 687; Rev. Wenry Cooper)

Immaculate Conception Catholie Chureh (Phelps)
In St. Jeames. Org. 1869. A stock name for Catholie
ehurehes. It refere to the suppused immaculste con-
ception or birth of tne Virgin. (Rev. 5.P, Stoeking)

Independence Baptist Chureh (Pulaski)
On Highway 66 in w. Liberty T. An ideal neme. (G.M.Reed)

Indian Creex (Maries)
A tributary of the Gasconade Y. in Jeckson 7. Its mouth
1; n:ur Inadien Village for which it is named. (Everett
King

Indizn Creek (Osage)
See Emith's Creek

Indien Creex (Osage)
Another Indlan Creek. A tributery of the Casconade R. ia
we. Jefferson T. This section was thickly populated with
Indisns. Arrowheads are still plowed up in guantities.
(Tom Walker)

Indian Creek School (0Osage) :
In Jefferson T. Nemed for Indian Creek (g.v.) on which
it is located. (Tom Walker)

Indian Yord (Meries)
See Indian Town

Indien Town (Meries)
The site of an early villege of Shawnees 2nd Delswares,
from whom it wee doubtless named, on the Casconede R,,
@. of Vienna. Also known as Indian Ford a2nd Indien
Viliage. (Hist. Cole ete., 587; Everett King)

Indisn Villege (Yaries)
See Indian Town

Iron Road (Phelps)
From Meramec Iron Works in Phelps Co. %o Hermann on the
Missouri R, in CGasconede Co. &0 called becuuse iron was
hsuled over it. Also known ae Olu Iromn Road. (Bauver,l154)

Iron Summit (Pulaski)
See Hanoook



Tsbell Station (Osage) 17 be l
A p.0. On the Mo. Pae., R.H. in Lian T, Named for
Zachesriah Tebell, who was a citizen of the town and a
representative of Osage Co. in the legislature 1852-1856.
Also known es keknight for Josiah McKmignt, early sheriff
and ecollector. (P.G. 1867f; Osage Dir., 25; Hist. Cole
ete.,, 683; Eaton, 607; John Peters)

Island School (Gasconade)
In w. Brush Creek 7. It stands on land in the fork of
Dry Fork Creek and Bourbeuse E. whieh suggestea an
Islund. (louis Landwehr)

Jackson Township (Maries)
The n. townshlp. Nemed for Jackson Terrill wiho was pre-
slding judge when the township was formed. (Everett
King; Jonn Terrill)

Jackson Townsnip (Osage)
The w, Lownsnip., Named [or Pres. Anurew Jackson (loazv-
o7). Org. loéei. (E.M. Zevely; Hist. Cole ete., v49)

**Jacobs (Phelps)
Wothing could be learnea of this pluec.(P.G. iv0l=-1910)

Jefferson Township (Maries)
The n.e. township. Nemed for President Tnomes Jefferson,
1801-16809. (Everett King; Jobn Terrill)

Jefferson Township (0sage)
The s.e. township. Nemed for President Thomss Jefferson,
180}-1809. Org. 1ls4l. (E,¥, Zevely; Hist. Cole etec.,
645

Jeffries Sehool (Miller)
Cne mi. 8. of Kaiser. A family nsme. (J. Burton)

xxJenkins Spring (Maries)
See Feaster Spring

»**Jerome (Phelps) 6153“ om
A summer resort settlement and Pp.o. in arlington 7. on
the Frisco R.R., laid out by W.¥. CGreeley undier the
Ggirectvion of Gen. Jonm C, Fremont im 1867 when the R.R.
wus finisned ©0 this point, and naumed Fremont Towan ia
his honor. It bad a population of mnearly 1O0V irom 1857
to 1609, but when the H.R., was built further, tne town
was practically deserved. The [irst settlers were
Cetnoiies. (P.G. lwiof; Ene. g; . Mo., 1II, «o0;
Taylor; Col. Charles L. Woous)
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Jersey (Osage)
A discontinued p.o. in 8. Jefferson T. The origin of the
namwe could not be determined. It is a stock name in the
U.S., found alone or compounded in at least twelve other
states besides Missouri. (P.3. 1887-1902; Map 1915)

Jim Henry Ceve (Willer)
Not far from Jim Henry School. It is a cavity big enough
to hold ap ordinary house under a large rock. It is
pemed for Jim Henry, the Indien, who lived in this cave
for many years. Also known as the Nockhouse.
(John Rush)

Jim Heanry Creek (Miller)
A tributary of the Osage R. in the T. of the same nume

(go¥.).

Jim Yenry Yethodist Chureh (Killer)
In the T. of the same nume (g.v.). Org. about 1840.
Also known as Rush Chapel for The Push family.
(John Rush)

Jim Henry School (Miller)
In the T. of the same nume (g.¥.), for which it is
named. (John Rush)

Jim Henry Township (¥Willer)
The n.e. T, In 1856 Saline T. was divided snd Jim Heary
T, was formed. It wes numed for & moted Inuiun chief,
Jim Henry, who lived in & cave named for nim in this
section in eurly days. (Hist. Cole etc., HOU)

Johnson School (Miller)
4 mi. 8. of Iverfa. A family neme., (E.¥, Durham)

Johnson Station (Gasconede)
An abandoned village in e. Cenman T., e. of Nosebud.
Nemed for Dr. Johnson, who lived there and owned the
lund. There is still a R.R. siding there. (¥ap 1913;
¥.F. Strehlman)

Jonnson Township (Maries) ;
The s.e. township. Named for Thomas Jefferscm Johnsom,
an early representative im tne legislature. (Everett
King; John Terrill)

Jones Creek (Pulaski)
A small tributery of the GCasconaede R. in Union T. A
fafily name. (Cempbell's; Thos. J. Cain)

Judge (Osage) -
A discontinued p.o. in Crawford T. numed in honor of
Judge A.J. Branson, an esrly co. judge, who lived there
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and owned mucn of the laad. (P.G, 19lv-l9z2z; Maps 19195,
19z8; 1936; E.M. Zevely)

Jusueman School (Gaseonade) CJS u o( Lman
In n.e. Brush Creek 7. Nemed for Herman Juedemsn who
uonated the lend. (krs. Bdward Shelton)

/o

Kaintuek Baptist Chureh (Phelps) KeM{Ak
In ¢. Liverty T. Named for Kal ntuck Hollow (g.¥v.), im
whieh it 1s located. (Col. Charles L. Woods)

Keintuck Hollow (Pnelps)
In . Liberty T. The first setilers were rrom Xentueky,
and this popular proaunciation of the state name attached
itsell to the neighborhood. (Col. Charles L. Woods)

Kaintuck School (Phelps)
Ia ¢. Liberty T. HNamed for Kaelntuck Ffollow (g.v.), im
whieh it ie located. (Col. Charles L. Woods)

Kaiser (Miller)
A village p.o. in w. Claze T. A family name. During
the #World Yar an unsuccessful effort was made to change
the nume Lo Suecess, obviously an idesl naume, (D.GC.
1910f; Maps 1910f; Jonn Ferguson)

Keetntown (Miller)
A village in e, Glaze T. Nemed for William Keeth, the
first storexeepeéer. Also known as Dentown for Ben
lutrall, who kept a store there ai one time. (Tom XKeeth;
G. Sehulta). :

Kelly Bauk (Pnelps)
In w. Mersme¢ T. WNamed for W.C. Xelly, the owner,
(M.¥. Balone)

Kempker School (Miller)
Near Mary's Home. Nemed for John H, Xempker, who owned
the lund. (Hermun Schulte)

Kenner School (Maries)
In Dry Creek 7. Named for the Kenner family.
(Everett Eing)

Kern Sehool (Osage)
In w. Jackson T. Nemed for Theodore Yern, farmer,
(John Feters)

Keyes Sehool (Miller)
&£ mi. . of Ulman, Nemed for A.C. Keyes, who donated
the land. (C.BE. Bass)
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Kiadridge ((sage) kI‘JTL(Jﬁ
A discontinued p.o. in Craewford T. nsmea for Cepteln
J.K. Kidd, who was one of ihe early settlers tnere. The
plece is on a riuge. (Cempbell's Caz., <12; F.G. 1876;
Lok, Zevely)

Kiehl School (Casconade) kil
In s.w. Boeuf T, Named for the Kiahl foamily.

(7.2, Lengeberg)
» hdﬂku&
Kinderhook (Maries)
Cn the GCasconade R. It was the first p.o. in the co.
Near lane's Preirie. It was founded about 1857 during
Pres. Van Buren's administrution end nemed for nis birthe

place and nome, Kindernook, N.Y. (Fisher's Ya 1657'
dist. Cols ele., 595; Emc. Erlt. XXII, 968, iath

**¥Ring's Bluff (Miller)
On toe Osage HB. 4 mi. below Tuscumbla. It is sulu (O be
40 feet high with all but & feel of its face under water.
Thne origin of the name could not be determined. (Ceol.
Miller, 23; E.A. Condra; Judge Brockman)

Klindt Sehool (killer)
See Pleasunt Ball School

Klinger Cave (Miller)
Near the neaa of Litile Saline Cr. oa Edgar Vernon's
farm. Also spelt Clinger Cave. Named for a kir. XKlinger,
who bousns 40 acres lacluulug viue cave as & busiuess
venture. (Qeol. Miller, 12; McCamse, 42; J.X. Vernonm)

Klug Cave (Miller)
Ia Jim Heary T. on the Osage k. Nawmed 10r tne Klug
family, tne owners. (L.A. pbarbon)

Enobview (Pnelps)
See hosati

Fnotwell Iron Works (Phelps)
Zee Czark Iron Works

Knotwell Presbyterian Church (Phelps)
Ia Arlington T. Abandoned. Nemed for Knotwell Iron
works (g.v.). (¥.E. Duncen)

Knotwell School {Thelps)
In ¢. Arlington T. Naumed for Kanotwell Iron Works (g.v.)
nezr which 1t 1s located. (W.IZ. Duncan)

Koelling's Island (Gasconade) kel (e
In w. Boulware T. in the Cusconade I, Named for the
owner. (H.F. Waldecker) ’
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Foeltztown (Osage) kKeltstavn
A Germen settilement in Jackson T. Named for the first

pos?uastor, August Koeltz. (P.C. 1867f; Hist. Cole ete.,
685

Koeltztown Leke (Osage)
See Argyle Lake

Xoenig (Osage) Kontg

A discontinued p.o. in Jeiferson T. HNamed {or Gentry

C. King, mercnsnt. Koenig was tne Germen form of his

neme. (P,G., 1895-191v; Baton, 337; E.M. Zevely)

Kroeger School (0Osage) KYig?¥
In Jerferson T. A femily neme. (Mrs. Edward Snelton)

Krueger ¥ord (Osage)
Across the Gasconade R, A family nawe. (A.A, Sehmudde)

**lLacon (Maries) lekon
A discontinued p.o. in Boome T. At different times it
was moved and was located "all over the township®. The
origin of the neme is unknown. (P.Q, 1867-1887; Maps
1865, 1867, 1873, 1880)

Lacy School (Naries)
In Johnson T, Nomed for Willium Iacy who donated the
land for the school. (J.P. Fart)

ILake Besnton (Miller)
tee Lake of the (Qzarks

Leke MeClurg (Miller)
See Lake of the Ozarks

»lake of the Ozsrks (Miller)
One of the largest artificial lakcu in the world, It is
partly im Miller Co. It is formed by the Osage Dam in
¥iller Co. across the Osage K. By aev of the Gen.
Asssenbly of Mo. it was named Lake Benvon for Wo.'s
statesman, Thomas H. Benton (1l778-1808), who was U,S5.
Senator from Mo. for oU years. J.¥. Vinceat, edivor of
the Linn Creek heveille, maue an eifort to nave ib
ealled Lake MeClurg aiver Gov. J.W. MeClurg (b.isls),
who was governor of Wo. loob-lo7yu. The nale vcesignated
by the builders, "The Lake of the QZarks” has come iuto
popular use. The Lske is 1ad mi. long una has aboub
1900 mi., of shore line. 1t is loeateu in the foothills
of the Ozark Mts. for which it is nsmed. (Hist. Chariton
oj Sehultz, 19; MeCanse, 76; Hist. Chariton -l
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Lake Ozark (Miller)
A p.0. est. 1902 on s.w. side of the Osage Dam, named by
Frank Andrews, the first postmaster, for the lake which
it is near. Also known as lakeside for e time (1929-31).
(Sehultz, 15; MeCanse, 76)

lakeside (Miller)
See lake Ozark

Lamb Bank (Phelps)
An iron mine in s.e. Meramee T. Namea for Thomas lamb,
the owner. (M.¥. salone)

Lambeth School (Maries)
In s. Boone T, A family name. (N. Prater)

lane (Osage)
A discontinued p.o. named for Jasper lLane, who was a
landowner there. In Crawford T. ‘gogc 1?04"'1918;
Map 1922, 1904; E.M. Zevely; B.A. Caume)

Lane's Prairie (Maries)
A p.0. in s.e, Joefferson 7. P.0, est. in 1851. Numed for
Charles lLane, who settled there in 1826. (Hist.Cole ete.,
589; Campbell,345; Mo.Gez.,156; P.0. 1870f; J.F. fart)

Lange School (Gasconade) [ ¢ |
In w, Richlend T. Named for the Lange Tamily, on whose
farm it wes built. (Z.H. Mertens)

Lange Store (Gesconsde)
A discontinued p.c. Nemed for E. lange, Sr., who bulls
a .tar:“ﬂ)mrc in 1888. (P.C. 1886-1897; Hist. Franklin
ete.,

. /. N\

laguey (Pulaski) lekwe
A peo. in s.w. Cullen T. A family name. (P.G. 1900f;
Fobert Page)

Laurel Ridge School (Miller)
In Franklin T. Nemed by Miss Texana Curty, the first
teacher. It stanis on a ridge. (Jonn X. Bunch)

Lawson Cave (Phelps)
See Hamilton Cave

Lawson School (Miller)
S mi. w. of Tuseumbla. A family name. (John Jones)

lay High School (Osage)
In Benton T. Nemed for tie lehigh family. By a local
confusion the form lay was substituted for Lehigh.
A.A. Schmudde; B.A. Gaume)



Lead Creek (Miller)
- In the s.w. oor. of Jim Henry T. lLead has been mined in
many parts of Jim Henry T. (Mup 1873; G. Schultz)

**Leander (Gasconade)
In the ¢. of the co. e. of Weollam., In n.e. Cansman T.
¥o. Gaz., 157, lists it ae a p.o. in 1860. Nothing
coula learned of this place. (Maps 1865, 1867; 1873)

/
lLeboeul (Osage) ‘Lbﬂ{
A discontinued p.o. in w, Jefferson T. HNamed by Ceoc. le
Fevre, the first postmaster, for the ereek ( .v.) on which
it was located. (P.G. 1889-1918; Maups 1904, l 15, 1915;
E.M. Zevely; J.R. Garstang; Sam Robertson)

Leboeuf Creek (Osage)
A small tributary of the Gasconade K. in Jefferson T,
Neamed for the lLeboeur family who lived on it.
(F.R. Garstang)

Leduc (Gasconade) L Ldn 3
A discontiaved p.o. in Bourbois T. Appears as loduc on
?%311880' Iedue ¥, means “the duke™. Named for an early

iy. (P.G. 1876-1895; Hist. Franklin ete., 682;
#illiems, o88; Littre; e.y%.frr’—‘ ! ’

Lee School (Pulaski)
in ¢. Tavern T. A family name. (Robert Page)

lenox Bank (Thelps)
S8ee De Camp Mine

Lenox Braneh (Miller)
In Richwoods T. Empties into Big Tavern Creeck. Named
for Wilson Lenox, who was elected representative to the
legislature in 1858. Also known as Gardnsr Branch, which
is a family name. Also known as Rabbit Hesd Branch. A
local yarn is told %o account for this name. A man
nemed Bailey particularly liked the hesd of a rabbit.
He shot & rabbit and his wife refused to eook the head.
He whipped her. (Hist. Cole ete., 539; Maps 1875f;
G. Schultz; Joan Ferguson; K.M. Durham)

*Leone (Pulaski)
"A town in contemplation im s.e. part of the co™.

(Hist. lmclede, 101, 191)

Liverty Christian Chureh (Maries) ‘
In Jefferson T. An ideal nume. Also kunown &s Old Frame

Churen. A deseriptive nume. (Joban Terrill)



Liverty (Cnureh of Christ) Church (Miller)
4 mi., 8. of Tuscumbia. Org. 1867. An ideal name.
Hist. Cole ete., O80)

Liverity Sehool (Maries)
In we Miller T. An ideal name.

Liverty School (Usage)
In Crawford T. An ideal name. (Joha Peters)

Liverty sSehool (Pulaski)
In n., Tavern T. An ideal name. (Robert Page)

Liverty Townsnip (Phelps)
In the we. part of the e¢o. Obvicusly =n ideal name,

Iiverty Township (Pulaski)
In the w., part of the co. Org. 1833. Obviously an ideal
name. (Hist. Laclede,114)

Lick Branch (Miller)
See Whalen Brench

Lick Creek (Miller) _ |
A tributary of the Osage R. from the n. between Gun Creek
and Litile Gravois Creek. Named for early artificial
deey licks on it. Artificial deer licks were "salted"”
sticks driven into the groumnd, flush with the surface.
(Cecl. Miller, 15; Meek's Map; Tom Clark)

Light (Maries)
A discontinued p.o. in s. Johnson T. Nameu fOT Klabe
Iight, who built the store and was the first postmester.
T.5. 1896-1928; Maps 1904f; Nverelt King; J.P. Hart;
A.T. Joyce)

Light Caves (Phelps)
In w, Niller T. There are two of them, sice by siae,
¥aaad)ror the Light family, who owned them. (Thomas A.
oung

Lindell (Maries)
A discontinued p.o. in s. Jefferson 7. Namea by Elijah
Jones, the rirst storekeeper and posimaster, {or the
Linuell Dry Goods Co. of St. louls with whom ne aia busi-
ness and had satisfactory deslings. (P.C. 1886-1915;
Meps 1904, 1913, 1922; Everett King)

Linn (OCsage)
The c¢o. seat,in Crawford T. Nemed Linnville for lLewis
F. Linn, (1796-1843) V.8, Sen. 1835-1843. Liaviile
appears only once in the co. records. It was soon
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shortened to Linn. (Hist. Cole etc., 645; Osage Dir.,
£2; Conrad, V, $0; E.M. ﬁovoﬁ; John Peters; 8t.

Chariton, 17)

Linn Township (Osage)
The n.w. townsnip nemed for lewis F. ILinn, U.S, Sen.
from MNo., 1859~1849. Org. 1841, (E.1., Zevely; Jonn
Peters; Hist. Cole ete., 647; Hist. Charitom, 17)

ILinnville (Csage)
See linn

Linnwood (Osage)
See Ryors

ILipscomb ¥11ll (Pulaski)
See Wheeler

Lisle (0Osage) |
See Lisletown

Tisletown (Osage) [a1]lavn
The first p.o. in the e¢o. in Washington T. on the left
bank of the Mariesa R, Named for its founder, Renjemin
Lisle, and at first known merely as Lisle. It never
prospered because Westphalis scon overshadowed it. The
town was long ago abandoned. A resort, known ss the
Mariosa Delta, is now on the spot. The Maries %, does
not fom a delta though there is & trianguler-shaped
plece of ground at its mouth which probably suggested
the name. Mariosa is a eoniraction of the names of the
Naries and Csage rivers., Sometimes written Muri-Osa. ‘
(F.G. 1800; Hist. Cole etec., 64z; Fisher's Map)

Little Bear Creek (Miller)
Heuwds in Glaze T, aund empties into the Csage R. It is
near and daistinotly smaller than Dear Creek (g.v.)

Little Berger (Gasconade)
A discontinued p.o. in Roark 7. near the head or Little
Berger Cr. (g.v.) for which it is obviously numeu.
(P.G. 1886-190T; Maps 1870f)

ILittle Berger Creek (Gasconade)
A tributary of Big Berger Creek (g.v.). Rises in
Casconade Co. Appears as Little Berger R. on Map 1873.

Little Berger River (Gasconeade)
S3ee Little Berger Creek

Iittle Dry Fork (Phelps)
A small tributary of Dry Fork in Dillon 7.
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Little ¥loek Baptist Chureh (Maries)
4 mi, n., of Vienna. Christ addressed his disciples in
one place as "Little Floeck". (Luke vii. 38)

Iittle Floek School (Maries)
In Jeckson T. Named for Little Floeck Baptist Church
(g.¥.) whien it is near.

Iittle Cravois (Miller) '
A villsge in s. FPranklin T. near the mouth of Little
Gravois Creek, for which it is obviously nameu. 16 was
& p.0. in 1874. (Map 1873; Cempbell, 569)

®vor aor®val

Little Cravois Creek (Miller) Qr ;B
A tributary of the Osage E. in Frenklin T., smelled than
Cravois Creek in Morgen Co. Grsvois is a Freneh word
meaning coerse plaster, rubbish, or rubbish of plaster.
It seems likely thet the eerly Frenchmen thought the
gravel of this stream suitable for rougn plaster. Mis-
spelt Crovoix in Handbook Wo. (littre?: Coues, 375;
Schultz, 14; Hendbook Mo., 195)

Little Yareis Creek (lMaries)
See Little ¥aries Creek

Little Veries Creek (Varies)
A tridbutary of the Maries R. (g.¥.) which rises in Maries
Co. Also known as Iittle ¥erais Cr. (Maps 1873f)

Little Veries Baptist Chureh (Maries)
located 6 mi. w, of Vienna. Nared for the streen near
wnich it is loceted. (Jonhm Terrill)

Iittle Piney (Phelps)
See Ogzark Iroa Works

ILittle Piney Creek (Phelps)
Rises in the extreme n. part of Texss Co., crosses the s.
part of Phelps Co., eand empties into the Gasconade R.
near Arlington. There are smull pine forests along its
\(agpcr oourr. It is distinetly smaller than Big Piney R.
M. Reed

Little Prairie (Phelps)
In s.w. 85t., James T. Doubtless nemed for its locatiom
on a small preirie. (Campbell's)

Little Richwoods (Miller)
See Watkins. Cf. Big Richwoods

Iittle Saline Creek (Miller) SSIW\
A tributery of Saline Creek in Fguality T. (g.v.)
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Iittle Tavern Creek (Miller)
Rises in Cole Co. and empties into the Osage R. just in-
side the ¥iller Co. liune across from the mouth of Big
Tavern Creek (g.v.). It is distinctly smasller than Big
Tavern Creek. (Maps 1875f)

little Tavern Creek (liller)
Another Litule Tavern Creek, tributary of Big Tavera Cr.
(ge¥.) in Osage T. It rises in Waries Co. (Maps 1873f)

lock's Mill (Osage)
See [oose Creek

locust Moumd (Mililer)
A discontinued p.o. in e. Saline T, about 2 mi. e. of
Spring GCarden. It was situated on a sort of mound, and
locust trees grew there, Schultz erroneously says it ise
an alternstive neme for Spring Garden. (P.G. 1870,
1876; Schultz, 16, 828; J.J, Pond)

lodue (Casconade)
See Ledue

Loehner Sehool (Osage) ,“m\; | 3
Iu VWashington T. A family name. (John Peters)

lois (Maries)
A pet. in n. Johnson T. est. in 1891 and discontinued in
1910, Named for e girl, Iois Cordsmeyer. Often known
as "Chinchbug" becsuse of the meny chinchbuges in the
neignoorhood. During the Civil War it was known as "The
Hill" becuuse of its location on a high place. It was
originally known aa "Bloomington”. It is not known why.
{r.G. 1891-1910; Maps 1904, 1913; Everett King; J.P,
naff, A.L. Joyece; G 5. Cordsmeyer; John Terrill)

Ione Star Baptist Church (Yaries)
About 2 miles s.e. of Vichy. An emblematic name,
(Jonhn Terrill) ,

lone Star School (Osage)
In Crawford T. An emblemstic name. (John Peters)

lone Star School (Pulaski)
In s.e. Union T. An emblematic name. (Mrs. A.S. Lick)

jone Ster Sehool No. 1 (Pulaski)
in n.e., Roubidoux T. An emblemmtic nsme, The "no. i"
is to distvinguish it from lone Ster School in Uniom 7.
(G.M., Reed)

long Branch (Maries)
Heads 10 mi. w., of Vienna und empties into the Iittle
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Maries. The name is descriptive. (Johm Terrill)

long Creek (Maries)
Heads near Belle anu empties ilnto the Cesconade E. The
aume was meant o be descoriptive. (John Terrill)

long Riuge School (Casco nade)
In n. Bourbolis T. The name is descriptive of tne loca-
tion. (0.F. Scheel)

Loose Creek (Osage) lus
A tridbutary of the Mo. K. Ioose is a pioneer corruption
of the French word for bear, L'Ours. Conard menticns
the fom, L'Ours, and it appears as such on maps 1865,
18745, st. Cole ctc. mentions the form L'Ourse. Pike
charted it "Beer E.", and it is still sometimes referred
o as Bear Creek. Coues, in a ft. note in his edition of
Pike ssys, "I suppose 'loose Cr.' to be a locse trunse
lation of F. R. & 1'0urs or a 1l'Ourse, according to
whether 1t was a he-bear or & she-bear which the French-
man who first numed the ¢r. killed there. In any event
this stream has given name to the village of Ioose Creek
anu to Bear Creek Isl., opposite its mouth."”
Ours - bear, Ourse - she-beur. (Coues's note, 370;
uist. Cole ete., 630; Osage Dir., 17; Littre; Rev. Henry

eoper

Ioose Creek (Osage)
A Pe0. in Linn T. One of the cldest towns in the co.
August Pickinesud, a Frenchmsn, entered the land in
1845, VWm. Muenks opened a store in 1845. The town was
l2id out by surveyor Bovie in 1870, It is named for the
stream of the same nume (g.v.) which it is near. 1t was
also known as Fussellville. It is not known why. IV
appears on maps 1665, 1870 as L'Ours Creek; same in
Conard. It is mentioned in Hiet. Cole ete. as L'Ourse
Creek. Tune plnoo was formerly known as lock's Mill for
a man neamed Look who owned & mill there. (P.G. 1503f;

2 l&éﬁt. Hist. Cole ete., 630; Osage pir., 17;
ard, V, 28; J.EH, rstané; Rev. Hemary Co oﬁer

* ¥loose Rouck (Ossage)
A discontinued p.o. No information coula be obtained

about this place. (P.G. 1887)

Tost Hill School (Cusconade)
In w. Boulware T. &So cnlled because it is on « lone
hill in the prairie, apparently lost from any rasnge of
nills. (H.F., Waldecker)

L'Ours Creek (Osage)
Ses ILooge Creek



L'Ourse Creek (Csage)
See loose Creek

Love Creek (Phelps)
A small tributary of Little Dry Pork in Dillon T. Named
for the love fumily. (Col. Charles L., Woods)

low Gap School (Pulaski)
In e. Cullen T. The school is loecated in & bDresk or gap
in the hills. (Mrs. 4.8, Lick) '

Iarton School (Miller)
? .10 e. ﬂf fu“ﬂlbﬂu. 'M for :oﬁo wwn, who owned
the lana. (L.A. Bartom) ,

Luystown (Osage) | wistaun
A discontinued p.o. in n.w. Crewford T. Named for
Aundrews Luys, who entered the lend where the village now
stands. (P.G. 1886-1918; Maps 1887f; QOsage Dir., 19)

Lyon (Pulaski)
See Richland

McCourtney Spring (Pulaski)
See Ebb and Flow Spring

MeDaniel School (Osage)
In Washington T. Numed for John J. MeDaniel, an early
presiding Jjudge of the co. court. (John Peters)

MeKinley School (Osege)
In Jefferson T. The district was formed about the time
Wm. MoKinley was elected president (1896). Vosholl and
Ryors, law partners, became very popular while campaign-
ing for MecKinley. BEach already had a town named for
him, and when McKinley was elected, this school was named
for him. (A.A. Scnmudde)

McKnight (Qasage)
See Isbell Station

McMinn School (Maries)
In Dry Creek T. Named for Robert MelMinn, lanaowner.
(G.¥. Cordsmeyer)

Macedonia (Phelps)
A discontinued p.o. in e. Miller T. Numed for Maceaonia
Churches (g.v.). (P.G. 1891-1919; C.D. Brewster)

Macedonia Baptist Church (Phelps)
In e, Miller T. Org. about 1890. Named for Macedonia,
the Roman province where the gospel was first preached in
Europe. (Acts xvi. 12; C.D. Brewster)



Macedonia Christian Church (Phelps)
In e. Miller T. Org. about 1890. Cf. Macedonia Baptist
Chureh. (C.D. Brewster)

Mace School (¥iller)
lmi. we of Iberia. A family nume. (C.B. Bass)

Madden Christian Chureh (Miller)
S mi. s. of Iberia. Named for the ladden family.
(EQMO mmﬂn)

Madden School (Miller)
dmi. s. of Iberia. A family name. (E.M. Durhem)

Munda (Casconade)
A discontinued p.o. which was locateda near the ¢. of the
co. Thne p.o. was first in the farmhouse of a Mr,
Tschappler. It was {irst named Zovar for Zoar Church
(4ov.) nearby. The muil was frequently missent to Zosr
so Nr. Tschuppler was allowed to chvouse a new name for
the p.o. He named it for his dsughter, Munaa. The place
no longer exists. (FP.C. 1899-1904; Map 1904; Collier)

Manhing School (Yiller)
In Saline T. Nemed for a pioneer family. (7.8, Hite)

**Manton (Maries)
A discontinued p.o. in n. Boone T. No trace of this
placs could be found. (I.C. 1867-1885; Map 1880)

Mareis (Varies)
See laries

Varais Creek (Osage, Maries)
See Maries River

**Margaret (Casconade)
A aiscontinued p.o. in 8. Clay 7. Nothing could be
learned of this place. (P.C. 1896-1904; keps 1904,1913)

l'aries (Maries)
A discontinued p.o. in w, part of the co. Shown as
Mareis on Fisher's map 18567. Obviously named for the
river. (P.G. 1886-190e; Map 1904)

. Maries County merIz  merct

karies Co. was originully part of St. louis Co. On Dec.
11, 1818, it became « part of Franklin Cc. mnu s0 reraine-
ed until Nov. &b, 1820, when it was joined to Casconaue
Co. When Pulaski Co. was formed in lEoo, it includea
part of Maries, and the rest remainea in Cascconade untii
Osage Co. was ersated in 184l including pert of Muries
Co. Naries Co. was org. Mar. 2, 1866. Oa the unorth is
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Osage Co.; on the west, Miller; on the south, Pulaski;
on the south and east, Phelps; on the east, Gasconade.
The co., 18 named for the two streams which head in it,
the Maries R. amnid the Little Maries (g.v.).

(Hist. Cole ete., 593, 595)

-Maries River (Maries, Osage) :
Rises in Maries Co. und flows into the Osage HR. in Osag
Co. It was formerly spelled Merais, which is doubtless
the original form. Marais is & French word meaning
marsh or swamp, and some of the Maries R. country is
marshy. Another explanation, evidently a mere "folk
etymology™, is that the stream was named for two French
girls called "Narie". This is seriously advanced by
Eaton und local informants, but no one has attempted to
identify the girls! Other spellings are River Maria,
Mary's R., and Mary's Creek, obviously folk etymologies.
Also known a8 Marais R., Marais Cr., Big Maries Cr.
(Eaton, 193; Hist. Cole etc., H9d; Coues's note, 571;
Ma c)l&O&‘at; Brown's ey L78; Wetmore; Littre; Everett
¥ing

Maries Township (Casconade)
Org. June 18, 1852 from the s.w. cor. of Gray T. It no
longer exists. Obviously nemed for the river (g.v.).

(Hist. Franklin ete., 627)

Mariosa Delta (Osage) TN ETLOSI
See Lisletown

Mary's Creek (Gascouade, Maries)
See Maries River (Wetmors)

Mary's Home (Miller)
A discontinued p.o. in e¢. Jim Heary T. Started when
Morgan and Jenkins built e store there in 1882 at about
the same time that St. Mary's Catholic Church was erect-
ed. The town is referred to as 8t¢. Wary Home in Cath.
e, Mar. 19, 1925, p. 3. The town was first known as
« Mary's. Confusion with mail for 8t. Maries in Maries
Co. ¢uused the change. Alsc known as Bobtown for Robt.
Bob) Morgan who donated the lamd for the church.
P.G. 1886~1918; Hist. Cole ete., O71; krs. H.H. Tellmen)

Mary's River (Maries, Osage)
‘See Maries River

Massey's Iron Works (FPhelps)
See lleramec Iron VWorks

Massman School (Osage) Vo SN AN
In ¢. Jackson T. A family neme., (John Peters)
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Mathis School (Fhelps) M e f3s
In ¢. Spring Creek T. Named for James Mathis, landowner.
(M.T. Preeman)

Matthews Prairie (Pulaski)
A prairie about 4 mi. 8q. in Union T. Nemed for the
family which owned it. (C.¥. Lane)

Mavais (Osage)
Perhaps an error of Hayward's for Mersis in Meries Co.)
(Haywerd P.C. 1855)

Maze Sechool (Pulaski)
In e. Cullen T. Nemed for Jumes Maze, who owned the
land. (Robert Page) ,

Medora (Osege) madors
See 5%. ‘u“n)

"Meramec Iron Works (Phelps)
In n.e. Meramec T. Also known us Massey's Iron Works
for Ben]J. Mazzey, who est. it several years before 18zé.
It was bought in 1826 by Thoma Jumes, who named it for
the Meramee R. (g.v.) or Meramec Spring at which it is
located. 1% was abandoned in 1873, although the furnaces
are still stending. This was the s. terminus of the
Iron Roed ‘%'!')' (Campbell's; st. Laclede, 627; 628;
Enc. Hist. Vo., IV, 324, 325; N.B., Cox, E.A., Branstetted)

7/

.Mersmee River (Phelps) 711tV Mm< k

Rises in Dent Co., flows n. and e. 150 mi. through

Crawford, Franklin, and St. louis Counties, and empties

into the WMississippi R. 20 mi. below St. louis. About

2 mi. of its course are inside of the e. boundary of

Phelps Co. It is variously spelled Meramec, Merasmae,

¥errimac, but the above spelling seems to have become

fixed. 1Imn 1700 Pather Graviorn??nnit Ro%tioas Lxv,

104, 108) mentions a rich lead mine or eagues

from the mouth of "la Rivire Visremigoua"which Thwaites

in a note (ibid, 265) says is the Werameec R. It is a

corruption of Ghe Indien nume which means "ecatrish river".

The spelling "Werrimac" and the promuncietion with final

~-maek Instead of -mek are doubtless due to association

with the Merrimac R. in Connecticut. (Maps 1837f;

ww:gs, &50; Enc. Hist. Mo., IV, 3&4; Iﬁ"'r; Gaumett,

P

~N

“ Meramee Spring (Phelps)
A meammouth clear spring in n.e. Meramee T. flowing as
mueh as 871,000,000 gallous per day. It is obviously
nemed for the Meramec R. (g.¥.) ianto which it empties.
(Hist. laclede, 625, MeCense, t4; N.B. Cox)
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Meramec Springs (Phelps)
In n.e. Merame¢ T. The place is now deserted, but be-
fore the iron furnaces closed in 18735 Meramec Springs
was a town of 500. Also known as Merimee. It is ob-
viously nsmed for Meramee Spring (g.v.). (P.C. 1901~
1915; Ene. Hist. Mo., IV, 324, 325; N.B. Cox)

Meremee Townsnip (Phelps)
In the s.e. part of the co. It was formed in 1857,
It is obviocusly named for the Weramee R. (g.v.), whieh
lies partly within its borders. (N.B. Cox

Merimec (Phelps)
3ee ¥erameec Springs

Merrimae River (Phelps)
See lieramec River

-Neta (Osage) mita
A PeO. in s.w. Jackson T, on the R.I. R.K. Neamea for
Keta Schreifer, a sister of the man who ownea tne lanag,
by John Terrill, attorney for the Rock Islana R.HK.
(P.G. 1904f; Maps 1904f; John Terrill)

Metcalf (Pulaski)
A discontinued p.o. in Cullen T. Named for H.P., Wetoalf,
the first postmaster. (P.C. 1891; G.W. Lane)

¥iles Schwol (Phelps) -
In Dawson T. Named for Williem Miles, who owned the
land. (Mrs. Adolph Nickles)

¥ill Creek (Miller)
A tributary of the Cramd Augleize below Brumley. At one
time there was a mill on it. (John Ferguson)

¥ill Creek (Miller)
See Brumley

¥ill Cresk (Phelps)
Rises in s. Liberty T. and flows B. into Litile Piney
Creek. There was fomerly a large mill at 1ts moutn and
sovora} along its course. (Maps 1875f; Taylor; W.E.
Duncen

¥illdamle United Brethren Church (Miller)
Two und one half mi. se. of Pleasant Mount. Org. 1887,
There was &« mill there at one time., (Hist. Cole etec.,
H8U; Dave Granham)

Miller Cave (Pulaski)
In the s.e. Coruer of the ¢o. HNamed for the owner.
(Robert Page)
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-Miller County
South of Cole Co. near ¢. of ¥o. On the n. are Cole
and Moniteau Co.'s, on the e. are Osage and Maries Co.'s,
on the w. is Morgam Co., on the s.w. is Camden, on the s.
is Pulaski. Org. Fed, 6, 18357 by act of the state Legis-
lature, before whieh it was a rt of Cole Co., sand
named in honor of Johmn Miller (1781~-1846), fourth gover-
nor of Mo., 1826~1852. John NMiller was a col. under
Gen. Harrison in the War of 1812 and & member of Congress
§336~gs$2. The co. wa? first nattleg in 181? gg Seneca
Yo ¥y and others. iaws of Ko., Peb. 6, 1837; Parker,
321; Conard, 584-586) oL ko

Miller Grove Sehool (Osage)
In Crawford 7. Nemed for the man who owned the grove in
which the builaing stunds. (John Peters)

Miller School (Miller) .
In Saline T. Nemed for P.S. Miller wbo owned the lund on
which the school wes built. (Priest illee)

Miller School (Phelps)
Ia Miller T. Nemed for the Miller femily. (C.D. Brewster)

Miller School (Pulaski)
In s, Tavern T. A family name. (FRobert Page)

¥iller Spring (Pulaski)
See Ebb and Flow Spring

Miller Towaship (Maries)
The s.w. township next to Miller Co. for which it is
named. (John Terrill)

Miller Towuship (FPhelps)
The n.w. township. Nemed for Hamilton Miller, an early
co. judge. (West Smith)

Mint Hill (Osage)
A pe0. in n. Crawford T. Nemed from the thick growth of
wild mint there and its location on & hill. (P.G. 1927f;
Meps 1880f; P.G. 1876-1904; John Peters; B.A. Gaume)

**Mitehell (Phelps) :
Nothing could be learned of this place. (P.G. 1898-1910)

Mitechell Chapel Methodlst Church (Pulaski)
See Mitchelli Methodist Churech

Mitchell Methoaist Church (Pulaski)
In o. Tavern T. Also known as Mitchell Chapel Methodist
Chureh. Named for Henry Mitchell who donauted the land on
which the church stenis. (Thos. J. Cain; G.W. Lane)
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Moab (Pulaski)
A discontinued p.o. in Cullen T. on the Big Piney R.
Named for the land of Moab, e. of Palestine, settled by
1921; G.v. lane)

Moccasin Bend (Pulaski)
A bend in the Casconasde R. uear Waynesville. £o called
because its shape resembles e moccasin. (G.M., Reed)

¥organ Sehool (Gasconade)
In ¢. Censan T. Nemed for the Morgan femily on whose
lopa it is located. (H.H. Lengeberg)

¥oro School (Puleski)
In Liberty T. Org. 1896, It was named for Morro Castle,
at Havana, Cuba, near which cocourred the axplosion that
destroyed the Maine and started the war between Spein and
the U.8. (G.M. Reed)

Morrison (Gesconade)
A town ian the n.w. corner of Richlanc T. on the Missouri
R. Named foy Alfred W. Morrison, whu owned a large
plantation there in early days. (F.G. 1867f; Maps 1873f;
E.H. Mertens)

Mossy Spring (Pulaski)
In Tavera T. Doubtless a descriptive name. (Hist.
Laclede, 158; G.M. Reed) :

YMossy Spring Methodist Church (Pulaski)

In Tavern T. Org. 1867. Nemed for Wossy Spring (g.v.)
near whieh it wes located. The chureh is no longer in
existence. (Hist. Laclede, 158; G.M. Reed)

¥t. Aerial Methodist Chureh (Osage)
In 8. Crawford T. Probably named for its location on a
nill. (Jonm Peters)

¥t. Aerial School (Osage)
In 8. Crawford T. Named for Nt. Aerial Methoaist Chureh
{g+¥.) near whieh it is located. (John Peters)

Mount Carmel Baptist Church (killer)
Est. 1904. MNt. Carmel was the place where Elijah de-
feated the priests of Baal. The name means "the park”
or fruitful place. (Schultzs, 83; 1 Kings xvii. 19-40)

Mount Gibsom Sehool (Pulaski)
In Cullen T. Hemed for the Gibson family and the fact
that it is located on & hill, (G.M. Reed)
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Mount Herman Baptist Church (¥iller)
In Seline T. Rst. 1872, Probably nzmed (though mis-
spelled) for Nount Hermom mentioned in the Bivle. The
refreshing dews of Hermon are used to illustrate how
good and pleasant it is for brethren to dwell together
in unity. (Psa. 135:8) It is another mname for Mt.
Zien. (Deut. Iv. 48) (Schultz, 835)

Mount Herman School (Miller)
In Saline T. Loeated near snd named for the church (g.¥.)

¥t. Olive Baptist Chaureh (FPhelps)
In n.e. Arlington T. Org. about 1840. Probably named
for the Mount of Olives at Jerusalem where Christ'’s
ascension took place. (Acts i. 9-12) (W.E, tuncun)

Mouat Qlive Baptist Churcn (Pulaski)
Org. 1880. Prohnhli named for the Mount of Clives at
Jerusulem where Christ’s ascension tock place.

(Acts i: 9-12) (Hist. lacleds, 160)

Mount Pleasent (Miller)
See Pleasant kMount

Mount Pleasant Baptist Chureh (Gesconade)
In s.e. Bourvois T. A descriptive name. Org. 1844.

(Tem Bowen)

Mt. Pleasant Sehool (Osage)
In a. Liea T. A deseriptive name. (J.K. Garstang)

Mt. Zion Baptist Churoh (Osage)
In Jefrferson T. 0Qrg. 1864. Mt. Zion was one of the hills
onlznx?h Jerusalem wes built., (Psa. 1li. 18) (Tem
Walker

¥t. Zion Sehool (Osage)
In Jefferson T. Named for Wt. Zion Baptist Chureh (g.¥v.)
near which it is located. (Tom Walker)

. **¥ount Sterling (Gesconade)
A town in w. Boulware T. on the Gasoonado'ﬂ. It was the
third location of the co. seat. It is on Starky's Bluff,
which is named for Joel Starky, who entered the land
May 10, 1885. It is also known as Shockley's Bluff for
Thos. Shockley, who bought the lend from Joel Starky
July 14, 1625 and lived there. The ¢o. seat remsined
horo tron 1828 to 1842, when it was moved to Hernann.lgg,
lists it as a p.o. in 1860, The origin of the n
ﬁT Storltnc. eould not be determimea. (P.0. 18951;
Meps 1836f; P.G. W1837, H1855; Hist. Franklin ete., 632)
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¥t. Tabor School (Phnelps)
In e. Spring Creek T. Named for Mt. Tabor, mentioned
in Josh xix. 22, because church services were frequent-
ly held in the school building. (J.B. Clark)

Mount Vernon Baptist Church (Miller)
One of the first, if not the first, church in the co.
Tst. in the early 40’'s (about 1840‘. Named for the
Vernon family. The use of the term "Mount" suggests
that there was also an associstion, or "eontaminstion®,
with George Washington's howme in Virginis. (Conerd,
5863 Schultz, 83; J.Y. Vernon)

Mt. View Chureh of Christ (Miller)
In Richwoods T. Est. about 1910. The name is descrip-
tive. (R.A. Helton)

Mt. Zion Baptist Church (Phelps)
In Cold Spring T. Org. about 1843, Ni. Zion was oue of
tue hills on which Jerusslem wes built. (Hist. lscleds,
681; Frank Groves)

Mount Zion Colored Baptist Church (Miller)
At Olean. Kst. 1873. Mi. Zicon was one of the hills oa
whnich Jerusalem was built. (Hist. Cole ete., OHU)

Mt. Zion Congregational Church (Miller)
in 0.“' T. 01“- about 1880, g_t;o ¥v. Zion Col. B&pti‘t
Cho (RcAo 3&13&)

Hud Creek (Osage, Gasconade)
A small stream which rises in Crawford T., Osage Co. and
empties into the Casconade R. in w. Boulware T., Cascon-
ade Co. The bed of this stream is muddy and, when the
Gasconade R. rises, this creek covers the surrounding
bottoms with & layer of mud. (4.A. Sehmudde; F.A.
Schaeperkoetter)

Mud Creek School ({Casconade)
In w. Boulware T. Named for Mud Creek (g.v.) on which
it is loeated. (¥,A, Schaeperkoetter)

Muddy River (Cusconade)
See Bourbeuse River

¥ud Spring Baptist Church (Osage)
See College Hill Baptist Chureh

¥udville (Phelps)
Nothing could be learned of this place. Obvioumiy a
humorous nickname. (P.C. 1904)
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Muench Cave (Phelps) mint]

A small cave in n.w. Liberty T. WNemed for the first
owner. (W.E, Duncen)

Multnomah (Miller)
See Pleasant Nount

Yungy Creek (Phelps)
A small tributary of the Gesconade K. in Miller T. Nam~
ed for a fumily whioch live on it. (Thomas A. Young)

Mungy School (Phelips) mand3
In w, Miller T. A femily name. (Thomas A. Young)

*Nallace's Lending (Dsage)
Sees Wallace's Lanaing

Needmore Baptist Chureh (Pulaski)
See Casconade Baptist Church

Needmors School (Pulaski)
In Union T. near Needmore Baptist Chureh (g.v.) for which
it is named. (Thos. J. Cain; W.¥. Petty)

Neese School (Gasconade) mest
In e, Boulware T. Named for Herman Neese on whoce farm
it is located. (J.C. Price)

New Bethel Baptist Church (Gasconade)
In Third Creek T. about 3 mi. 8. of Bethel Baptist
Chureh (g.v.). Org. 1888. (J.C. Price)

- Newburg (Phelps)
A town in Arlington T. founded in 1883 by Cupt. C.W.
Rogers. It was first referred to as "the new burg"” by
the R.R. men when the roundhouse was moved to this
point from Dixom. (P.0. 1886f; Hist. laclede, 672;
Taylor; W.E. Duncan)

New Helvetia (Osage)
On the Osage R. Helvetia is the Latin name for
Switzerland. This place coculd 0ot be located.
(Pisher's Map 1857)

New Hope Baptist Chureh (Miller)
One mi, 8. of Kaiser. Org. about 1lo8d. Aa ideal name.
(Jas. W. Dinwiddie)

New Hope Pentecost Churein (Miller)
One mi. 8. of Eaiser. org. 1962. An ildeal aname,
(Jas. W. Dinwiadie)
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New Salem Baptist Chureh (Miller)
Org. 1868, Salem was an earlier name of Jerusalem.
(Gen. xiv, 18) (Schultz, 83)

New Taft Sehool (Maries)
In 8. Boone T. Named for John Taft, landowner.
(N. Prater) .

New Woollem (Casconade)
See Woollam

New Woollam Wethodist Churech (Gesconade)
See Zoar Methodlst Chureh

Horman (Phelps)
A diseontinued p.o. in Meramec T. A femily neme.
(P.G. 1689=1920; Jucob Schwurtz)

Normen Creek (Phelps)
Fises in an. Dent Co., crosses Mersmec T. (Phelps), and
empties into Dry Pork. Also known es Norman's Hollow.
Numed for a family which lived om it. (Mups 1873f;
Jacob Sehwartz)

Normun's Hollow (Phelps)
See Norman Creek

North Spring Crsek (Phelps, Maries)
A small stream which rises in Miller T. (Phelps) crosses
the s.w. cor. of Maries Co., and empties into the
Gasconade R, The name is indidative of the many springs
which feed it. North Spring Creek is distinguished from
Spring Creek in the s. part of Phelps Co.
(C.D. Brewster)

*Nullace's Landing (Osage)
See Wallsce's landing

Oak Forest Baptist Church (Gausconade)
In s.w. Bourbois T. It actually is in the midst of an
oak forest. (0.7. Schesl)

Oak Forest School (Casconade)
In s.w. Bourbois T. near Oak Forest Baptist Church
(%,v.) near which it stends and for which it is nsmed,
(0.F. Seheel) ‘

Qak Crove Chureh of Christ (Fnelps)
In n. Dawson T. Nemed for the school (g.v.) which is
near it. (Mrs. Adolph Nickles)
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OQak Grove School (Fhelps)
In n. Dawson T. The nume is descoriptive of the
location. (Mrs. Adolph Nickles)

Oak Crove Sehool (Phelps)
In 8. Miller T. Amother QOak Grove Sehool. Situated
in an oak grove or forest. (Thomas A. Young)

Oak Mill Christian Church (Miller)
3mi. s.w. of Iberia. A descriptive nsme. (E.¥.Durham)

Qakhurst (Miller)
See Iberla

Qak lawn School (Pulaski)
In Taveran T. The nume is aesoriptive. (Robert Page)

Oklahoma Christian Church (Osage)
Ia Crawford T. S0 nemed because msny of the members had
returned from the opening of Oklahomes Territory (1890)
about the time the church wes formed. (John Peters;
J.R. Carstang)

014 Bloom Landing (Meries)
An ebandoned landing on the Cesconade R. in Jackson T.
In the early dsys iroan "blooms” were hauled from the
0ld Meremec Iron Works in Phelps Co. over the old "Iron
Foad" to 0ld Bloom Landing, which was the nearest water
econnection. (Campbell, 346; Everett Xiang)

Oldenburg (Casconade)
The ¢o. history says this plece was on the Casconasde K.
Just below the mouth of Suger Camp Creek, but loeal
inguiry produced no information. It was perhaps named
by the Cerman settlers for the grand duchy of (Oldenburg
in Holstein, Cermany. (Hist. Franklin ete., 688)

01d Frame Chureh (Maries)
See Iiberty Christien Chureh

0ld Iron Poad (Phelps)
See Iron NHoad

0ld St. Elizabeth School (Miller)
On the Csage K. near the site of the old mission nsmed
St. Elizebeth. (John Luetkemeyer)

0ld Salt Road (Pulaski)
An old road from Jefferson City to a point near Weynes~
ville over which William Moore hauled salt in early

days. (Hist. laclede, 109)
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Cld Wire Road (Pulaski, Phelps] i
An 0ld roed whieh followed, in geéneral, the route which
is mow U,5. Highway 66 from Rolla, union headguarters
during most of the Civil war, to Springfield, "the name
being due to the faot that a wire w»as extended along
the highway in order to facilitate comsmunieation of
?ovcrnmcnt headyuarters with southwestern points.”

Qzark Region and Feople, 119)

0ld Woollam (Gasconade)
See Woollaum
NS /
Clean (Miller) olren
A town in the n., part of Jaline T., on the Mo. Pac. R.R.
It was lald cut in tne winter of 1881-188%&, when the
KeR. Cume through by H.3. Burlingame and Jumes G.
Froctor, who were early setilers there. Froctor, for
the founder, was the first name proposed, but since
there was another Froctvoy inm iMissouri the nume of the
PO« was changed to Cove; . selecleu Decause the site had
iong been known as "the cove" because of ive semicircu-
lur shupe surrounded by hills. This name was unsatis-
factory vecuuse of emwther p.o. of similar spelling.
Chester, a estock Americen place-naume, found in more thun
thirly stutes, was suggesteq, but the H.IH. objected be-
cause of another station on its line similer in spelling.
Finelly, it is sald, Dr. %.8. Allee suggesied this neme
of his home town Olean, in Cettarsugus Co., N.Y. The
.Y, town was named with reference to oil gprings in the
vicinity. (Sehultz, 79; P.C. 1886f; Triest Allee;
J.E. Aite; Geumett, 2£30)

Onyx (Puleski)
Nothing eould be leirned of this place, Several caves
in this cc. contein cayx. (I.C. 1857w]
/ N\ ~ /cl
« Usage County 05&0‘5 yo @3843
Org. from Cascomnade Co. by act of legislature Jan. 29
1841. It originally included purt of present ¥aries Co.
On the north ise the Missourl R.; oan the west, the Osage
H. and Killer Co.; on the south, Waries Co.; on the
east 18 Casconade Co, The co. wus nemed for the (Osage
Re (%,1,), which forms most of its western boundary.
(!13 . C&_‘tﬁ., W&. 89‘)

-Osage Dem (Miller)
Also known w8 bagnell Dem for the town of Bagnell, which
is the nearest R.R. point. It is the large hydro-
slectrle dam ana power pluat between Ecuality and
Franklin T.'s scross the Osage K. It forms the Lake
of the Czarks (g.v.). Newesu for the Usage K. (4.¥.)
which it dams. git was completed in 1951, (McCanse, 96)



-Osage River (Miller)
The largest stream in the ¢o., it rises in Kansas and
flows into the Mo. R. It runs in a general e. direction
across Miller Co. The Osages called themselves Wa-ca-ce
meaning "people”, but were known to others as the
Pa~he~-tsi (canpor: on the mountain) end Utseh-te (camp-
ers on the lowlanda). Marquette spelled the word
Ouchage and Autrechaun. On Franqulm's mep it is Zages.
By Feniceut it is spelt Huzzaus, Oue, Wauhas. It is
also ona-chafn meaning "the strong"”. The name Csage is
of French origin, a eorruptionfcf the Indian name for
the tribe. It derives its name from the Great and Little
Ugage Indians. (Mouek, I, 178; Schultz, 1l4; Schooleraft,
104; Thwaites EWT, XIV, 144; Hist. Cole etec., 644)

Osage Township (Gaaconadc}
Org. kay 6, 1859. It no longer exists. Probably named
for the Osage R. (4.v.) since Osage Co. was org. in 184l1.

(Hist. Franklin ete., 6&27)

Osuge Townshlp (Miller)
The e. T. nemed for the River (g.7.) which forms part of
its n. boundary.

Oshawa (Osage)
In e. Ciawford T. on the Casconade R. A discontinued
P.0. No information could be obitamined msboul this place.
Doudtless one of the many forms of tne Indian neme
Osage. (R.C. 1870; Lap 1873)

Our Lady of Perpetual Help Cathollie Church (Phelps)
At Beulsh. Org. 1938. A stoek name for the Virgin
Mary. (Rev. 85.P., Stocking)

Owen Mills (Osuge)
A discontinued p.o. in s. Crawford T. anamed for Frank
Owens, who was the miller and storekeeper there.
(E.3. 1886, 1887, 1890-1921; Maps 1904, 1913; E.M.Zevely)

+Owensville (Casconede)
A town in Canaan T. Named for the first settler there,
a Mr. Owen. In partnership with E. Luster, Mr. Owen
opened the first store there. It is salid that in naming
the village, they could not decide whether to call it
Owensville or Iusterville. The two men agreed to piteh
a geme of horseshoes, und the winner was to be honored
with the name. MNr. Owen won the . (2.8. 1we71;

Hist. Franklin ete., 687; Collier

Ozark (Fhelps)
See Ozark Iron Works
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Ozark Irom Works (Phelps)
A discontinued p.o. and abanaoned iron works inm
Arlington T. on the Frisco R.K. The place was known as
Iittle Piney before Phelps Co. was formed from Fulaski
Co. Also known as Yorks andi York's Station for Johm
York, & pioneer from Temnessee who settled here imn 1818.
Pormerly known as Xnotwell ITron Works, probably for a
former owner of the iron works. Also known as Ozark.
The original iron works was est. in 1874. The name is
obviously for its location in the Ozarks. (Pﬂ%. 1859;
1867, 1876; Csmpbell's Oagz., 30, 454, 436; %%ﬁéggg
oto.. 6335 Fem. Hist. gaag&s. 27. N.B. Cox; W.E. an;

G.W,

**Pace (Gasconade)
A villaege in Roark T. Nothing could be learned of lhis
place. (R.W. 19386)

Pack Hollow (Miller)
In Osage 7. near Big Tavern Creek. Nemed for Anderson
Pack, a steamboat pilot, who settled thers. (Tom Clark)

Palace (Pulaski)
A pe0. in w. Plnuy T. Named for the early Pulace
S¢kool (g.¥.). The town has revsutly coms te life due
to the tstabuamnt of a C.C.C. camp there. (P.G.
1952f; G.M. Reed)

Palace School (Pulaski)
In e. Roubldoux T. near the villasa of Paluce. 3So
named because in former years it was an unusueslly large
and well equipped school. (CG.M. Reed)

Palestine (Casconade)
"An ancient town, by most rorgotten, and by many never
known, was located on part of the westv hall for the sw
guarter of Seet. 10, T. 42, R. J west. The town wus
laid out in 184U by CGordon P. Wyatt."” (Hist. Pr n
‘tco. 6“) '

tr @antr
*Panther Creek (Miller) PQ“\’S'» pRMET, PED
A tributary of the Osage R. in Osage 7. Obviously named
for the enimal. (Coues, 373; Meek's Map; Tom Clark)

Pay Down (Maries)
A discontinued p.o. in w. Jorrorson T The Yo. . Bays
it was a p.o. in 1860. Hayward lists it in 1853 (Csage
Co.}). The first store in the co. was built here by a
man named Clasby. The place was named by Theos. Kinsey
when it was made & p.o. It is sald that Xinsey, who
owned a mill here, had always inecisted that his ocus-
tomers "pay down or no deal™, when they brought grain.



Tuere has been a settlement here since 1826. (P.G. 1870~
1932; ¥o. Gez., 2£19; Hayward F.G.; Maps 1865f; LHist. Cole
etc., 592; Lverett King)

Peace Lutheran Chureh (Phelps)
In 8. Dillomn T. An ideal nsme. (Jacob Schwurtz)

Peucnland (Osage)
In ¢. Crawford T. A discontinued p.o. 50 named because
of the large peach orchurd there. (F.G. 1870-1586; Meps
1870; 18803 E.¥. Zevely)

Pea Vine Creek (Maries)
A tributary of Dry Fork in Jefferson T. &0 nemed for the
many wild pee vines with which everything waes overgrown
in early dsys. (Johr Terrill)

Pendleton Settlement (Maries)
The location could not be determined. It was named for
a Pendleton femily. (Hist. Cole etc., 628; O.¥W.Cordsmeyer)

Perkins “chocl (Thelps)
In n.e. Arlingtomn T. A femily neme. (W.E. Duncean)

Tershing (Cesconade)
A p.o. in s.w. Riehland T. on the Gasconade I'. Origine
ally known as Potsdam. The settlers came from Potsdam,
Cermeny, and it is sald they numed the place for their
0ld home. On the other hand, there actually was a man
named Potts who built & dam and « mill here, and it is
sald also thet the place was sc named for that reason.
During the World Wer, due to natiohal feeling, the name
was changed to Pbrshing for Cen. John J. Pershing.
(z,g. 1895-1918; 19E1f; Meps 1915f; CG.H., Caughell;
L.E. Robyn) .

Persimmon Pomd School (Gasconade) '
In Brush Creek T. Named for the wany wild persimmons im
the vieinity. There is no pond there now. Formerly
known as Possum Trot School because there used to be
many opossums there. (Mrs. Eawerd Shelton)

Peter Humphrey Hollow (Miller)
"Near Big Tavern Creek in Osage T. Named for the first
settler there. (Tom Clark)

Phelps County
Crg. from Crewford, Pulmski and Maries Ccunties by aet
of legislature Nov. 13, 1857. ©On the north are Maries
and Casconade Counties; on the west, Pulaski Co.; on the
south, Texas and Dent Counties; on the east is Crawford
Co. Named for John S. Phelps, (1814-1886) a popular



-86-

congressman &t that time, who later became govermor of

Hiu?ourl (1876). (Hist. M, 632; Laws of ko., 1857,
597

Philadelphia Bapuist Chureh (Phelps)
In mn. Spring Creek T. Named for Philadelphis in Asia
where one of the early Christian churches was located
(Rev. 1i1.7). The neme means brotnerly love. (J.B.Clark)

Pickles ¥ine (Phelps)
See Clark Mine

Pillman Cave (Pheolps)
Ia n.w., Spring Creek T. Named for the owner. (w.ﬂ.mon)

Pillman's ¥ill (Phelps)
A water mill in Spring Creek 7. on Big Piney R. whieh
supplied it with power. WNamed for the owner. (Hist.
laclede, 681; W .%, Dutcan)

Pilot Imah (Phelps)

A bigh hill in Cold Spring T. One of the high points
(1244 ft.) in the eo. 8o nemed becmuse it is a landmark.
(F.B, Clark)

Pilot Knob Beptist Chureh (Osage)
See Buck RBlk Bartist Churech

Pine Biuff (Pulaski) '
A discontinuwed p.o. in ?1ney T. It is located on a high
veint or bluff. There are many pine trees in this cor-
ner of the co. (P.G. 18635, 1867; Robert Page)

Piney Cave (Phelps)
In n.e. Spring Creek T. Nemed for Little Piney Cr. onm
whieh it is loceted. (C.M. Hargus)

Piney Creek (Phelps) PeENI
See Big Piney River

Piney Creek (Fhelpse, Pulaski)
See Big Piney River

Piney Fork (Phelps, Pulmski)
See Big Piney River

Piney Spring (Phelps)
A large spring in n.e. Spring Creek T. Fiows $,200,000
gallone per day. Hemed for little Piney Cr. into wmcn
it empties. (MeCanse, 98; C.V, Hargus)
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Piney Township (Pulaski)
In s.e. T. Org. 1833. Named for the stream (g.v.)
which crosses it. (Hist. Laclede, 114; G.M. Reed)

Pin Oek Creek (Casconade)
A tributary of the Gasconade R. in Boulware T. Doubtless
named for the tree which is common there.

Pisgah Baptist Chureoh (Pulaskl)
Ia ¢. Union T. Plsgan 1s a mountain on e e. of Lhe
Jordan f{rom whieh Moses viewed the promised lund.
(Deut. xzxiv.1i) (Hist. Leclede, 16VU; Thos. J. Caim)

Plsgah Christian Churen (Miller)
Could not be found. A mountain on the e. of the Jurdan
from which Moses viewed the promised lunu. (Deut. xxxiv,
1) (Hist. Cole ete., 580)

Pisganh Sehool (Miller)
In Osage T. Church services were often held in this
school in early days, which may acgount for tne Bible
name. Cf. Pisgah Christien Church. (R.A. Helton)

Pisgah School (Pulaaki)
In e. Union T. near Plsgeh Beptist Chureh (g.v.) for
whieh it is nemed. (Thos. J. Cain)

Plsttneras Sehool (0Osage)
In s. Boenton T, A family neme. (Johm Peters)

Pleasant Ball School (Miller)
é mi. n. of Tuscumbia. 5o named because it is built om
a limestone "ball". Tormerly known as Klindt School for
John Klimdt, who owned the land. (Herman Schulte)

Pleasant Farm (Miller) .
A discontinued p.o. in n. Richwoods T. Obvicusly a des~
eriptive name. Sometimes written Pleasantfarm.
(P.G. 1867-1904) |

Pleasant Grove Buptist Church (Miller)
In 8. Franklin T. The name is deseriptive, although
there is nothing umusual about its situation.
{¥rs. R.R. Barron)

Pleasant Grove Baptist Churech (Phelps) ‘
Org. 1873. This church could not be loeatea. O(bviocusly
a descriptive neme. (Hist. lsclede, 689)

Pleasant Grove VMethoaist Chureh (Pulaski)
In s.w, Cullen T. Org. 1881. Now abuandoned. A des-
eriptive name. (Hist. Laclede, 18z; C.M. Reed)
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Pleasunt Grove School (Maries)
In e. Johnson T. The name is desoriptive of the location.
(J.P. Hart)

Pleasant Crove Zchool (¥Miller)
In 8, Franklin T. Now defunct. Nemed for the chureh
(g.¥.) whieh it is near. (Mrs. R.R. Farron)

Pleasant Grove School (¥iller)
See Bona Sehool

Pleasant Grove School (Pulaski)
In s.w. Cullen T. near Pleasant Grove Methodist Chureh
(ge¥.) for whieh it is nemed. (G.M, Reed)

Pleasant Hill Christien Chureh (Miller)
In ?1chwoods T. A descriptive name. (Hist. Cole ete.,
11

Pleassnt Hill School (Miller)
One hulft mi. e. of ¥ldon. A descriptive neme.

Pleassnt Hill United Baptist Chureh (Miller)
Near Mary's Home. Org. 1685; & descrirtive name.
(Hist. Cole ete., 580

Pleasant Mound (Miller)
See Pleasant ¥Mount

Pleazant Mount (Miller)

A discontinued p.0. in Saline T. Andrew Burris opened a
store there in 18351 and leid out the town in 1838, 1In
1846 the citizens of the T. met to disecuss the est. of
& p.o. there. They decided on the neme Multnomsh, which
means running water, but apparently it wes never used,
and the p.o. was called Pleasant Mount, from its situa-
tion. It is listed as a p.c. 28 early as 1851 by
Schultz, who says it was Mount Pleasant in 1860 and
Pleasant Mount agein in 18%4. Tne original town is
extinet, but & nearby, small village still besrs its
name. Appears a8 Pleasant Mound in Mo. Caz. 1860,
Pleasantmount in 1902 P.G. (Sehultz, 79, 5O, 164, 166;
Hist. Cole ete., 568; T.0. 1855-1904; Eaton, 194; No.
Gaz.; campbell)

Pleasant Ridge School (Waries)
In e. Spring Creek T. A deseriptive nsme. (J.P. Hart)

Point Bluff School (Phelps) i
Ia s.w. Rolla T. The name is aeseriptive of its loce-
tion on the point of & blufrf., (W.E, Duncan)
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Pointer's Creek (Osage)
4 tributary of the Casconade FE. which rises about 6 ui.
e. of Linn, Named for the FPointer family who lived on
its banks. (Hist. Cole ete., 630; E.¥W.Zevely; A.A.
Sehmudde )

Pointer's Creek School (Dsage)
In Crewford T. Numed for Pointer's Creek (g.v.) near
whieh it is located. (A.A. Schmuade)

Poole Hollow Cave (Phelps)
In e. aArlington T. Nsmed for the Foole family snda feor
its location in & hellow. (W,E. Duncan)

**rortage (Csage)
In n.e. Benton 7. on Mo. kK. Nothing could be leasrned of
this place. (lap 1913)

Possum Town Schocl (Qsage)
In Crauwford ¥. This neighborhood is kpown ue FPossum
town because there are many possums there. There is mo
town; in fact, the neighborhood is rather spursely
settled. It is & humorous name, implying that the
neighvorhood is & town of possums rether them people.
(Cum Miller; John Peters)

Tossum Trot 8chool (Gasconade)
Ses Persimmon Pond School

Post Qak School (Willer)
E. of Bagnell. Omn the site of an old pust oak thicket.
(Chas. Bradley)

Post OCsk School (Osage)
In Jefferson T. S0 named from the thieck growth of post
oak in that vicinity. (John Peters)

Potsdam (Gasconade)
See Pershing

Potts (Osage)
A discontinued p.o. in Crawford T. A femily name,
(P.G. 1910-1918; 192z, 1936; E.N. Zevely)

Prairie (Phelps)
See Elk FPrairie

*Pruirie Creek ((Osag.)
gggg%ng could be learmed of this place. (P.G. (Goodwin)
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Prewett Sochool (Phelps) pYu

In n.w. Miller T. Named for Clark Prewett who ownod the
land. (Thomas A. Young)

Price's Creek (Casconade).
In Bourbois T. Fises in M™uleski Co. and empties into a
tributary of Watson's Fork., Named for the Price family
in thet section. (Map 191%; Tom Bowen)

Proetor (¥iller)
See Olean

Prospect School (Pulaski)
In s.e. ILiberty T. The name ies deseriptive of the site.

Prosperity Sehool (Maries)
In s. Boome T. Cbviously en ideal name,
/

N\

- Pulaski County pru las ke
Oorg. by act of legislature Jan 19, 1833. On the north
are ¥iller and Maries Counties, on the east is Fhelps,
on the south are Texas and Lacleae, on the west are
Lacleue end Comden, It has been callea "the mother of
counties™ becuuse Phelps entirely, and parts of Crawrord,
Camden, Miller, Maries, snd Texas Counties were formed
from it. It was nemed for Count Casimir Pulaski, the
Polish patriot, who fought ror the imerican colonies in
the aovolutlonary War sana was killed a2t the Battle of
Savannah. Pulaskl is e stock name found in 8 other
counties and 11 towns. It has also been cslled "The
Switzerlend of America™ because of its high hill, blurts,
end swirt rivers, (laws of ¥o. 1833; Hist. laclede,113;
Ozark Feg. and People, 70; 0.V. Reed; 8.7. Isue

Punkin Ceanter (Pulaski)
See Mawkins

**guebee (Osage)
Nothing could be learned of this place. (P.G. 1888,1889)

Rabbit Head Creek (Miller)
See lLenox Eranch

Fabbit Head School (Miller)
£ mi. n, of Iberia on Rabbit Head Creek, ror which it is
obvioualy named.

Rader (Maries)
A discontinued p.o. in Jackson T. named for & Rev. M¥,
Rader, who was a Methodist preacher here. (P.G. 1915~1981o
¥upse 190& 1928; Hverett king)



Rambo Schocl (Phelps) T®m be
In Spring Creek T. A family neme. (¥.T. Freeman)

Remsey (Miller)
See Caprs

Ramsey (Miller)
Another Ramsey. An abandoned p.o. about J mi. s. of
Capps on NMumphrey Creek. Nemed for snother Geoc. Famsey
(ef. Capps), the first settler on Humphrey Creek.
(FP.C. 1886-1904; Meps 1904f; John Perguson; L.i. Bertom)

Rawsey Cave (Miller) .
Near town of Ramsey and named for same family. In 1989
& party dug for seven pony loads of Gold supposedly
buried in Ramsey Cave during the Civil YWar. None was
ever found 80 far as is known. (3ehultz, 132; John
Ferguson)

Famsey Island (Phelps)
In the Casconade . opposite Bell Bluff Cave. Numed for
the owner., (Thomas A. Young)

**Rathbone (Phelps)
Nothing could be learned of this place. (P.G. 1895~-1904)

Rattlesnake Hollow (Phelps)
In Arlington T. Rattlesnaskes are numerous in this
neighboxhood. : .

Reagan Branch ( Phelps) regen.
A smell tributary of Dry Fork in Cold Spring T. A
family name. (Juoob Schwartz)

Red Bird (OGasconade) .
A p.o. in Bourbois T., est. 1883 and given that neme by
E.R. Bowen (grandson of Col. Isaigh Bowen), the iirst
postmaster, because he thought it would be easy to spell
and remember, and because there were many red birds inm
the woods there. (2.‘6. 1886f; Esuton, 16%; Hist.
Franklin etec., 621, 622; Tom Bowen)

Red Oak Creek (Cusconade)
In Cansan T. A tridbutary of Bpa? Creek. N=med for the
many red osks along its banks. (¥rs. Edward Shelton)

Red Cak Vethodist Chureh (Casconade) :
In e, Canaan T. Named for Ked Qak Creek (g.v.) on whiech
it is located. (Mrs. Edward Shelton)

Red School (Maries)
In s.w. Boone T. 30 named becuuse it formerly was kept
painted red. (Everett King)
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Fed School (Miller)
See Baumhoer Sehool

Reed Bank (Phelps)
in irou mine in w. Weramee T. Numed for the owner.
(M.¥F. Nalone)

Reed School (¥iller) :
&mi, e. of Kaiger. Named for Geo. Reed, on whose land
the school was built. (Jas. W. Dinwiddie)

Teed Township (Miller)
Lat in 1804 Equality T. (g.¥.) was divided and Feed T.
created, dbut it was soon abolished. Nemed for Richard
Feed who was prominent in early polities. (Hist. Cole
ete., 541; John Ferguson)

**Rehard lake (0Osage)
Near Chamois. fothing could be learned of this place.
(Map 1913) '

Relfe (Thelps)
A discontinued p.o. in Spring Creek T. It wae one of the
first settlements (1818) in the co. Naumed for a man who
waus prominent im local politics at the time the p.o. was
;:curec’l. (E.G. 1886-1928; W.E. Duncan; Mrs. Lucy Foute
ncan :

-Relfe Spring (Phelps)

A large spring near Relfe (%61.) for which iv is uamed.
Flows 14,000,000 to 18,000,000 gallons per day. Also
known as Coppedge Spring for Wm. Coppeuge whe eutereda the

land. Also known as Freeman .pring for a men who owned

it at one time. (MeCaunse, 44, 56; W... Duncan)

Renaud Cave (Phelps) . Yano
In e. Spring Creek T. Named for the owuer of the land on
which 1t is located. (W.T. Freemamn)

/
Renneke School (Maries) Y &Mtk
In Jackson T, A family neme. (R.H. Ridenhour)

Rhea Baptist Chureh (Fhelps) Y€
In Cold S8pring T. Org. about 1874. A family nzre.
(T.B. Clark; Jecob Schwartz)

Rhen School (Phelps)
In Cold Spring T. Named for Rhea Baptist Church (g.¥.)
(Jacob Schwartz; J.B. Clark) )

k3l
Richel School (Osage) vazks :
In Waeshington T. Nemed for Joseph Richel, a farmer.
(John Peters)
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Richey (Maries) Tﬁﬂ
AD abundoned store named for the storekeeper. In iiller
T. Also kpown as Bucksuort beceause Mr. Richey often said
he could hear & buck deer snort every morning in early
days. (williems, 44U; John Terrill)

Rieh Pouantain (Osage)
A p.0. in e. Washington T. settled about 184U. Nemed by
Pather Hellas, vhe first Catholic priest in Osage Co.,
becsuse of the beautiful spring there. (I.G. l&o7f;

Osage Dir., 18; Hist. Cole etec., 682)

- Richland (Pulaski)

A town in w. Liberty 7. ILaid out in 1869. Origlnally
named Lyon for Gen. Nathaniel Iyon, who was killed Aug.
10, 1861 in, the Battle of Wilson's Creek. When it was
discovered thst there wee another Iyon in the state, the
neme was changed to Riehlana for C.W. Riech, a director
of the old Atlantie and Pacific 3.R. (Hist. laclede,l138;
P.C. 1876f; C.W. laune)

Richland Township (Casconade)
The n.w. towvmship, org. July 20, 1846. Doubtless named
for the charascter of the land much of which is rich
ereck-botgom and river-bottom lana. (Hist. Franklinm
ete., 628

Richﬁoods Township (Miller) '
In the s.e. cor, of the ¢o. Numed for Eig Lichwoods
(ge¥.)e (Schultz, 16)

Ricker Memorial Chureh (Maries)
A Nazarene church in w. Poone T. numea ror James Ricker
who donated the lend. (N. Prater)

Fiver Maria (Osage, Maries)
See Maries River

Riverside (Miller) : -
Also known as Riverside Park. In n.e. Jim Heary 7. om
the Osuge R. Obviously namea from its loestion.

Riverside Park (Miller)
See Riverside

Riverview Baptist Church (¥iller) ‘
In Claze T. on Highway 54. A new church was built on the
present slte by the Union Flectric Co. because nearly
&ll the members had to move when the lcke went in. From
the old site the river (Osage) could be seen. (Juno.Jomes)

Riviere & 4; Caverne (Miller)
See Big Tavern Creek)
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Riviere au Berger (Gasconads)
See Big Berger Creek

Riviere au Boeuf (Gasconade)
See lweufl Creek

Riviere aux Frenes (Gasconade)
See Frene (Creek

Riviére Crande Glaize (Miller)
See Grand Auglaize

Riviere Sculine (Miller)
See Seline Creek

Roaring Spring (Pulaski)
A large spring in s.e. Piney 7. emptying into the Big
?1ney Re ?o named because of the roaring sound it makes
G.M. ROOQ .

Roark Township (Casconede!
The n.e. township org. July 7, 1864. The Rourk fumily
was among the rirst to settle here. (Hist. Franklin
etc., 5&7)

Robideaux Township (Pulaski)
See Roubidoux Township

Rockhouse (Miller)
Ses Jim Henry Cave

Rocktown (Miller)
See Iberia

Roeky dound (Miller)
See Rocky Mouatl

Rockymount (Miller)
A village in w, Franklin T.; one of the iirst p.o.'s im
the co. The site wus entered by o Mr. Solomon late in
the 40's, and u store was soon openea. The name was
suggested rrom the characber ol the aiviae between The
Osage and Missouri Rivers upon which it is located. The
P.0. is now locuted across the line in Morgan Co. From
1876-1896 Rockymount was two words, Rocky Mount. Appears
as Roeky Mound in Goodwin, 59. (P.G. 1853f; Hist. Cole
ete., 571; Schultz, £2, Baton, 195)

logers Creek (Maries)
A tributary of the Maries River in Boome T. Named Tor
one of the earliest justices of the peace, & Mr. Rogers,
who lived on it. (W.¥. Krone) '
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‘Rolla (Phelps) vala
The co. seat, laid out in 1858. John Webber wanted to
call it Hardserabble; E.w. Bishop, who donated fifty
acres of land to the town, wanted it Phelps Center; and
George Coppedge wanted to name it for his old home,
Raleigh, N. Carolinma. Bishop, a northern sympathizer,
agreed to accept Coppedage's name on condition it be
spelled Rolla. The story that it was so spelled because
none of the original settlers knew the correct spelling
of Raleigh, is vehemently denied. More creditable to
the culture of the pioneers is the suggestion that the
form was suggested by that of a character in Sheridan's
vegx popular play "Pizarro”. (P.G. 1B67f; Hist. Laclede,
66

'Rolla Township (Phelps)
In the ¢. part of the co. Obviously named for the
principal town in it.

*Rolling Creek (Miller)
See Rollins Creek

Rolling Heath Baptist Churech (Pulaski)
An abandoned church which was near Rolling Heath School
(ge¥.) and nemed for it. Org. 1888. (Hist. laclede,
1803 G.M. Reed)

Rolling Heath School (Pulaski)
In Cullen T. in the Big Piney R. %When this school was
built, it was on a rolling treeless heath, but the heath
now has & growth of timber on it. (G.M. Reed)

**Rollins Creek (Miller)
A tributary of Brumley Creek in Glaze T. Also known as
Folling Creek, perhaps a popular etymology for the un-
familisr nsme., The origin of the name could not be
determined. (Maps 1914. 19&1, John Ferguson)

Rosati (Phelps) vozate |
A p.0o. in e. St. Jemes T. Before this plece had a p.o.
it was known as Knobview becsuse of its location om a
knob. In 1899, when the p.0. was established, wue name
was cnanged to Spading rfor J.C. Spading, the first post-
master. With a change of postmessters in 1904 the name
was changed to Knobview again. In 1930, the name was
changed to Rosati in honor of Bishop Joseph hosati,
second bishop of St. louis (became bishop 1826, aied
1843), the only Italian who was ever bishop of St.louis.

- Heil sddressed to Knobview was being missent, ana also,
an Italian name was wanted because most of the inhabi-
tunts are Italisns engaged in the wimne industry.
(P.G. 1900f; Emc. Hist. Mo., IIT, 455; Hector Ramori;
Rev. S.P. St.o'é'ﬂ'ns
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Roseberry School (Phelps)
See Antioech School

*Rosebud (GCasconade)
A village p.o. in e. Cansan 7. It was first known as
Snider's Store for thé owner of the store. Later the
name was changed to Bourbdbois after the Bourbeuse k.
(which is often spelled Bourbois). Bourbois was about
a mi. from the present site of Rosebud. The name was
changed from Bourbois becasuse the mail was frequeatly
missent to Bourbon. The origin of the name could not be
gi;ggvox)"d. (P.C. 1870f; Campbell, 210; Naps 1873f;
o er

Rost School (Osage) vosl, rost
In Benton T. A family nsme. (John Peters)

/ \
Roubidoux Creek (Pulaski) Y u hbudu
A considerable stream which rises in Texas Co. and crosses
the s. part of Pulaski Co. to empty into the Gasconade
R. in Cullen T. Nemed for Joseph Roubidoux, the French
trapper end explorer, (1785-1868). (Hist. laclede, 114;
Campbell's; G.M. Reed; Dict. A&M.%

Roubidoux Methodist Chureh (Pulaski)
An abeandoned church in Houbidoux T. and obvicusly named
for the creek (g.v.) on which it was located.

(Eist. Leclede, 165)

-Roubidoux Spring (Pulaski)
A large spring flowing from 7,750,000 to 47,000,000 gall-
ons per day in Cullen T. near Roubidoux Creek (gq.v.) for
whieh it is obviously named. Also known as Waynesville
Spring for the town near which it is located.
(MeCunse, 106, 122; G.M. Reed)

Roubidoux Township (Pulaski)
The 8. T. Spelt Robideaux in Campbell's Atlas (1875).
Named for Roubidoux Creek (g.v.) which crosses it.
(Hist. Lsclede, 115; G.M. Reed)

*Royal (Phelps)
Nothing could be learmed of this place. It is rether a
stock mame, being borme by nine or ten other towns in as
many different states. (P.G. 1893, 1910, 1915)

sh Chapel
See Jim Henry Methodist Church

*Russellville (Osuge)
See loose Creek
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Ruwwe School (Gasconade) Y u't
In e. Brush Creek T. Nemed ror the Ruwwee family.
(Mrs. Edward Snelton)

Ryors (Osage) Yalvi
A discontinued p.o. in e. Crawford T. (State Sen. R.S.
Ryors was a promimnent Osage Co. lawyer, 1868-1889.)
Formerly known as Linnwood ror Sea. lewis P, Linn. Also
known as Stony Point for the limestone bluff there.
(P.G. 1870-1933; . Cole ete., 663; Maps 1880f; E.M.
Zevely; B.A. Caume; Johm Peters; A.A. Schmudde; Campbell's

Gaz., 412)

Safe (Maries)
A p.o., in e. Johnson T. So ecalled, it is said, beomuse
a Mr, 1, who ran the mill, had the habit of saying
"Your grain is safe if you leave it here". (P.G. 1887f;
Maps 1904, 1913, 1922, 1956; John Terrill)

Saint Annie (Pulaski)
A discontinued p.o. in Roublidoux T. Numed by soldiers
who hed returned from the Mexiecan VWer for Santa Anns,
head of the govermment of Mexico, 1852-1847. R.M.
erroneously shows it in Texas Co. "Saint Annie" was
their nickneme for the famous Mexican general against
whom they hed fought. (P.C. 1876-1t95; G.M. Reed)

St. Anthony (Miller)
An abandoned p.o. in n. Richwoods T. named for St.
Anthony's Church (g.v.). Spelled St. Antony im Schultz,
82. (P.G. 1910-19%87

St. Antony (Miller)
See St. anthoany

St. Anthomy's Catholic Church (Phelps)
At Rosati. Est. 1897. Named for St. Anthony of Padua
(1195-1231), the hermit. (Cath.Ene.; Rev.S.P. Stocking)

St. Anthony's Church (Miller)
A Catholic Chureh at the town of St, Anthony. Est. 1906
and named for St. Anthony of Padua (1195-1231), the
hermit. (Cath. Reg., Apr. 2, 1925, pp. 2, 3; Cath. Enc.;
Rev. Herman J. yors

St. Aloysius Catholic Chureh (Osage)
A% Argyle. Probably named for St. Aloysius Gongaga of
Italy (1568-1691). (Cath. Enc.; Rev. Heary Cooper)

Seint Aubert (Osage) Ihnrt
A p.o. in n.w. Benton T. Formerly kuown ae Shipley's
Landing for the Shipley family, early inhabitants of the
place. It is on the Missouri R. and there has been a



boat landing there for many years. Also known as Medora
for the wife of its founaer, J.M. Morrow, who laid out
the town in 18556, Later the railroad changed the name

to S¢. Aubert for Sv. Aubert ia Callaway Co. across the
river becsuse of confusion with the meil addressed to
that place which was dropped here and ferried across the
xivcrenilt 1? nianp.%lod §;. Abo:t gn‘ggg.(lﬂlﬁ)gia
0.“‘ r. Q.un D l‘-, : &! . Q;! Otﬂo. 68 ; .Q.
J.R. Garstang; A.A. Schmudde) E

8t. Bonifuce's Catholie Churech (Osage)
At Koeltztown. There are many seints and a lonug line of
popes named Bonlface. Since it is a Germsn community,
the saint intended was probably the "Apostle of Germany"
St. Bomniface or Winfred, celebrated Euglish missionary
who labored im Germsny from 716 till his death im 7585.
(Cath. Ene.; Rev. Henry Cooper)

8t. Cecilia's Catholic Chureh (Osage)
At Meta. Named for the patrom seint of music. It is
thought she lived in the fourth ceatury or earlier.
(Cath. Ene.; Rev. Henry Cooper)

St. Eligzabeth (Miller)
A town in 8. Jim Heary T. The original plot of the town
was filed in 1875, and it was them known as Cherlestown
and Charleytown in homor of Charley Holtschneider of
Westphalia, Usage Co., who donated the land for the
large Catholic church erected there. The name of the
loeal parish, St. lawrence, was suggested for the p.o.
when it was est., but the p.o. dept. objected becuuse
there was already & p.o. in dMo. named Lawrenceton.
(8t. Lawrenee, the martyr, died 288). It was then
named for St. Elizabeth's Chureh (g.¥.). The present
parish of St. lLawremce est. 1879. (Schultz, 16, 80;

ggth. -3 Cath. Reg., Mar. 19, 1925, p. &; Rev. Herman
. yer

8t. Elizabeth's Chureh (Miller)
The first Catholie chureh in the ¢o. erected in 1870 oa
the site of the town of St. Elizsbeth. It originally in-
cluded territory now occupied by three parishes: Mary's
Home, Charleytown, and St. Anthony. The church was
Probably named for St. Elizabeth, queen of Hungary
(1207-1231). (Bmuwf 16, 80; Cath. Reg. Mar. 19,

1925, p. 3; Cath. Ene.

St. Ceorge's Catholic Chureh (Osage)
At liun. Org. 1867. Neamed for St. Ceorge, patron saint
of Englend. FHis dates ere unkmown. (Hist. Cole ete.,
687; FRev. Henry Cooper)
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“8t. James (Phelps)
A town im 8St. James T. The original settlement: was
known &s Blg Pralrie because of its lcocation on a
prairie. Whem the town waes leid out in 1809, it was
named Scioto, (doubtless from Seioto, Ohio, from which
state came some of the early settlers). GCannett (p.277)
says Seciota 1s derived from an Imndien word g&l%ggg,
meaning "great legs™, as a river with many ana long
branches. In 1860, the name was changed to St. James in
honor of Thomes James, who came here im early days from
Chillicothe, Ohio, near Seioto, and bought the Yeramec
Iron Works. As in the case of St. Joseph, founded by
Joseph Robicoux, and often elsewhere, it was considered
more modest to name the town for the man's name-saint,
in this case, St. Jumes the Apostle, than direetly for
himself. Thomas James and his family were devout
Eplscopalisns. (P.C. 1867f; R.M.; g&. clede, 628,
630, 670; Campbell's Gaz., 438; Col. Charles L. Woods;
N.B. Cox; E.A. Branstetter)

St. Jamés Evangelical Church (Gasconade)
In 8. Boeuf T. Named for St. James, the apostle.
(H.H. lengeberg)

St. James Township (Phelps)
" In the e. rt of the eo. Nemed for its primcipal town,
St, Jemes (g.¥.). (N.B. Cox; E.A. Branstettier)

St. Johannes' German lutheran Church (Osage)
At Chamois. Naumed for the apostle Johmn. Johannes is
the German form of his maume. (A.A. Sohmudde)

8t. John (Pulaski)
In Liverty T. A station sad sidetrack omn the Frisco R.R.
Obviously named for the apostle, but the reasom for the
name could not be discovered. tR.!l.; G.%W. lane) ‘

St. John's Evangelieal Chureh (Gasconade)
In ¢. Bou e T. Org. 1856. Nemed for St. John, the
apostle. (H.F. Waldecker)

St. John's Evangelical Chureh (Gasconade)
In ¢. Brush Creek T. Named for St. John, the apostle.
(Mrs. BEdward Shelton)

St. John's lutheran Churech (Gasconade)
In 8. Boeuf T. Named for St. John, the apostle.
(H.H, Lengeberg) {

St. Joseph's Catholic Church (Osage)
A% Westphalia. Org. 1839. There are several saints nam-
ed Joseph, but this is prodbably the foster father of
Jesus. (Hist. Cole ete., 887; Rev. Henry Cooper)
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$v. Lawrence (Miller)
See 5t. Elizabeth

-8t. Iouls und San Franeiseo K.R. (Phelps, Pulaski)
Surveyed uncer the name South Pacific R.R. in 1861. 1Ia
1866 it was known as the Atlantic and Pacific E.BR., It is
now known es the St. Iouis and San Franeisco R.E. though
it is commonly called the Frisco. John C. Fremont was
one of the builders. Named for its termini. (Hist.

Laclede, 119; Enc. Hist. Mo., V. 449)

St., louis Catholic Church (Osage)
At Bonnots Mill. There are several saints named Louils,

but this is probably the famous Iouis IX, King of
France (1215-1270). (Cath. Enc.; Rev. Kemnry Cooper)

St. Mery Home (Miller)
See Mary's Home

8t. Mary's (Miller)
See Mary's Home

8t. Mary's Catholie Chureh (Miller)
Est., 1882 at Mary's Home (g.v.). Named for the Virgin

Mary.

St. Mary's Catholiec Church (Osage)
At Chamois. Org. 1865. Named for Mary, the mother of

Jesus. (Hist. Cole etc., 690; Rev. Henry Cooper)

Saint Patrick's Catholic Canureh (rhelps)
At Rolla. Org. lBbz. Hamed for 8t. Patrick, the missiova-
ary to Irelaad, for two reasomns. Host of the charter
members were Irish R.K. laborers, and the f{irst priest
was Francis Patrick GCallegher. It was the first chureh
building in kolla. (Col. Charles IL. %Woods; lev. S.P.
Stocking) ‘

popee VLW

smevahmeMIWWw(%MMMﬂ
In ¢. Thira Creek T. mear Old anilém. Named for St.
Paul, the apostle. (J.C. Price)

8t. Theresa's Catholic Church (Pulaski)
At Dixon. Org. 1926. The church was finished and dedi-
cated on the day (May 16, 1925) St. Theresa wes canon-
ized. 5t. Theresa was a modern French saint who died inm
1897. ©Che was known as the little Flower of Jesus. The
church is also known as Chureh of the Little Flower and
Chureh of St. Theresa of the Child Jesus. (Rev. S.P.

Stocking)
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Salem Baptist Chureh (Gausconade)
In s. Cansan T. Salem is an ancient name for Jerusalem.
(Mrs. Edward Saelton; Bible Dict.)

Salem Presbyterian Church (Osage)
In Crewford T. Cf. Salem Baptist Chureh.

*Saline Creek (Miller)  S3/(n’

Rises in Saline T. and empties imnto the Osage R. Caline
is a French word mescning salt, salt-works, or salty. It
is shown, Schultz says, on a French map im the Library
of Congress as "R. Saline" (1802). So far as can be

. aseertained, there was no salt in this section, but there
xay have been salt "licks"™ or "salines"” in the neighdor-
hood. Cf. Saline Towvnship in Cooper and Ralls pountlos
and see Lick Creek above. (Schults, 14; Littre; CI.
theses by Miss Pace and VWiss Leech)

Saline Township (Miller)
The n.w, T. of the ¢o. Named for the creek which heads
in it. (Sehultz, 16)

Saline Valley Christian Churech (Miller)
o mi. n. of Tuscumbla. Built 1924. It is in the valley
of Little Saline Creek.

Saltpetre Cave (FPhelps)
A large cave in Miller T. It has been explored for o mi.
Named for the deposits of saltpetre which were found in
it and used to meke gunpowder im early days. (Hist.
Laclede, 6z6; Taylor; Thomas A. Young)

Send Hill Sechool (Miller)
In Saline T. The original builaing, about 1/4 mi. from
the present school was built on a sandstone bluff. When
the school was moved, it retained the old name. The
echool is discontinued. (Priest Allee; J.E. Hite)

Sands (Phelps)
A discontinued p.o. in Cold Spring 7. Named for Charles
Sends, the first postmaster. (P.G. 1910-1918, 1924,
1924; Prank Groves)

Sendstone Creek (Miller)
A tridutary of Bolan's Creek in Richwood T. There is
much sandstone along the oreek. (Ceol. Mo., 122;
Meek's Map)

Sendstone Hollow (Miller)
In Osage T. The name is descriptive. (Ceol. Miller, 29;
Tom Clark) I
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Sanning School (Miller) Sant
Near Mary's Home. Named for John H. Sanning, who owaned
the land. (Herman Schulte)

N/
Suntee (Maries) Seenll
A discontinued p.o. in Miller 7. named for Adulson Santee,
& ¢ivil engineer for the Frisco R.R., who was & residemnt
of the ¢o. for some years. (P2.C., 1899-1902; Everett King)

Sehlicht (Pulaski) jlowt
A discontinued p.o. in Tavern 7. on the Casconade R.
Named for & man who owned a mill there. Note: correct
German pr?. retained by the residents. (D2.C. 1899-19185;
G.¥. Reed

- School of the Osage (Miller)
In Claze T. near the Osage Dam. A consolidated high
sehool. It is 80 mamed because it is near the Osage R.
Also, the athletic teams are called Indians, and Indian
decorations are used at banquets and other school func-
tions. This was the country of the Osage Indians.
Formerly known as Bolin School (g.v.). (Mrs. Burl
Henderson) )

**S¢ioto (Phelps) Sk Lete

See St. Jumes

Seaton (Fnelps)
A p.o. in 8, Meramec T. Named for Semuel Seaton, an
early settler amnd lendowner. (P.G. 1915f; M.F. Malone)

Second Creek (Casconade)
A tributary of the Qusconade R. in Boulware T. So aamed
because it is the second large creek lm Gesconade Co.
up the river from its mouth. (Ceo. Schuneider)

Shackleford Spring (Miller)
S8ee Dorl Spring

Shady Grove School (Fuleski)
In Liverty T. A descriptive name. (G.M. Feed)

Shanzmeyer School (Miller) §“1“1%"“1r
In Jim Henry T. A fumily name. (John Luetkemeyer)

Shawnee Creek (Osage) SQ’WQ ‘
In Benton T. Empties into a swamp between the No. Pac.
R.R. and the Missouri K. There were Shawnee Indians in
this co. in early days.

Shawnee Creek School (Osage)
In Benton T. on Shawnee Creek (g.v.) for which 1t is ob-
viously named.
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Sheppard Methodist Church (Pulaski)
In e. Union T. Named for the Sheppard family.
(Mrs. A.S. lLick)

Sheppard School (Pulaski)
In ¢. Union T. Nemed for the Sheppard family.
(Hr'. A.S. uck)

Shinkles Sohool (Maries)
In Johnson T. Nemed for Ceo. Shinkles, a justice of the
peace and director of the school distriect. (J.P. Hart;
G.%. Cordsmeyer)

Shipley's Landing (Osage)
S8ee St. Aubert

Shoekley's Bluff (Gasconade)
See Mount Sterling

Shockley Sehool (Pulaski)
In Cullen T. HNamed for the Shockley family. (G.M.Reed)

Shut~in-Braneh (Miller)
In Equality T. A slough on the banks of which J.P. and
J.B., Harrison hed built & store before the former Jdomnat-
ed the land for the ¢o. seat. It is said that when the
river gets high, this slough rises ami keeps the people
living near "shut-in” their nouses. The term “shut-in"
is used all over the Ozark country %o mesn a canyom or
a plece where a stream is walled in by roek which it has
cut through. (Sehultz, 15; Ssuer, 10; lcCause, 12;
John Ferguson)

**signal (Phelps)
Nothing could be learned of this plesee. (P.C. 190e)

**sille (Phelps)
In ¢. Rollse T. The origin of the neme could not be
determined. (R.M.)

Sinful Bemd (Maries)
A-wide bend im the Cesconede RN. 80 named beczuse the
neighvorhood wes known in the eerly deays as a "tough"
one. The ec?ls had & reputation as fighters.
{Everett Xing

Siphon Spring (Puleski)
See Ebb and Flow Spring

Skages Chureh (Naries)
In Jefferson T. A femily name. (A.L. Joyce)
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Skaggs Township (Gasconade)
Org. Jan. 21, 1822 from the e. part of Boon T. Benjaminm
Skagge was a farmer in 182z. It no longer exists.
(Bist. Franklin etc., 626, 627)

Skimner School (Miller)
Smi. s. of Eldon. Named for Jas. Skinner, on whose
land the school was built. (Jus. K. Pruitt)

Sleughter Sink (Phelps)
In s.w. Arlington 7. One of the largest sink holes in
the ¢co. Named for the owner. (J.T. Andres)

Smith Baptist Chureh (Phelps) |
In Spring Creek T. Named for George Smith, an eurly
deacon in the echurch. (J.B. Clark)

Smith's Creek (Gesconsde)
A discontinued p.o. Later in COsage Co. See Smith's
Creek (Osage). (2.G. wlBs7; Mup 1840)

Smith's Creek (0Osage)
Also known a8 Indlan Creek., There were muny Indians in
this section in early days. It was probably named for
:yatﬁ Smith who kept Smith's Creek p.o. (g.v.) on this
reek.

Smith's Creek (Osage)
B8ee Smith's Creek (Casconade). The second p.o. in Osuge
Co. located on Iandien (afterward Smith's) Creek. It was
kap? by Wyatt Smith as eurly as 1852. (Hist. Cole ete.
042

Smith Mine (Phelps)
An iron mine in s.e. Meramee T. Named for the owner.
(¥.7. Malone)

Smyrnae Christian Church (Maries)
In s.w. Boone T. Org. 1900, Smyrmns is an ancient ecit
in Asia ¥Winor. It was one of the seven churches in Asia
to which messages were sent through the apostle John.
The name means "myrrh”. (N. Prater; Rev. ii, 8-11;

Snider's Store (Casconade)
See Hosebud

Snodgrass School (Maries)
In n. Spring Creek T. Named for Washington Snodgrass,
who donated the lund. (J.P., Hart)
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Soap Creek (Casconade)
In Canaan T. A tributary of FRed Qaek Creek. So nemed
for the flint clay which dissolves in its water and gives
it a gray, soapy appearance. (Map 1913; Ceo. Schueider)

South Moreau (¥iller) v ore
A streem which rises in Salime T. 7Tt drsins the n.w.
part of the cc., and Joins the North Yoreau to form the
Yoreau F., a tributary of the ¥issourl P, Jesn Yoreau,
brother of a boy who had been kidnapred from Cote sans
Dessein by Indinns, started up this stresrm looking for
his brother. Feé never returned z2nd the stream was ever
after known <8 the Voresu fer him. (Msps 1873f; J.C.
Trib., July 16, 1889, 4-6)

South Pecific R.R. (Phelps, Pulaski)
S8ee 8t. Iouls and San Franciseco R.R.

Spading (Phelps) sl’e(([y\
See Rosatl :

Spanish Needle (Phelps)
See Spanish Prairie

Spanlsh Needle Prairie (Maries)
In e. Johnson T. Nemed for the yellow flower or weed
which literally covers its fields. Also known as Spanish
Prairie, which 1s an abbreviation. (Everest Xing;
Maps 1867, 1873) -

Spanish Preirie (Maries)
See Spanish Needle Prairie

Spanish Prairie (Phelps)
An abandoned p.o. in the n. part of the co. Est. adbout
1636 at the store of William FHawkins, the first poste
master. PFormerly known as Spanish Needle and obviously
named for the plunt which is common in this section.

(Hist. lsclede, 630; P.G. 1867)

Speamman School (Niller) :
4 mi. w. of Iberia. Named for the Spearmsn fanily
(Mrs. Spearman)

Spencer Cave (FPhelps)
In n. ¥iller T. A family meme. (Thomas A. Young)

Spring Creek (Maries)
A tributary of the Cascomnade R. Rises in Phelps Co.
So named from the fact thet it is fed by many springs.
(Everett Xiang)
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Spring Creek (Phelps)
A Pe0. in n.w., Spring Creek T. near the mouth of Spring
Creek (g.¥.) for which it is obviously named. (P.G.1876f)

8pring Creekx (Phelps)
Rises in the a. part of Spring Creek T. und empties into
the Big Piney R. in the n.w. part of the T. It is ob-
viocusly named for the many springs which feed it.

Spring Creek Baptist Church (Phelps)
In Miller T. Also known as Dyer Baptist Church because
the original building was on the Dyer land. Named for
North Spring Creek (g.¥.) on which it is now located.
(C.D. Brewster)

Spring Creek Cave (Phelps) :
In Spring Creek T. on the e¢reek for which it is obviously
named. This cave is s0o large thet people sometimes are
lost in it for several days. (Hist. laclede, 627)

Spring Creek Township (Maries)
The s. townshlip e. of the Casconade R. Doubtless uamed
for the oreek (g.¥.) which runs through it and empties
into the Gasconade R. in it.

Spring Creek Township (Phelps)
In the s. part of the co. It is the largest township.
Obvicusly named for the c¢reek which crosses it.

8pringdale Seminary (Phelps)
A small private girls' acedemy at Relfe. Org. 1859,
Discontinued 186l. So named because of the large spring
there. (W.E. Duncsan)

Spring Osrden (Miller)
A dlescontinued p.o. in e. Saline T. on the site of the
first store in Miller Co. The town begen with the est.
of the Miller County Institute in 1868. It was nemed by
William Miller and Williem P. Dixon for Spring Carden im
the southern part of Virginia. Schultz erroneously says
thet it was knowh for a time as Iocust Nount. (P.8.
1686-~1918; Sehultz, 15, 82; J.J. Bond)

Springvale (Pulaski)
An early setitlement which was abandoned long age but
has recently come to life as a highway setilement on
g.g. g:ghguy 66. The mame is deseriptive. (2.G. 1867;
.%. Lane

Stark Cave (Miller)
8. of Eldon. Named for Chas. Sturk who entered the land.
Also known as Aurore Cave because 1t is near Aurora
Springs. (John Stark)
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Starke School (Csage) slavke
In ¥. Benton T. A femily neme. (John Peters)

Stark Spring (Miller)
4 mi. n. of Tuscumbia. Named for Elilsha Sterk, father
of the present owner. (John Stark)

Starky's Bluff (Casconade)
See Mount Sterling

Star Senool (Maries)
In Johnson T. An emblematic nsme. (J.P. Herd)

Sveen Prairie (Maries)
A disecontinued p.o. in Jefferson T. Named for sn early
femily. (P.C. 1887-1910; Xaps 1880, 1913; Fverett King)

**gtickney (Maries)
A p.0. in Dry Creek T. No treece of this place coula de
found. (P.G. 1904f; Maps 1904, 1936)

Stimson (Fhelps)
An aberndoned village in WMer.sec T. named for Stimson
Vine (y.v.) which outlived it. (Map 1865; ¥F. Malone)

Stimson ¥ine (Phelps)
An iron mine in Meramec T. pnamed for Thomas Stimson who
opened it. (M.7. Malone)

Stoenner School (Cesconade) stomr
In e. Boulware T. Named for the Stoenner family.
(H.¥. Waldecker)

Stolpe (Casconade) 313'}3L
A discontinued p.o. in ¢. Richland T. on the Gasconade R.
N=med for Stolpe, or Stolp, & town in Pomerania, Cermany,
from which place the settlers in this nelghvorhood came.
{(Meps 1904, 1915, 19836; P.C. 1887-1901; G.H. Caughell)

Stony Hill (Cesconade)
A P.O. in e. Boeuf T. HNamea from the fact that the hill-
side where the p.o. was Tirst situated was covered with
atm)ma. (P.G. 1870f; Mups 1873f; Hist. Franklin ete.,
685

Stony Point (0Osage)
See Ryors

/ \
Strawhun School (Phelps) strdhan
In n.w. Folla T. A family nsme. (W.Z. Duncen)
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Struemph Sehool (Miller) stram §
Near 3t. Elizabeth. Named for Henry Struemph on vhose
lamd it is loeated. The spelling is doubtless anglicized
from the German Struempf. (John lLuetkemeyer)

Success (Miller)
See Kaiser

Success School (Osage)
In Jefferson T. Obvicusly an ideal name.

’ N / %
Sudheimer (Maries) sncl hatmr, snd hemr
A p.0. in Miller T. Named f?r an early family. The
natives commonly cell 1t 5Ad h®Mmr evidently associat-
ing the name with the English word "hammer". (D.G.1924f;
Maps 1922, 1936f; P.G. 1910; Everett King; w.M. “XTone)

Sugar Camp Creek (Gasconade)
See Sugar Creek

Sugar Camp Follow (¥iller)
On Humphrey's Creek at 01ld Ramsey p.0. A maple sugar
cemp used to dbe there. (Tom Clark

Sugar Creek (Gasconade)
A tributary of the Gasconade N, in Boulware T. So called
for the many sugar maple trees along its banks. Also
known as Sugar Camp Creek because there used to be a
sugar camp on it. (Ceo. Schneider)

Sugar Creek (Maries)
A tributary of Little Maries Creek in Boone T. Tnere are
many large sugar maples alone its banks. In the early
days there was almost nothing else but sugar maples here.
(N. Prater)

Sugar Creek (Miller)
A tributary of the Osage R. in n.e. Jim Henry T. There
are many sugar maples aleng it. (Tom Clark)

Sulphur Springs (Miller)
4 mi. n. of Tuscumbia. The water has a high sulphur
content. (J.C. Peoples Tribune, Aug. 17, 1870; Conard,
o84; John Stark)

Sulphur Springs Branch (Gasconade)
A small tributary of Crider Creek in Third Creek T. Seo
called because it is fed by a sulphur spring. (W.F.
Strehlman)

Summerfield (Maries)
A p.o. in n. Jefferson T. originally known as Drysse for
one of the founders. The neme was changed to Summerfield
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by Mr. Bumgartner, the first postmaster, who had a dis-
likxe for ¥r. Drysse. Probably a descriptive name.
(P.G. 1904f; M=ps 1904f; R.H. Ridenhour; John Terrill)

Summitt (¥iller)
A station on the ".R. R.R. in e. Saline T. e. of Eldon.
Probably so nemed because it is on a bhigh place.
(Map 1904; E.A. Condra; Judge Brockman)

Swan Creek (Osage)
A tributary of the (Cusconade R. near Rich Fountalin. &o
called becguse it was outlet for Swen lake (g.v.).
(A.A., Schmudde)

Swan lLake (Osage)
A large pond {mow drsined) near Rich Fountain on whiech
wild swan, as well as other water birds, stopped.
(4.A, Schmudde; J.R. Garstang)

e \
Swedeborg (Pulaski) swid b3g
A p.0. on the Friseo R.R. in Liberty T. Laid out in
1878 by the Swede Company, who bought the lend from the
R.R. S0 named because it is a Swedish settlement.
(P.c. 1886f; Hist. laclede, 151; Robert Fage)

Swede School (Pulaski)
In n. Liberty T. So named beczuse it is in & Swedish
community. (Robert Page)

Sweet Wome School (Pulaski)
In s.e. Tavern T. Obviocusly an ideal name,

Swiss (Gasconade)
A p.o. in n.w. Boeuf T. So named because most of the in-
-habitants are from Switzerland. (P.C. 1876f; Maps 1880f;
Hist. Franklin ete., 684; G.H. Caughell)

Switzerland of America
See Pulaski County

Swyers Schocl (Phelps) Swoigz
In e. 8t. Jemes T. A family neme. (Hector Ramori)

Sycamore Spring Hollow (Miller)
In Osage T. A desceriptive name. (Geol. Niller, 23;
Judge Brockman)

Table Rock (Phelps)
A Tlat rock about 30 feet square in the Gasconade R. inm
Arlington T. It resembles a table. (Thomas A. Young)
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Tacket Creek (Gasconade)
A tributary of the Gasconade R, In 1818 Philip Tacket
entered a tract of land on the Casconade k., and became
the first real estete owner in the co. (Conard, III, 5)

/ N
Tappehorn landing (Miller) tzpohorn
On the Osage R. mear St. Elizabeth., Named for William
Tappehorn, who bullt a warehouse there. (Map 1904;
L.A. Barton)

Tavern (Kérios)
See Humphreys

Tavern Creek (killer)
See Big Tavern Creek

Tavern Creek (Pulaski, Miller)
See Big Tavern Creek (Miller)

Taverndale Church (Miller)
In Riehwoods T. It was abandoned msny years ago. It was
located on Big Tavern Creek (g.v.) for which it is ob=
viously named. (Alvis Beiley

Tavern Township (Pulaski) -
In the n.e. part of the co. Nemed for the creek whieh
heads in it. (Robert Page)

Tayloe Sehool (Gasconade) '
In ¢. Brush Creek T. Named for Dave Tayloe. (¥rs. Edward
Shelton; louls landwehr)

**raylors (Phelps)
In Rolla T. MNothing could be learned of this place.
(Campbell's Gaz., 30, 438)

Taylor School (Miller)
In Saline T. Nemed for Brit Taylor who owned the land on
whieh the school was built. (J.E, Hite)

Tea (Casconade)
A discontinued p.o. It was first known as Baur for C.K.
Baur, first postmaster and blacksmith. Baur sold his
property to ¥r. Schaefferkoetter who built a store.
later the store was located at the present site of Tea.
It is saia that when customers wanted whiskey, they
would call for tea, and the place came to be called Tea.
located in s. Canaan T. (P.G. 1891-1921; Collier; Maps
1904-1922; Mrs. Edw. Shelton]

Tennyson School (Maries)
In e. Spring Creek T. A family name. (&.P., Hart)
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Terry Schocl (Maries)
In s. Jeckson T. A family neme. (Everett King)

The Hill (Maries)
See lois

Third Creek (Gasconade, Osage)
A tributary of the Casconade R. in Third Creek T. So
named because it is the third lerge ereek in the co. up
the river from its mouth. (Geo. Schneider)

Third Creek Beptist Chureh (GCesconade)
See Bethel Baptist Church

\
Third Creek Township (Gasconade)
One of the four townships org. 1841 after Csage Co. was
created from Casconade Co. It takes its name from the
ereek which heads in it. (Hist. Franklin etec., 628)

Thompson Hill Sechool (Maries)
In n.w. Boone T, Named for Vm. @hompson who donated the

land {one acere). (N. Prater)

Tnompson's Store (Miller)
See Brumley

Thompson's Store (0Osage)
See Westphalia

*Tiock Creek (Phelps)
Rises in Arlington T. and empties into the Gasconade R.
in Miller T. Also known as Cave Spring Creek becsuse it
heads near the cecave now known as Tick Creek Cave from
which a spring issues. Probably mamed for the insect.
Cf. Tiek Ridge in Bell, Place-Names of the S.¥W. Border
Counties of Missouri. (Thomas A. Youmg)

Tick Creek Cave (Phelps)
In n.e. Arlington T. Named for the creek (g.v.) which
heads near it. It was surveyed by students from the
Rolle School of Mines and is said to be more than 30
miles long. (Thomas A. Young)

**Pitus (Phelps)
A discontinued p.o. Nothing could be learned of this
plao. . (B'Qo 1886" 1895 ’

Toppring School (Miller)
3 mi. 8. of Tuscumbia., Nemed for J.¥. Topring, who owned
the land. (C.B, Bass)
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Tridbune (Pulaski)
A 9.0, in 8. Cullen T. Said to be so named because in
early duys it was a center for news. (P.G. 1886f;
G.¥%. Lane)

Trinity Episcopal Churech (Phelps) .
At 3t. James. A stock church name referring to the
Fsther, Somn, and Holy Ghost. (Col. Charles I. Woods)

Triumph (Osage) '
A discontinued p.o. in n, Jefferson T. Obviously an
ideal neme. (P.G. 1910, 1915; Map 1913)

Trower School (Pulaski) lyey
In Cullen T, Nemed for the Trower family. (G.M. Reed)

Tucker's Store (Maries)
In Miller T, The place was nannd for the first store~
keeper., (John Terrill)

Turkey Creek (Casconade)
A tributary of Second Creek in Boulware T. So named
from the wild turkeys which were once numerous here.
(Geo. Schneider)

Turkey Ridge School (Pulaski)
In e. Iiberty T. It is named for the wild turkey whieh
is still to be round here and for its location on &
ridge. (G.¥. Peed)

*Tuscumbia (Miller)
The ¢o. seat, located near c., of Equality T. It was the
first p.o. in the co. est. 1837. Ezton ssys it was named
for a Chickassw Indian chief. Schultz says it was pro-
bably named for Tuscumbia, Ala., which is more likely.
The Alahama town was doubtless named for the chieftain
of this southern tribe. The name was derived from the
Chickasaw word "Tash~kKae-ambi"™ and means the“warrior whe
kills. Gannett says both towns were named for a
Chickasaw Indian chief (p. 306). (Schultz, 15, 165;
Eaton, 194)

**Ulf (Phelps)
Nothing could be learmed of this place. (P.C. 1895-1902)

Ulman (Miller)
A p.0o. in n.e. Glaze T, It wss a p.c., Schultz says, as
early as 1857 and 1880, but it does not appear in Goodwin's
P.G. of 1867. It was named for a Mr. Ulman, who became
Possessor of the land in 1842. Before 1896 it was known
as Ulmen's Pidge. J.C. newspaper 1857 says p.o. est. at
Ulman Ridge. P.C. 1870f; Schultz, 18, 81; Rist. Cole
ete., 571; Jefferson City Inquirer, May 2, }
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Ulmen'’s Ridge (Miller)
See Ulman )

Union Churech (Miller)
In Riehwoods T. Org. about 1891, It is a upion church
used by the Adventists and others. (Mrs. Josie Atwell)

Union PTownship (Pulaski)
In the n.e. part of the co. An ideal name.

Upper Mill Creek School (Phelps)
In s. Iiberty T. It is nemed for Mill Creek (c.v.) neer
the source of which it is located. (W,E. Duncam)

¥*Useful (Osage)
A alseontinued p.o. in s.e. Crawfora T. No information
could be odbtained about the origin of this n=me.
(P.G. 1886-1890, 1910-1918; Maps 1913, 1936)

Van Buren (Osage) vV®&n bruvan
An abandoned village 5 mi. s.e. of the site of Limnn. A
Mr. Goodmen had a mill here. The lend was bought and
12id out into town lots. An effort was mede to secure the
co. seet, dut in vein, and the place soon died. Pro-
bably nemed for Pres. Martin Van Puren (1849-1853),
¥isspelled "Vanburin® in the co. records. (Eist, Cole
etc., 642, 645)

Vancleve (Maries) :
A discontinued p.o. in w. Boone T, Named by H.V. Warren,
a representative in the state legislature for ¥eries Co.,
for his friend Vancleve, a representative from ancther
co. (1885) (P.G. 1886-1918, 1930; Maps 1904, 1913,
1936; N. Prater)

Venus (Maries) Y inas
A discontinued p.o. in Boone T, Named for a girl, Venus
Riley. (P.G., 1915-1932; R.M. 1936; John Terrill)

Verhoff School (Osage)
In e. Jackson T. A femily name. (John Peters)

Vermon Scnool (Miller)
2 mi. . of Aurora Springs. Numed for Wilbur Vernon,
who gave the land and org. the school. (John Rush;
Dave Graham; J.H. Vernon)

Vernon Springs (Miller) :
2 mi. . of Aurora Springs. The c¢o. atlas shows ¥ Vernon
farms near and touching it. Laid out by Wilbur Vernom im
1882 ana named by him for the Vernon femily. It never
developed. (Co. Atlas; J.H. Vernon)
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Vessie (Phelps)
A p.o. in o, Liberty T. There seems to have been no
reason for the name except that it was short and not
likely to be confused. (D.G. 1910f; Frank Groves;
W.E. Duncan) :

** Vest (Phelps)

Nothing ecould be learned of this place. (P.C, 1886-1899)
Vetc (Maries) vife

A discontinued p.o. in Johnson T. £.I. Joyce, the first
postmaster, saw the name on a stove and used it because
it was short, though many prople thought the name was
given because Pres. Cleveland wes vetoing so muny bills,
(P.C. 1904-1932; Mape 1922, 1936; A.IL. Joyce)

Vichy (Maries) vit{r, vrlr
A town in Johnson T. consiaerably famea locally for its
mineral water springs, similar to those of Vichy, France,
for which it is nemed. Laid out in 1880. (P.C. 1886f;
Maps 1904f; Hist. Cole etc., 615)

Vietor School (Oseage)
In 8. Crawford T. Probably an ideal name., Formerly
Compton Hill Sehool, for a prominemt citizen who owned
the l=2nd. (John Peters) :

Yietory School (Maries)
In n. Boone T. Obviously an ideal name.

Vieman (Casconade) viman
An abandoned village located near the e, of Bourbois T.
It was named for the proprietor of the store.
(¥m. Collier)

Vienmna (Harios) V“5“3,V‘ N
In Jackson T. The co. seat of Maries Ce. Dr., Y.C.
latham, the presiding co. judge, it is sald, had had a
young woman in his family named Vie Anna, who had dled,
and he wanted the commissioners to give it that name in
her ponor. Commissioner MecCord, however, thinking suech
a course unwise, outwitted the old doctor by naming it
for the Austrian capital, Vienna, a name so similar that
the doctor's opposition was silenced. Varins 1is used by
many uneducated people, sportsmen, ete¢. The majority of
the townspeople, however, now say vitns .
(P.G. 1867f; Hist. Cole ete., 595; Eaton, 195)

Viessman (Maries)
See Brinktown

Viessman Station (Maries)
See Brinktown
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Vida (Phelps) vids |
A p.0o. in Cold Spring T. Named by Harry Groves, the first
postmaster, for a girl he kmew. (P.G. 1899f; Frank
Groves)

**Vilean (Phelps)
Nothing could be learmed of this place. (P.C. 1910-1918)

Vosholl (Osage) V<*& >
A discontinued p.o. in s.e. Lina T. Named for J.W.
Vosholl, prominent Osage Co. lawyer ivr the 1880's and
1890's. (P.G. 1901-1918, 19z22; Maps 1904f; Hist. Cole
ete., 664; J.R. Garstang)

Walker School (Maries)
In Johnson T. Neamed for lMoses Walker, who ownea the
land. (J.P. Hart)

Wullace Creek (Gasconade) :
A tributary of Dry Fork in Bourbois T. Named for an
early family who lived on it. (0.F. Scheel)

Wallace's Landing (Osage)

In Iinn T. on the Mo. R. between Bonnot's Mill and St.

Aubert. It was a p.o. in 1860. Misspelled Nullace's

L. on Parker's ma 1865, and Nallace's L. on Nicely's
1867. (Prac cally same location on maps as Dailey,
i1, noxnight. A Mr. Wallace was one of the earliest

aettlars in 1812. (Mo. Gaz., 465; Map 1873; Hist.

Franklin etec., 620)

Walnut Grove School (Miller) '
1 mi. n..of Bagnell. Named for the walinut grove, in the
midst of which it stands. (Jag. R. Pruitt)

Warren School (Miller)
S mi. s. of Brumley. Named for John Warren, landowner.
(C.C. Wornell)

Washington Baptist Church (Maries)
In w. Miller T. Named for Washington School (g.v.)
(N. Prater)

Washington School (Maries)
In w. Miller T. Named for President George Washington.
(Everett King)

Washington Township (Osage)
The miadle Township. Named for President George

Was?ington. Org. 1841. (E.M. Zevely; Hist. Cole etec.,
646
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Wash School (Phelps)
In w., Dawson T. Named for Thomas Wash on whose land the
school was built. (Mrs. Adolph Nickles)

Watkins (¥iller)
A village in n.w. Richwoods T.; p.o. est. before 1910.
The place was named for William Shelton "atkins, who
settled near here before 1895, He was killed in a
skirmish on his way to Jjoin the Confederate army of Gen.
Sterling Price. The p.o. was given his name at the
recuest of his son James Watkins. The town was origin-
ally known as Little Richwoods. Cf. Big Richwoods.
(P.G. 1910f; Sehultz, 18; G, Schultz)

Watson's Fork (Casconade, Maries)
Joins Dry Fork to form the Bourbeuse R. in Brush Creek
T. Named for the Watson family in thet section.
(Tom Bowen)

Wayman (Pulaski)
An abanuoned village s.e. of Waynesville. Probably nam-
ed for a pioneer family. (Robert Page; G.M. Reed;
Map 1857)

waynesville (Pulaski)
The co. seat of Pulaski in e¢. Cullen T. ILaia out inm
1859. Named by Harvey Woou, who secured the p.o., for
Gen. Anthony Wayne (1746-1796), hero of the Battle of
Stony Point. The site was donated for a town in 1804 by
William Moore end Josian Christeson. Enc. Hist. No.
says the town was laid out in 1834, which seems reason-
able since the p.o. was est. in 1837 or earlier and the
co. was org. inm 1835. (P.G. 1837f; Hist. Laclede, 124,
148; Enc. Hist. Mo., VI, 412; J.C, Trib., Oct. 5, 1893,
p. 4; Dict. of Am. Biog.)

Waynesville Spring (Pulaski)
See Roubidoux Spring

Weeks Christian Church (Osage)
See Fairview Christian Church

Welcome (Osage)
A discontinued p.o. in Crawford T. Obviously an ideal
name. (P.G. 1886-1915; Maps 1904f)

Weldon (Maries) '
A discontinued p.o. in s. Boone T. Named for the “eldon
family. (Everett King; W.M. Krone; P.G. 1886-1924;

Maps 1904-19z2)

West Aurora (Miller)
A stution on the Mo. Pac. R.R, about a half mile s.w. of
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Aurora Springs in Franklin T. It was laid out in 1882
by A.F. Armstrong when Aurora Springs was booming. A
neme of position. (Hist. Cole ete., 542)

**westcott (Phelps)
Nothing could be learned of this place. (P.G. 1895-1904)

West FairviewSchool (Maries)
In Boone T. A descriptive name. Cf. East Fairview
School.

-%estphalia (Osage)
A village on the Meries R. in "ashington 7. It was sett-
led and luid out in 1835 by Catholies from the province
of Yestphalizs, Germany, for which it was nemed. Settled
1853. Also known as Thompson's Store for John Thompson
who had a store there before the town was lizid out by the
Germans. (Hist. Cole etc., 642, 679; Osage Dir., 19)

Wet Auglaize (Miller) :
A branch of the Grand Auglaize (g.v.). It never goes
dry. cof. Dry Auglieze (g.¥v.). Also known as Wet Glaize.

(Jas., V', Dinwiddie)

Wet Glaize (Niller)
See Vet Auglaize

Whalen Branech (Miller)
A tripbutary of the Osage R. near St. Elizabeth., Named for
an early family, who lived on the land. Also known as
Hymen Branch for the family who now owns the land. Known
in early days as Lick Braneh for several artificial deer
licks on it. (L.A. Barton; Tom Clark)

Wharton (Puleski)
A discontinued p.o. in Cullen T. Named for the first
postmaster, Mrs. Magnolia Wharton. (P.G. 1910-1932;
G.W. Lane) :

Wheeler (Pulaski) ,
A discontinued p.o. in Union T. Also known as Lipscomb
¥1i1ll for the builder of the mill. The name was changed
to Wheeler for the l1ast owner of the mill. (P.G. 1890~
1915; G.V. Reed)

Wheeler School (Maries)
In n.w. ¥iller T. Named for the "heeler family.
(Jonn Terrill)

White School (Miller)
In s.e. Osage T. So named because it is kept painted
white. (Alvin Bailey)



-118-

Wild Cat Sehool (Osage)
In Crawford T. So named because of its location in very
wild section of the co. It is preetically inaccessibdle.
There is no road within a mile of it. (Johm Peters)

Wild Hog Cave (Phelps)
In e. Spring Creek T. So called because hogs were allow-
ed to run loose and become wild. The hogs slept in this
ecave. (J.B. Clark)

Wildwood (Pulaski)
A discontinued p.o. in Cullen T. The name is descrip-

Wiles Sehool (¥aries)
In e. Boone T. Named for the Wiles family. (N. Prater)

Wilkins Cave (Phelps)
In Iiberty T. Namea for the owner. (W.E. Duncen)

Wilkins Spring (Phelps)
In e. Libverty T. Also known as Hopkims Spring for a
former owner. Namea for the present owner. Its flow is
4,700,000 gallons per day. (McCanse, 12D; W.E. Duncan)

Wilson's Cave (Miller)
On Tavern Creek near the mouth of Berren Fork. Named for
John Wilson, an eccentric character who settled here in
le22 ane spent his first winter, together with his fam-
ily, in this cave. He lived to be 100 years old (d1859),
and, at his wish, his body was packed in salt in the
coffin he had prepared and with a demi johm of good whis-
key wes placed in a small wing of the cave. The cave
opening was walled up. It was supposed to be opened 7
years after his death ao that his friemds eculd enjoy the
eontents of the demijohn, but it was not opemed until
about 30 yeers ago when vandals broks the seal. (Schultsz
123,)130; Conard, 385; J.C. Peoples Tribune, Nov. 18,
1874

Wilson School (Miller)
In Osage T. A family neme. (John Leutkemeyer)

Wimmer Creek (Miller)
A tributary of Big Tavern Creek not far from Capps.
Named for Jacodb Wimmer, the first settler om the creek.
{Tom Clark)

Winklemzn Sehool (Osage)
In Washington T. A femily name. (John Peters)

Winkler (Phelps)
A p.0. in e¢. Meramec T. est. 1901, discontinued 1952.
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Named for Iohn wxnklor who opennd the large iron nine

Winkler Braneh R.R. (Phslpa)
A branch line of the Friseco R.R. from Salem to Cuba.
After it was started in 1865, it was diseontinued and re-
built several times according to a varying success of the
iron mines. It was finally diseontinued in 1934. It
was named for Winkler (g.v.), a mining town which it
served. (M.F. Malone)

Wire Road (Phelps)
Follows approximately the route which is now U.S. High-
way 66. During the Civil War a telegraph wire was
stretched along this road from Rolla to Springfielad.
(Col. Chas. L. ¥Woods; W.E. Duncan)

Wiseman School (Gasconade)
In ¢. Canaan T. Named for the Wiseman family.
(F.C. Price) N
Wishon School (Phelps) VVIg‘xY
In 8. Cold Spring T. A family name. (Jacob Schwartz)

Wishon's Store (Phelps)
See Dillon

Wittenbaen School (0sage)
In Benton T. A family neme. (John Peters)

Wolf Creek (Phelps)
A tributary of Beaver Creek in Cola Spring T. Named for
the animal which is still %o be found here oeeasionally.
(Frank Groves)

Wolfe Sehool (Phelps)
In Meramee T. A family mame. (M.F, Malone)

Woodend (Pulaski) VJUC\Q“‘{
In n. Liberty T. on the Frisco R.R. So named because in
the early days of the railroad this was & place for
1acomotiv7. to take on wood for fuel. (Campbell's;
G.7. Lane

Woollaem (Gasconade) WL Lo

A discontinued p.o. in s.e. Third Creek T. on Cedar Fork.
Named for a person named "oollam who est. a pP.0. &ana own-
ed a store sometime before 1860. Others say he was a
journeyman tailor. This was the site of the old town.
The store and p.o. were later moved to another site and
retained the p.o. name. When speaking of the two sites,
the people of the neighborhoou use the terms 0la Woollam
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and New Woollem. (P.G. 1870-1932; Maps 1865f; Collier:;
J.C. Price)

Wright's ¥ill (Miller)
2 mi. n. of Tuscumbia. It was a flour mill, a woolen
mill, eand a lumber mill. Power was furnished by the
large spring known as Wright's Spring. Nsmed for Jas.
L. "right who built and operated it. (0.W. Wright)

Wright's School (Miller)
o mi. n. of Tuscumbia., Named for Jas. L. Vright, who
owvned a mill below the spring. (C.W,., Wright)

Wright's Spring (Miller)
2 mi. n. of Tuscumbia, It is the largest spring in the
¢o. Flows into little Saline Creek. Named for J.L.
Wright, who built a mill below it. (0.W. Wrignt)

Wynn School (Phelps)
In 8. Miller T. Named for William Wynn on whose land it
is locuted. (Thomas A. Young)

Yaney (Phelps) J *mst
See Yaney Mills

Yancy Mills (Phelps)
A p.o. in Cold Spring T. Named by lewis Fields Wright,
who built the first mill there, for his old home, Yaney,
Virginia. Originally kmown a&s Yaney. (P.G. 1867f;
Taylor; C.M., Hargus)

Yelton School (Phelps)

In ¢e. Liberty T. Named for William Yelton, one of the
first settlers in this section. (W.E., Duncan)

Yelton Spring (Phelps)
A large spring in Iiberty T. Named for William Yelton,
one of the first settle rs in this section, who owned it
at one time. (W.E. Duncan)

Yorks (Phelps)
See Ozark Iron Works

York's Leg (Phelps)
See Dawson T.

York's Station (Phelps)
See Ozark Iron VYorks

Zion Evangelical Church (Gasconade)
In ¢. Boulware T. Org. 1904. Zion was one of the hills
on which Jerusalem was built. (Bible Dict.; H.F,
Waldecker) :

Ziony Fvaagelsial Ll i eh (Grscwviee J,;)

T e llag 7. org, 1860
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Zion Hill Baptist Chureh (Phelps)
In n.w. Meramec T. Obviously named for Zion, one of the
hills on which Jerusalem was built. (Hebrews xii. 22)

Zion Hill Sechool (Phelps)
In Meramee T. near Ziom Hill Baptist Church (g.v.) for

which it is obviously named.

Zion Methodist Church (Pulaski)
In ¢. Tavern T. Org. 1881. Cf. Zion Hill Baptist
Church (Phelps). (Hist. laclede, 1l62; Robert Page)

Zoar (Gasconade) zo ar
See Manda

Zoar Methodist Chureh (Gasconadse)

In Third Creek T. Zoar was the place to which 1ot and
his daughters escaped and which wus spared when Sodom
and Gomorrah were destroyed, because of its littleness
(Gen. xix. 22). The name means little. Also known as
New Woollam Methodist Church for the village of Kew
Woollem (%.!.) at which it is located. (J.C. Price;
Bible Dict. )

Zoar Presbyterian Church (Gasconade)
In e. Third Creek T. Cf. Zoar Methodist Chureh.



CHAPTER TWO
CLASSES OF PLACE-NAKES
INTROLUCTION

In collecting the materizl for the preceding dletion-
&ry o numes sOme novel snswers were encountered. One
barefooted oldi woman in southern Miller County, when asked
why China Sehool was 80 named, answered in a somewhat
irritated tone of voice, "Wal, whut ﬂlffcrenc- would it
muke®” Several insisted that it hed Just alweys been ocall-
ed by that name. Une man thought he remembered that at
the time the schocl was built & well was dug or drilled.
The well, when it was finished, was 80 deep that the work-
men had remarked that they had almost had to go through to
China. "And eo they culled it China School". When this
story was tola, several other men rumamﬁure& it #2nd vouche
edi for it. It might have been believed if thne faet had
not been establisked thet the sehool was kaown as China
School for many years beiore anytody attempibeu Lo dig or
arill a well.

A dictionery is not a treatise on lunguage; it is e
reference book in which single words of interest can be
found. 8o a dictionary of place-names is not a really
complete study of the names in a seetion of the country.

A classification of the names not only adds usefulness to
the study, adds interest to the numes, and throws more

light on them, it also shows many faets about the people
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and the historr of the seetion.

Place-numes are c¢lassified logically into five
groups, and each section is subdivided into smsller groups
which seem to0 be natural divisions. The five groups sare

given here in brief:

I Borrowed Numes (216) 17.3%
IT Historicel Names (D03) 26.5%
II1 Personal Names (522) ¢1.9%
IV Environmental Names (326) £6.2%
V Subjective Names (204 ) 16.4%
Unsolved liumes ( 66) 5.3%

This glives & total of 1687. The uctual number of
nunes treated is lied. .Tnare is un overlapping of 4z,
due L0 double or triple eclassification. The percentuges
above have been f(igured on the pesis of the sumuller pumver,

CLASCIFICATION OF »LACE-NALLS

I. BORIOWED NamES (216)

A. Stock Names (B)

Chester; Iberia; Jersey; Pulmwski; Foyel.

B. From FPorelgn Places (45)

Asia Minor; Philadelphis; Smyrna Christisn Chureh
Austria: Austrias; Vienna
Belgium: Flanders Field
Cuba: Woro School
England: Chester; High Cate
France: Dauphine (?); Gescondy(?); Vichy
Germany: Frankenstein; Oldenburg; Potsdum; 3telpe;
Westphalia .
Ancient Greece: Berean Baptist Church; Corinth;
Vacedonia
Palestine: Bethleheu Bapiist Church; Calvery Bap-
tist Chureh; Cansen; Idumea Baptist
Church; Moab; ¥Mt. Carmel Baptist Chureh;
¥t. Herman Beptist Chureh; ¥t. Olive
Baptist Church (2); Mt. Tabor School;
¥t. Zion Baptist Chureh; Palestine;
Pisgan Baptist Chureh; Pisgah Christian
Church; Salem; Salem FPresbyteriun
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Chureh; New Salem Chureh; Zion Evan-
gelical Chureh; Zion Hill EBaptist
Churen; Zion Methoaist Chureh; Zoar
Secotland: Argyle
Spein: Alhambra Crotto; lberie (7)
Switzerland: New lHelvetia
Syrie: Antioch

From Other States (16)

Alabama: Tuscumbia (7?)
Califormie: Friscc R.KR.; St. louis «nu Cun Fran-
¢isco H.R.; Csliforuls House

Delaware: Dover School

Illincis: Dixon

Xentucky: Eaintuck Hollow

louisizna: Iberia (?)

New York: Kinderhook; QOlean

North Carolina: Yency Mills

ghic: Seioto (7)

Oklehoma: Oklahoma Baptist Church

Virginia: Arlington; ¥t. Vernon Churenr (°);
Spring GCarden

local Transfers (6)
1. From other sec¢tions of Missouri

Beemont (Franklin Co.); B. Methodist Chureh

Ozerk Vounteins: Ceascogark; leske of the Czarks;
Ozark; Ozark Iron Works

St. Aubert (Callaway Co.): St. Aubert

£. From natursl features

a. Streams (73)
Baileys Creek: Baileys Creek (p.o.)
Beaver Creek: Deaver; B. Braneh K.K.; B.C.
Eine; B. Union Church; B.
Velley
Bell's Creek: B.C. Christiam Church
Big Piney liver: B.P’. Baptist Chureh; P.
Township
Big Tuverm Creek: T. Township; Tavernaule
Churech
Blue Springs Creex: .5, Baptist Chureh
Boeuf Creek: B. Township
Bourbeuse FRiver: Bourbois; Bourbois Town-
ship _
Brush Creek: B.C, Township
Buek Elk Creek: B.E, Baptist Church; B.E.
8chool
Cadet Creek: C.C, Sechool
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Clifty Creek: C, School
Deer Creek: D,C, School
Dry Creek: D.C. School
Gasconade Piver: Geasconade; (., Baptist
Chureh; G, City; G. County;
G. Ferry; &. Township;
Gascozark
Gourd Creek: G.C, Cave
Crand Auglaize: Gleze Township
Humphrey's Creek: H, Christisn Church
Indisn Creek: I.C. Sehool
leboeul Creek: leboeuf (p.o.)
Iittle Berger Creek: little Berger (p.o.)
Iittle Gravois Creek: Little Gravois (p.o.)
Iittle dMaries Creek: L.N. Beptist Churech
Iittle Piney Creek: Little Piney (p.o.);
¥. Cave; P, ipring
Iittle Saline Creek: 2., Valley Christiun
Church
Iittle Tevern Creek: Tavern (p.o.)
Ipose Creek: loose Creek (p.0.)
Maries River: Maries (p.o.}; ¥. County;
. Township
Meramee River: M. Iron Works; M. Spring;
M. Towamship
Mill Creeik: Mill Creek (p.c.) (now Brumley)
Mill Creek: Upper MN.C. School
North Spring Creek: S5.C. Baptist Churech
Osage River: 0. County; O. Dam; C. Township
(2); School of the 0.
Pointer's Creek: P.C. School
Raebblt Head Creek: R.H, School
Red Osk Creek: H.0, Methodist Church
Roubidoux Creek: B, Methouist Church; R.
Springs; R. Township
Buline Creek: S. Township
Shawnee Creek: 2,0, School
Smith's Creek: Smith's Creek (p.o.)
Spring Creek: £.C. Township
Spring Creek: Spring Creek (p.o.); &.C.
Cave; 5.0. Township
T™hird Creek: T.C, Baptist Church; T.C.
Township
Tick Creek: T.C. Cave

Springs end lukes (7]

Aurore Springs: A.3. Brunch; Aurora Cave
iake of the QOzarks: Lauke Ozark

lNeramec Spring: K. Springs; Neramec
Kossy Spring: ¥.3. Metroaist Church
Swan Leke: 3. Creek
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¢. Groves and hills (2)

Bear Md”: B.F. 8ehool
Bell Bluff: B.R. Cave

d. Prairies (&)
Canasn Frairie: Cunuan; Cana&n Township (?)

o. From earlior~artltlclal feantures
a. Churches (24)

Alder Springs Churen: A.3. School

Elm Spring Chureh: E.3. Sehool

Flatwoous Baptist Chureh: Flaetwood; nnt.-

wood Methoulst
Churech

Hermony Chureh: H. School

Hickory Point Chureh: H,P, School

Iittle Flock Baptdst Chureh: L.F. School

Yascedonia Churches: Mecedounia

Wt. Aerial Methoaist Chureh: ¥... School

¥t, Herman Chureh: l.H. Sechool

¥t., Zion Duptist Church: ¥.Z. School

Heeamore Bbaptist Chureh: N, School

Ouk ¥orest Baptist Chureh: 0.¥. School

Pisgah Baptiet Chureh: F. School

Plessant CGrove Chureh: P.C. School

Pleasunt Crove Fethodist Chureh: P.G.School

Fhea Beptist Chureh: Rk, School

5%. inthomy's Church: 3t. Anthony

8t, Flizebeth's Chureh: St. Rlizaebeth; 0l1d
8.E. Church

8t. Very's Church: lMary's Home; Ot. Mary's

Zion Hill Baptist Chureh: 7ion Hill Sechool

Zoar Churches: Zoar

b. Sehcols (5)

Branson School: Branson ¥ethoaist Church
College Hill Sehool: College Hill Baptist
Chureh

Cak Grove Sechool: Osk Orove Church of
Christ

Palace School: Pulace

Vashington Sehool: Vaushington Duptist
Churen

4. From towns, post offices, and other setile~
ments, not including town scnocls (14)

Argyle: Argyle lake
Arlington: A, Township
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Aurora Springs: West Aurors
Bagnell: B. Dam

Beaver: B. Braneh R.H.

Big Richwoods: R, Township
Gageville: G, 3echool

Inaian Village: Inalun Creek
Koeltatown: XK. lake

New “oollam: N,W. Methodist Chureh
Rolla: R. Township

8t, James: 3.J. Township
Haynesville: V. Spring
Winkler: . Bransh H.3.

From tornships, counties end the stautes (1)

¥iller Counvy: N¥. Township

rom loubetries and trade nemes (6)

De Cemp Mine: De Camp

Duke (from Duke's Wixture tobacco)

Glenco luke ( from Glenco whiskey)

Knotwell Iron Works: K. Presbyterian Church;
£. Sehoocl

3timson Nine: Stimson

From railrouds and highways (&)

Friseo R.R.: Frisco lzke

Miscellaneous (8)

Bend 3ohool: Horseshoe Bend Gchool

Carpes Cemp Crounda: C,0, Methodlist Chureh;

C.G. Sehool
Hay Follow: H.H. 3chool
Kainvuck lollow: K. Baptist Chureh; K.3ehool
Iindell Ory Goods Co.: Iiuﬂﬁll
Sinful Bend: Bena

Place~numes lire clothes usually uo not iit so well

when they are borrowed. #When they ule redorroweéu they bde-

come less attractive und less reasonable. Plsgan is an

appropriate nume for u churehn though it refers cunly in a

vague way 40 the Holy Land and doubtless had & definite

meaning; but when it is borrowed agaim for & schocl whiech

caen show RO olaim to the name except that it stands nearbdy,
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it has lititle mesning left. Certeinly, it hes less meaning
than such numes a3 Pay. Down, Contrary Creek, or even
Pleasant Crove. Of numes borrowed for a reason some are
more appropriate than others. Vichy hass medicin«l springs
said t0 be similar to those in Viehy, France, but ¥t, Zion
has not much to ieecmmand it as & school neme. Some numes
are borrowed because they ‘sound good or for sowe other in-
definite reason sueh as Chester, Royal, Jersey. UNaybe they
were not conscicusly borrowed from a eertein plece at all.

Nearly all of Osage County and large parts of Cascon-
aue and Maries Counties were seltled by Germsns. There are
muny Cerman numes in these three counties, vut most of them
ale personal Dumes. Only [ive are setually vorrowea Irom
Germany. u¥ost of the other numes borroweu irom foreign
pPlaces are from Pulestine or borrowed througn tne Bible as
those from Syria, Ancient Greeee, und Asiaz ¥inor.  The re-
maining foreign loans are scattered much ss they might be
in any other average section of tiiilnr size in the United
States.

Since most borrowed names ait from near neighbors,
the "local Transfers™ take up moat of the "Forrowed Names”
section. The largest group of loeel tranafers 1s from
streams since the streams are named {irst by explorers and
ploneers. It is & small creek indeed that does not heve at
least a school or a chureh named for it. It is practieally
& rule with plaee-pumes that if & ereek =zmi a churcn have

the same neme, the chureh was numed for the ereek. Similar



reasoning very often applies ito ehurches, for in the see-
tion investigated, fifteen schools sre named for churehes.
The church wes an earlier institution then the sehool. 1In
feot, muny of the first schools wseed church vulldings for
some time beiore a sepurate vuilding was provided. Often
the school was bullt nearby ani borrowed tihe church name.
The only other importeat group of loans is from
towns, post ofiices, and other setilements. In this group
is variety: 2 lukes, 4 towuships, & churches, & reilroads,
z other towns or setilements, & spring, a creek, a schcol,
and & dam.
II. Historleal Numes (J99)
4. General
1. Indien (4)
Veramec; Osage; Oshawa; Shawnee
&, Discovery and early exploration (30)

Bear Creek; Big Berger Creek; Eoeul Creek;
Bourbeuse HRiver; Buffalo Creek; Caverne

Creek; Dry Auglaize; Frene Creek; Casconade;

Casconade City; Gasconade River; Glaize;
Orand Auglaize Creek; Indien Creek; Indian
Pord; Inuian Town; Indian Villege; Little
Berger Creek; loose Creek; L'Curs Creek;
Marais Creek; Rivibre & la Caverne; niviere
au_Berger; hividre au Poeuf; 1vicrs aux
Frenes; Riviere Grande Glaiae. Tiviere
Saline; Saline Creek; South koreau; Wet

Auglaize
S« Piloneer wnd territorial éxygﬁaion (8)
Buek Elk Creek; Colly Hollow; Deer Creek;

French Village; Oklaboms Christian Chureh;
Relfe; Vianlluce's lanaing; wilson's Cave
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local nistory (3)

Bartonsville; moddy Islana; Casconade City
Hexican War and the Forty-Niners (2)
Californie House; Seint Annie

Civil war (8)

Crubtree Cave; Fort Wyman; Iberia (?); 0Old
Wire Road; Famsey Cave; Wire Poad

Spunish imerican Wer (1)
¥ore Sechool
World War (1)

Pershing

A Table of Pariqﬁa‘

1.

8.

D

4.

Kative or Indian period (6)

‘Indian Creek (2); Veramee Piver; Osage

River; Cshawa; Shewnee Creek
Trench and Spanish period (20)

Big Berger Creek; Bosuf Creek; Bourbeuse
River; Ceverne Creek; Dry Auglaige; French
Village; Frene Creek; Gasconade River;
Grand Auglaize Creek; ILittle Berger Creek;
Litsle Gravols Creek; L'Ours Creek; L'Ourse
Creek; Meruis CreeX; Rivibre sux Frénes;
Rividre Orande Glaige; Riviere Ssline;
gali:u Creek; South Moreau; Wet Auglaize
ree

Territorial period (10)

Boone Township; Boon Township; Clark Town-
ship; Colly Hollow; Gmsconade County;
Indien Creek; Indico Pord; Inuiesn Town;
Indisn Village; %ilwon's Cave

County Organization and settlement (36)

lBzz Cullims T.; Gibson T.; Cray T.;
Skaggs T.

1825 Bartonsville; Starkey's Bluff

1826 ¥eramee Irom Works



1828
182
13353

1834
1857

1838
1839

%. Trom

8.

1840
1841
dbdéo
144
dt40
lo49
1880
1881
18%o
1udo
1806
1807
labe
1859
1860
From

186z
1864

1865

1868

i8e7?
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Bourbcis T.; Mount Sterling

Maries T.; Smitn's Creek (p.o.)

Cullen T.; Gustonade T.; Iiberty T.;
Tiney T.; Pulaski County; Westpnalia
Harmony T.; Roark T.; Weynesville

Cave Spring p.o0.(?); Delphi; Doudle
Chimneys Church; Zquality T.; Halloway;
Hermann; ¥inderhook; ¥iller County:
Reed T.; Tuscumbdbia

Glaze T.; Iberiz; Jim Henry 7.
Iummaculate Conception Cathelie Chureh;
Usage T.; St. Joseph's Catholic Church

1840 to the Civil "ar (45)

Chureh of the Sacreda Heart; Jim iHenry
Methodist Churech; Mt. Vernon Churech;
Palestine

Boulware T.; Crewford T.; Juckson T.;
Jefferson T.; Linn T.; O=zage County;
Third Creek T.; VYashington T.

Big Piney Baptist Chureh

Blue Spring Baptist Church; Mount
Plessunt Daptist Church

Cansan T.; Plessant Mount; Rienland T.
Hickory Point Christian Church

Elm Spring Baptist Church

California House (7)

Bailey's Creek(p.o.); Cansun;
Fredericksburgh; Iisle; locky Point
Humphrey's Christien Church; laries
County; Nedora; St. John's Rvangelical
Chureh

Castle Hock; Chamois

Arlington T.; Cold Spring 7.; Phelps
County; Ulmaun's Ridge

Brush Creek; Lange Store; Rolla
Boegers Store) Seloto

Puck Elk Baptist Church; Franklin T.;
8t., James; Yallace's lLanding

the Civil “ar to 1900 (117)

3t. Patrick's Catholic Chureh
Alder Springs Church; Mount Zion
Baptist Churah

&t, Mary's Cstholic Church; Yinkler
Braneh R.R.,

Berean Baptist Chureb

Clifty Dele; Clinton Mize; Fremont
Town; High Crove; Isbell Stationg
Koeltztown; Laecon; Liberty Church;
Mossy 3Spring Methodist Chureh; 3%.
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1869 Prum

1870

i87g

A870

nlun

Ceorge’'s Catholie Chureh; Springvale;
Vienna
Green Ridge Church; New Salem Chureh;
spring Garden

:{ Crocker; Diyon; Hancook;
Inmnculate Conception Catholic Chureh;
Riehluna
Bliss; DPrake; Dublin Baptist Chureh;
ioose Creek fp.e.); Peachland; St.
Elizebeth's Churech; Stony Hill
Flatwooas Chureh; Huckney Diggings;
Taumea Buptt-t Chureh; k¥t. Herman
Chureh
comri tnsmh. Gott Church; kt. Ziom

~ Colored Church; Plemsunt Crove Baptist

1694
1896
1876

1878
1899
1880

lesl
lese

le8as
188%

leeé

1887
1888
1889
1890
1891
1692
1895
1895

Church

EKnotwell Iron Works

Charleytown

Bellefonte; Dundas; Crovedsle; Fope;
¥iddaridge; Swiss

Palrview YMethodist Chureh; Sauuoborc
Christ Eplscopal Church
Aurors Springs; Mt. Olive Baptist
Churech; Viehy

Eldon; Clean; Tleasant Crove ¥Methoaist
Church; Zion Methodist Church

Bagnell; Vary's Home; Ot. Mary's Chureh;
Vernon Springs; Wut. Aurora

Hewburg

Hopewell Church; ¥t. Zion Congregation-
&l Church; New Hopo Paptist Chureh;
Measunt F¥ill United Prethren Churech
Babbtown; Big Tiney; Fngelbert;
Feuersville; Tlora; Wighgete; lLindell;
Iuystown; m mu- Tavern

Jersey; leboeuf; muaax- Chureh;
8tolpe

New Eethel Chureh; Rolling Yeath Chureh
Charlotte

Aud; Fronks; Freedom

Bnﬂon. Keteulf; ¥oub; Tea

Blackmer; Broemn

Belle; Cepps; Claxby; Koenig

Atwell; Frankenstein; Potsdum

1896 Brays; Cadmus; Cainbdby; Carrol; lLight;

1897
leos
lu99

Margeret

8t. Anthomy's Cetholic Churehn

¥ore Echocl

Bloodlund; Droadway; Edenville; Fyan;
Sentee; Spuaing
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7. The Twentietn Century (4¢)

1900 Anderson 3echool; Brownfielo; Central
Eaptist Chureh; laguey

1901 Bend; Plyze; Dan; ¥asith; Glenwood
Beptist Chureh; Heck; Hooker; Vosholl;
winkler

1902 Decker; Hanns; Hoecker

1904 Crook; ZLtterville; Flynn; lane; leta;
¥t, Carmel Baptist Church; Veto; Zion
¥vangelie=al Chureh

1906 St. Anthony's Chureh

1910 Cescondy; Hawkins; Judge; Mt. View
Chureh; Totts; Wharton; Wildwood

1918 Curtis; Venus

1921 Pershing

19%4 8sline Valley Church

1925 3t., Theresa's Catheolie Church

1928 Devil's Elbow

1929 Tekezide

1950 Rosati

1931 Inke of the Czsarks

1938 lake Gzark; New Mope Pentecost Chureh

1938 Our lady of TMerpetusl Help Catholie
Church

Flece-numes should be as intaresting to the historian
&8 they are to the etymologist. The numes of » section re-
flect its history, and in the nemes of elmost =ny group of
eounties can be traced the history of the nation,

There are only four Indien nomes in this section of
the state. The scarcity is probably due to the fact that
the Indians left or were driven out before the white men
became acqueinted with them well enough to leurn theiyp
nemes and their langusge. This section has no Spanish
names, probably because of the distunce from early Spanish
centers such as St. Louis; but it is rich in French names.
Heurly all the French names are of rivers und oreeks be-
cause the culckest and emsiest means of traveling through

the forest was on rivers and large creoks, and the first
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white men to G0 any eatensive traveling were the Frenech
trappers und traders. Lost of the French creek naxes are
for animels or trees or are descriptive of the character of
the stresms. Probably if a trader, eccazasting slong in his
canoe or pirogue, szw several buffaloes or bears, he nomed
the creek boeuf or l'ourse; if he noticed many ash trees he
nemed it frene; if the stresm was puddy, he nemed it
Auglaize or Bourbeuse.

There is only one name from the lexican Yar and one
from the Cold Rush, but therc are six from the Civil War.
There are one esch from tae Spauioh%mx'ienn Fer and the
torla %ar. The Hevolutionery 'ar is remembered in VWaynes-
ville und Pulaski County.

If ome may Juage {rom the tuble of periods, most of
the churches were pdDuilt between 1840 and 16890, and most of
the importunt eoresks and rivers were mamed before Lissouri
became a state.

IIY. PERSONAL NAMES (528)

A. Poreign (29)
Boaz (boaz)
Byron, lord (Zyrom)
Cadmus [Cadmus
Hermunn (known s Arminius) (Hermenn)
Pulaski, Count (Pulaski County)
8t. sloysius (3t. Aloysius Catholic Chureh)
8t. Anthomy (St. Anthony; St. Anthony's
: Church (z))
St. Boniface (5t. Bonlfaee's Catholic Chureh)
8t. Cecilias (8t. Cecilia's Catholie Chureh)
8t. Zlizabeth (3t. Zlizabeth; 5t. Elizabeth's

Chureh; ¢ld 8t. %. School)

St. Oeorge (5t. George's Cathelie Chureh)

8t. James (St. James; 3St. James Evangeliecal
Churek)
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St. Johm (3t. Johm; &£t. John's Evangelical
Chureh (2$; St. John's Lutheran
Church; 3t. Johunnes' Catholie
Chureh)

3t. Iouis (&t. Iouis Catholie Churech)

St. Mary (St. Mary's; St. ¥ary's Church (2);
Kary's Home)

8t. Patrick {(St. Petriek's Catholic Chureh)

Et. Pauul {ot. Paul's Evangelical Churechj

8t. Theresa (5t. Theresa's Catholie Chureh)

Sante Auna (Saint Annie) '

Natiocnsl Figures (14

Clay, Henry (Clay Township)
Cleveland, President Grover (Cls velund Echool)
Fremunt, Genersl Jobn C. (i/remont Town)
Carfiela, Tresident James A. (Carfield Sehool)
Heanng, Senator Lark maunaz
Jackson, President Andrew (Jackson Township)
Jefferson, Fresident Thomus (Jeffersom
Township (2))
Mekinley, President Williem (McKinley Sehool)
Pershing, Cenerzl John J. (Pershing)
Vun Duren, President kartim (Ven Buren)
washington, President Ceorgs (. Sehool;
¥W. Township)
Wayne, General ainthony (Waynesville)

Territorisxl Pigures and Inaiuus (11)

Jim Henry (J.ll. Cave; J.H. Creek; J.I.Chureh;
J.il. tehool; J.H. Township)

¥oreesu {Couth Koreau)

Rouvpidoux, Joseph (Roubiuoux Creek)

Skegge, Denjemin (Ckuggs Township?)

Tecket, Yhilip (Tecket Creek)

Tuscusbie (Tuscumbia?)

wilson, John (%"ilscn's Cave)

Stute Figures (18)

Benton, Senator Thomss H. (L. Township;
lake B.)

Blupd, Richura P, (Blaud)

Boone, Nathaniel (Loome Township)

Choutesau, Caudet (Cadet Creek?)

Drake, Senstor Charles D. (Crake)

Polk, Goveruor Joseph i. (Folk)

Hadley, CGovernor EHerbert 3. (Badley)

Linn, Senator lewis ¥. (Iinn; L. Township;
Iinnville; Linnwood)

ILyon, General Namthaniel (lyon)
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MeClurg, Governor J.#., (lake MeClurg)
Miller, Governor John (Miller County)
Phelps, John 8. (Phelps County)

E. Iocal Figures
l. Iocal leaders and public officiunls
a. Promoters and founders (4)

Drysse, ...{(Drysse); lisle, Benjamin
(Iisle; Lisletown); Proctor, James C.
{ Proctor)

b. Postmasters (19)

Allen, Bert (Bert); Balley, :.R.(Bailey)
Baur, C.J. (Baur);Copelund, Hayden
(Hayden); Craddock, Dan {Craddock);
Flynn, Iuther (Flynn); Franke, Engel-
bert fEagolbort); Frunkeberg (Freeburg);
Hinkle, Charles (Hinkle); Hoecker,
Jumes (Hoecker); Koeltz, August
{(Koeltztown; Koeltztown lake); lLignt,
Klebe (light); Metealr, H.P.(Metoulf);
Sends, Churles (Sands); Smith, Wyatt
(émith's Creek p.c.); Spuaing, J.C.
(Spuaing); Wharton, krs. Magnolia
(¥harvon) '

¢. County ana town officers (1l&)

Boulware, Fhilip (B. Township?);
Branson, Judge A.J. (Judge); Brumley,
%.,C, (Brumley?); Cleino, Hemry (C.
Senool); Curtis, J.M, (Curtis);

Dawson, Willism (D, Township); MecDaniel
J.J7. (¥,3chool); MeEKnight, Josiah
(MeKnight); ¥iller, Hamilton (¥.Town-
.hi-p)‘ Mﬁrl. ese (R, C”‘k); T.rl’lll.
Jackson (Jeckson Township); York, %“.C.
(York's leg)

d. Board of education members (1)
Shinkles, George (5. School)

¢. Representatives (6)
Zachariah [T, Svation) Jonnsod, T.J.

(3. Township); Lemox, Wilson (L.Branch)
Rer.‘ H.3. (RYOI‘S); v.ncl"., ev e
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{Vanecleve)
locel milivtery and navel offieers snd
berces {(J)

Buckenuort, Friveg (B, School) “elkins,
Willism Shelton (Vatkins); Wymsn, ...
{Fort Yymen)

Railrozd officiels end employees (b)

Bagnell, Williem (Bagnell); Cempbdell,
John (Campbell’s 3witeh); Crocker, ...
(Crocker); Fremont, Cenersel John C.

{Fremont Town)}; Hieh, C.¥. (Fichlund)

Prdttulcna 1 men

B

v.

e.

de

Clergymen end churchmen (8)

Capps, Jacob (Capps); Curmes, Fev, Wr,
(Carnes Cemp Cround); Callagher,?rancis
Patriek (St. Petriek's Catholie Chureh)
Ruder, Rev. ¥r, (Rader); Rosati,Pishop
Joseph (Rosati); Smith, Ceorge {Desconm)
8mith Baptist Church

hysicinns (4)

Barnett, Dr. Harrison (Barnett's
Station); Bowles, Dr. «+..{Powles Chup~-
el}; Cooper, Dr. Jumes ¥. (Cooper
Aill}; Jonnson, Dr. ...{Johnson Stut-
ion)

lawyers (o)

Burchara, P.0s (B 5@ﬂ°ﬁlj;lﬁyurﬂg
R.8. {Hyors); Vosnoll, J.'.{(Vosnoll)

ingineers (1)
Sentee, Aadison (Santee)

Bus iness men

@

Herchunts and business executives (£H)

Boeger, Simon (Boegers Store); Cook,
Wod o (c@ot‘ill.); Qﬂllﬂ'&!, ea (G-
8tation; Gullaway's Store); Gebler,
W.8. (Gebler); Heek, Valentine (Meck)
Honse, Robert (Monseville); Wumboldt,

oo {Humboldt); Humphrey, ...(Humphrey's)



D.

'

S

«138-

Keeth, Willlam (Feethtown); King, Cemtry C.
(¥oenig); lange, . Zr. {(lange Store);
Inster, Clesvelund (Cleavesville); Iuttrell,
Ben (Bentown); Cwen, ... (Owensville);
Cwene, Frenk (Owen ¥ills); Richey, ...
{Richey); Smider, ...(snider's Store);
Tappehorn, Williem (Taprenorn lanuaing);
Thompeon, Jonn (Thompson's store); Thompson,
evs(Thompeon's Store); Tucker, ...{Tucker's
Store); Viemen, ...{(Vieman); #wishon, Joha
(Wishon's Store); Woollum, ...(%oollum)

Menureoturerse (2)

Enotwell, ...{K. Jrom Works); leseey, Denjamin
(Mussey's Iron Works)

Metdillers (1)
Etter, Samuel (Etterville)
uillers (15}

Bates, see (B, ¥411) Bartlett, ...{Bartlett’s
Mill); Bonnot, Felix (Bomnot's ¥ill); Poon,
Deniel ¥. (B. Township); Bowen, Colonel
Issiah (B, Creekl Bray, Tom (Ersys); Cook,
W.d. (Cookville); lipscomb, ...{L. ¥il1);
loek, ...(Inck's Will); Owens, ¥Frank{Owen
¥ills); Pillmen, (Pililmen's ¥ill); Potts, ...
{Potsdan?); “heeler, ...("hesler); Wright,
Jemes L. (Yright's School} “right's Spring)

¥ine owners and operstors (18)

Brady, ««.{B. ¥ine); Bromson, L.C. {B.¥ine)}
Clark, ...{C. ¥ine}; Clinton, Juke (C.¥ine);
Do Comp, «ce(D.C. ¥ine); Yorbes, ...(¥,Clay
Pit); Guge, «..(Cegeville); Fackney, #.a.

(H., Plggings); Kelly, ".C. (K. Bunk); lambd,
Toomus L. (L. Bank); lenox, Hamilton (L.¥ine);
Plekles, «..(F, Vine); Feed, ...(H. Bank) ;
Smith, eee{3. Wine); Stimeson, Thomes (:.tine);
#inkler, Jonn (vinkler)

Boatmen (%)

Cappe, Jucobd (Cupps); Puck, inderson (Peck
Hollow)

Surveyors (1)
essss, Eldon (Eldon)
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h. Clerk (1)

Decker, Charles (Decker)
k. Stone mason (1)

Stanzel, Frunk (Franks)
Landowners and settlers (126)

Anderson, Y.S. (A. Scnool); Atwell, John T,
(Atwell); Bailey, ...(Buileys Creek); Eailey, R.B.
(Builey's Brunch); Barbarick, Joseph (B.3chool);
Barnett, George (3. Chureh); (B.3chool); Barton,
see{B. 5¢hool); Bates, Jumes (B, Sehool);
Baumhoer, Hermsn (5., School); Bear, Simeon (B.
Sehool); Beckmen, ...{Beckmsn's Cave); Bell, ...
(B. Bluff); Benson, (Benson's Islandi); Black,
Israel (Bo C&\'.); Bloou, eece (510061&&6; B.
School; B. 3pring); Boatwright, ...(B. Cave);
Boes, Joseph (B, School); Boettcher, Wiegman

(B. 3ehool); Bolinm, W.L. (B, School); Bond, M.B.
(B. School); Boyse, George (Cecrgetown School);
Bradish, ...(B, Plat); Brockman, John Y.
(Brockman's Yord); Brouse, Thomas (Brouses Bend);
Brumley, John (Brumley?); Bryant, ...{(B. Blurf);
Burns, Jonn (B. Sehool); Colly, Cyrus (Colly
Hollow); Compton, ... (C. Hill Sehool); Cooper,
Joel (Cooper; C. School); Coppedge, William (C.
Spring); Cotton, ...(Cotton's Spur); Crider
Daniel Eoone (Dan); Cullen, ...(C. Township);
Curty, David (C. 3chool); Dimgley, Edwara (D.
Sehool); Dorl, Godlup (D. Spring); Douglas, Fred
(D, Prairie); Dunavan, ¥Wike (Dunevan); Haster,
Isuac (E. Cave); Edgar, John (X, Springs; K.
Pruirie); Eichorst, Johmn (¥. School); Fletcher,
«ss (F. School); Fors, Ben (Ben Fore School);
Franken, Cottfried (¥rankenstein); Freeman, ...
(r. S8pring); Gaddy, ...{(C. liollow); Gaines, Jumes
(G. Ford); Coodman, Joseph (Goodman's Spurf; Gott,
Jesse (G. Churcn); Gottschall, ...(G. School);
Gruce, (G. School); Gremp, Joseph (G. Cave);
Humilton, ...{H. Cave); Harbison, ®illiam (H.
3chool); Harrison, Everett (H. School); Heckman,
ees(Heckmun's Islena); Hela, ...(Helu's Islund);
Helm, ...(Helm); Holtschneider, Charles (Churles-
town; Charleytown); Hooker, ...(Hocker); Humphrey,
Peter (Peter Humphry Hollow); Juedeman, Herman
{J. School); Kempker, Joanm H. (X. iSechool); Kern,
Theodore (K. Scnool); Keyes, A.C. (K. School);
Kiad, J.J. (XKidadridge); Klindt, John (K. School);
Klinger, ...(K. Cave); Koelling, ..{XKoelling's
Island); lLacy, William (L. Schoel); Lone,Charles
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{lene's Prairie); lLane, Jusper (lane); Lawson, ...
(L. Cave); Iurtom, J.D., (L. School); Imys, Andrew
{luystown); lcCourtney, ... (M. Spring); Welinn,
Robert (M.Sehool); ¥athis, Jemes (M. School);laze,
Jemes (M. School); Miller, P.8, (M. School);
¥iller, ...(M. Spring); ¥Miles, Willism (¥, School);
Mitchell, Henry (¥. lMethodist Chureh); Vorgan,
Robert (Pobtown); Morrison, Alfred W.(Morrison);

‘¥uench, ...(¥. Cave); Neese, Herman (N. School);

Pillman, ...{P, Cave; Piliman's Mill); Prewett,
Clark (P. School); Remsey, George (Rameey);Ramsey,
ees{R. Island); Reed, George (n. School); Fenaud,
(8. Cave); Richel, Joseph (K. School); Ricker,
James (H. Vemorisl chu“ﬂ)‘ Rﬁ“b’m. .u(ﬁ‘.
Sehool); Ssnning, Johm H. (5. Sohool); Seaton
samuel (Seuton); Shuekleford, Joham (3. Sprtns’;
Shockley, Thomas (Shockley's Blurf); Skaggs,

Ben jamin (8. Township); Skinner, Jemes (S.School);
Slaughter, ...(3.38ink); Snodgrass, Washington

(8. sehoei); Stark, Charles (°. Cave); Stark,
Elishe (S. Spring); Sterky, Joel (Starky's Bluff);
Struemph, Henry (&. 3chool); Tacket, Philip (T.
Creek); Tart, John (New T. School); Taylor, Brit
(T. Sehool); Thompson, William (T. Hill School);
Topping, J.B. (7. Sechool); Ulman, ...{(Ulman);
Vernon, Wilbur (V. School); Viessman, Wolfgang
(Viessman; V. Station); Walker, loses (V/.School);
iarremn, John (%. School); %ash, Thomas (%W.S8chool);

Weeks, Elmira, wife of C.H., Weeks (Elmire);

Wilkins, ...{(%W. Cave; W, Spring); Wimmer, Jacob
(W. Creek); Wittenbech, Adolpn (Acolph); Wynn,
Williem (W, School); Yelton, Williem (Y. Schoocl;
Y. Spring); York, Jonn (York's Statiom)

Family numes (151)

AGams (A. School); Allen (A. Schooll; Asher (A.
Hollow School); Atwell (A, School); Aud (Aud);
Avory (Avory); Bailey (Bailey's Creek); Belaridge
(Baldridge); B. Creek); Bax (B. School); Bell
(Bell*'s Creek); Berry (B. School); Blackmer

(Blackmer); Bliss (Bliss); Blyze (Blyze); Bode

(B. School); Boillot (B. School); Bowlim (Bolan's
Creek); Brink (Brinktown); Brocikman (Brockmsn);
Erown (B. School); Brownfield (Brownfield);Bruce
(B. Cave); Brumley (Brumley?); Bucklend (Bucklend;
B. lmu)z ‘Burnett (B. School); Busse (B, School);
Butcher (B. Ford); Cadet (C. Creek); Carrol!
(Carroll); Clark (C. School); Clinkenbegrd
(Clinking Beard Hollow); Collier (C. School);
coznn-a?c. Sehool); Cowen (C. Sechool); Crider
{C. Creek); Cross (C. Zehool); Curry (C.Christian
Church; C. Sechool); Davis (D. Sechool); Dean (D.
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Sehool); Descher (D. Sehool); Dingley (Dingley):
Dodd (D. Christiam Churech; D. School); Doolin
(Doolins Creek); Dyer (D, Baptist Chureh); Elliott
(E. Sehool); Fancher (F. Hollow); Feaster (¥,School);
FPeeler (¥. Sehool); Feuers (Feuersville); Tox (F.
Crossing School); Fredericks (Fredericksburgh);
Frenklin (¥, Church; ¥, Schocl); Franklin (¥.School;
F. Township); Caddy (C. Sechool); Galloway (Calloway's
Preirie); Cardner (C. Branech); Gibsom (¥t. C.School);
Glevin (C. School); Gray (C. Township); CGraysom (C.
Sohool); Hale (X, 3ehool); Haley (H. Bend School);
Hamby (#. Sehool); Hamiltonm (M. School); Hanley (H.
Cave); Heckman (H. 3chool); Hicks (H. School); Hicks
(H. S8chool); Hickse (H. School); Hilton (H. School);
Hinton (H. School); Hirsene (H. School); Hochstetter
(H. Senool); Holder (I. Sohool); Hoppe (H. 3chool);
Howell (H. School); Humparey (Humphrey's Creek);
Hymen (H. BEranch); Jeffries (J. School); Jonnsom (J.
Sehool); Jomes (J. Creek); Kaiser (Kaiser); Kenner
(K. Sehool); Kienl (K. School); Elug (XK. Cave);
Kroeger (XK. Sehool); Krueger (K. Forxd); Layuey
(Laquey); Lembetn (L. School); Lange (L. Schmool);
Lawson (L. School); Lebosuf (L. Creek); Ledue (Leaue)
Lee (L. School); lenign (Lay High Senhool); Light

(L. Caves); loehmer (L. School); love (L. Creek);
Mace (. Sehool); Madden (M. Church; ¥. School);
Manning (M. Sehool); Massman (M. School); Matihews
(k. Prairie); Miller (M, School); Miller (M.School);
Horgan (M. School); Mungy (¥. Creek; i, School);
Norman (Normun; N, Creek); Pendleton (P,Settlement);
Perkins (P. School); Plattners (F. School); Poole
(P. Hollow Cave); Price {(Price's Creek); Rembo (R.
School); Ramsey iR. Ceve); Reagan (R, Branch);
Renneks (R. School); Phea (R. Chureh); Roark (R.
'rmaip)g Ruwwe (R, School); Schansmeyer (8,School)
Sheppard (5. Chureh; 3. School); Shoeckley (S.S5chool)
Skaggs (5. Church); Spesrman (3., Zchool); Spencer
(s. Cave); Sterke (2. Sehool); Steen (5. Prairie);
Stoenner ?3. 3chocl); Strawhun (8, School);
Sudheimer (audhamﬂ; Swyers (3, Sechool); Tennyson
(7. School); Terry (T. School); Trower (T. School);
Verhoff (V. 3chool); Vermon (Mt. V. Chureh; V.
Springs); %Wallace (%W. Creek); Wayman (Wayman):
Watson (Watson's Tork); Weeks (¥W. Church); Weldon
(¥elaon); Whalen (. Breach); Wheeler (. &School);
wiles (%, Sehocl); Wilson (W. Sehool); Winkdemen (W.
Sehool); Wiseman \¥. Sehool); Wishon (w. Gehool);
wittenoaen (#. School); Wolfe (w. Sechool)

Unknown (6)

Bailey, Den (Bailey); Dillon, John (Dillom; D.Town-
ship); Henocock, Jup (Kannaokh Relfe, ...{(Relfe);
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Tayloe, Dave (T. School)
7. Others (&)
Babb, ...(Babbtown); Crabtree (banait): C. Cave
F. Christien and Miadle Nemes
1. kasculine (1l4)
Adolph; Bentown; Bert; Bobtown; Charlestorn;
Charleytown; Cleavesville; Dan; Elaon(?); Engelbert;
Franks; Georgetown School; Heyden; Jackson Towaship
&. Femimiwme (1é)
Arlington (?); Beulsh; Clementine {(?); Elmire;
Faith; Cussie (?); Iois; Mande; Margaret; Medors;
Yeta; Venus; Vide; Vie Anne (Vienna
3. Combined with surnsmes (7)
Ben ¥ore School; Jim Fenry Cave; Jim Henry Creek;
Jim Henry Church; Jim Henry School; Jim Fenry Towne
ship; Peter Humphrey Hollow
4. Names of groups of persons, trides, ete. (&)
French Village; Csage River; Oshawa; Shawnee Creek
liore places ere named in honor of some person than
for any other reason. Churches nanoa'tor~ag1ato acecount
for most of the foreign nemwes, slthough there are %o be
found in this list & biblicel cheraecter, & poet, a chare
acter from mythology, & Germaen hero, a Folish count, and
a Mexiocun leader. Among the national figures are seven
presidents, three generals, and two statesmen. Incluaeda in
the group of state figures are five governors. Missouri's
femous Senator Thomas Hart Beanton left his name on a town-
ship and & luke, ‘ |
Sixteen postmasters have places nomed for them. Many
a town has grown from « post office in the home of the post-
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master. 3Since the postmaster had vonsidersble choice in
selecting a name {for the noet orffice, in meny cases he
namia it for himself. £ix representatives to the state
legislature are honored but only one bourdi of education
member. Nost schools were numed for men who donated land
or who permitted schools to be built on their lsnd. Tive
pluces are npamed for rzilroad officials or employees in
appreciation of the railroad and its benefits to the
section.

Of the five clergymen who have churches or towns
named ror them four are local men und one of the four is
better remembered for his logging and reilroud-tie busi-
ness thaen for nhis preaching. Four physlecians, three lawe
yers, und an engineer complete the list of professional
men.

Doubtless, the reason for the large number of places
named for merchants is that many towns have grown from
country stores. Often the post ofiice wss in the store
and was named for it, as: boegers 3tore, Callaway's Ctore,
lange Store, Snider's Store, Thompson's Store (2), Tucker's
Store, and Wishomn's Store. 4s the place degan to grow in-
to a settlement, the word "store™ was dropped or a more
dignified name was -gh'titutodu

In & sectvion ui‘“th @8 muny streems as this one has,
one might expect to find more than fonrtoan millers in the
list, but it should be remembered that these counties were

setiled late in Miscouri's history and sre still rﬁtner
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spursely populated. There was no need for a large number

of smxll mills.

¥ith the exeeption of two in Miller County zll the

miners who have left place-names operated in Phelps County,

where ths State School of ¥ines is rightly located. Fhelps

County has many iron mines, plts, and banks, in adadition %o

other valuasble mineral deposits. The lurgest list of per-

sonal pames are of landowners and families.
IV. NAMES OF ENVIRONMENT (326)
A. Names of Definition

1.

2.

S.

loeation (18)

Asher Hollow School; Big lick Hollow;
Brewery Cave; Bridge School; Camp Ground
Metnoaist Chureh; Camp Ground School (?7);
Cave Spring; Damsite; Honey Springs School;
Lakeside; Mill Creek; Milldale Church; iud
Spring Baptist Church; Riverside; Riverside
Park; Sugar Cemp Hollow

Direction or posivion (11)

Central Bapulst Chureh; Centrsl Point
Sehool; Rast Falrview School; Lvening Shade

Sehool; North 3pring Creek; South Moreau;

Upper ¥ill Creek; West Fairview School;
West Aurora ‘

Humber, size, wmi shape (36)

Big Berger Creek; Big lick Hollow; RBig
Maries Creek; Big Piney River; Big Prairie;
Big Spring; Big Tavern Creek; Bradish Plat;
Cove; Devil's Backbome; Devil's Elbow;
First Creeit; Ylat; Flat Crove; Flat Top
School; Flat Wood; Grend 2uglsize Cresi;
Grand Glaige; Faley Bend School; Horseshoe
Cave; little Bear Creek; Iittle Berger
Creek; Little Dry Creek; Little Craveois
Creek; little Naries Creek; Iittle Piney
Creek; Iittle Prairie; little Richwocds;
[ittle Saline Creek; Little Tavern Creek(?);
Iong Branch; ILong Creek; Loccusin Bend;
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Second Creek; Third Creek; York's lLeg

B. Names of Description

1.

&

S8ituation and lendscape (80)

Bell Bluff; Bend School; Bryant Bluff;
Castle Rock; Cave Hill; Caverne Creek or
Riviere a la Caverne; Clifty Creek; Clifty
Dale; Demoerat Ridge; Devil's Backbone;
Pairview Baptist Church; Fairview
Christian Church (2); Fairview Methodist
Chureh; Fairview School (£); Flat Roek
School; Flatwoods Chureh; Ginger Ridge
School; Glenwood Chureh; Green Ridge
School; Crovedale; Hanging Rock Creek;
Hawkeye (Z); Hickory Point Chureh; Hickory
Point Sehool; Highgrove; Highgrove School;
Highlana School; High Toint Baptist Churech;
High Point School; Horseshoe Bend School;
Iron Summit; Islsnd School; Knobview;
Laurel Ridge School; long kidge School;
Iost Hill School; low Gap School; Milldale
Churchn; Mt. Aerial Methoaist Church; kt.
Gibson school; Kt., View Church; Nultnoman;
Oakhurst; Pilot Knob; Pilot Knob Baptist
Church; Pine Bluff; Point Bluff School;
Prospect School; Riverview Baptist Church;
Rolling Heath School; Epringvale; Stony
Point School; Summitt; The Hill; Turkey
Riage Sehool; Ulman'’s Ridge

Flora (70)

Alaer Springs Church; Alder Springs
School; aAsh Creek; Big Piney River;
Bloomgsrden; Blooming lose; Brush Creek
(3); Brushy Fork Creek; Cat-tail Creek;
Cedar Creek (J); Cedar Grove School; Cedar
Hill School; Elm Spring Chureh; Elm Spring
School(2); Perndsle; Flag Spring School;
Forest Grove School; Frene Creek; Ginger
Ridge Sehool; Courd Creek; Greenbush
Sehool; Gum Creek; Hay Hollow; Fay Hollow
Sehool; Hieckory Grove Christian Church;
Hickory Grove School; Hickory Foint
Chureh; Hickory Point S8chool; Laurel Ridge
Sehool; Little Piney Creek; Locust hound;
¥Mint Hill; Vossy Spring; Oak Grove School
(2); Oak Forest 3School; Oak Hill Chureh;
Oak Lawn School; Peachland; Pea Vine
Creek; Persimmon Fond School; Fine EBluff;
Piney Creek; Piney Fork; Pin QOak Creek;
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4.

S.
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Post Qak School; Red Oak Creek; Riviere aux
Frenes; hosebud; Spunish Needle Prairie; Sugar
Creek (J); Sycemore Spring Hollow; Walnut Grove
School

Fauna (38)

Bat Cave (2); Bear Cave; Bear Creek (2); Bear
Ridge; Beaver; Beaver Creek; Beaver Fond; Eee
Creek; Boeuf Creek; Buck Elk Creek; Buffalo
Creek; Buzzard Foost School; Chamois; Chinchbug;
Coon Creek; Cubdb Creek; Deer; Deer Creek; Dog
Creek; Elk Prairie; Hawkeye; ILittle Bear Creek;
L'0urs Creek; L'Ourse Creek; Panther Creek;
Possum Town; Possum Trot School; Rabbit Head
Creek; Bed Bird; Riviere au Boeuf; Swan lake;
Tick Creek (?); Turkey Creek; Turkey Ridge
School; Wild Hog Cave; Wolf Creek

Mineral and soil (385)

Barren Fork; Big Richwoods; Forbes Clay Pit;
GClaize; Grand Auglaize Creek; Grand Glaize;
Hanging Rock Creek; Iron Road or (0ld Iron Road;
Iron Summit; Knotwell Iron Works; Lead Creek;
Little Oravois Creek; Little Richwoods; Little
Saline Creek; Massey's Iron Works; Meramec Iron
Works; Onyx; Old Salt kKoad; Ozark Iron Works;
Pleasant "Ball"™ School; Richland Township;
Richwoods; Riviere Grand Glaize; Riviere
Saline; Rockhouse; Rocktown; Rockymount; Saline
Creek; Saltpetre Cave; Sund Hill School;
Sendstone Creek; Sanastone Hollow; Sulphur
Springs; Sulphur Springs Branch

Other descriptive names (41)

Ash Cave; Blue Spring Creek; Boiling Spring;
Bone Cave; Bourbeuse River; Brick Pentucost
Cnurch; Bucxhorn; Clear Creek Branch; Cold
Spring Township; Crossroads School; Double
Chimneys Church; Dry Auglaize; Dry Creek (2);
Dry Creek School; Dry Fork; Dugout School; Ebb
and Plow Spring; Gasconade River (?); Green
Ridge Sehool; Indien Creek; Indian Ford; Indian
Town; Indian Village; Mud Creek; 0ld Frame
Church; Red School (2); Roaring Spring; Shedy
Grove Sehocl; Shut-in-Branch; Siphon Spring;
Soap Creek; Stony Hill; Summerfield; Table Rock;
T{iwno;dwot Auglaize; Wnite School; Wildawood;
Wire hLoa
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C. Nemes of Apprmbdation (19)

Pairview Fethodist Church; Fairview Christian
Church {a}i Pairview :Bakpt:ln)t ehwh; Fai'.rviw
Sehoel (2); ¥t. Pleasant Baptist Church; Mt.
Pleasant School; Pleasant Ball Sechool; Pleasant
Grove Churen; Pleassant Grove Methodist Chureh;
Pleasant Crove School (2); Pleasant 7111l Churech
(£2); Pleasant Till 3chool; Pleasunt Mount;
Pleasant Ridage School )

Not all emvironmentul names are dull =nd monotonous.
Sueh nsmes as lLong Braach, w-dt rairvlow.Aand North Zpring
Creek certeinly do not contain = laru-uaomdnt of interest,
but sule nomes even of 1ooatianjsuggeat & p&ptur! to the
strenger's mind. These nmmes are not nanbtonous: Evening
Shade School, Bridge School, Devil's Elbow, Devil’s
Backbone, Devil's Testable, Morseshoe Cave, Caustle Rock,
lost Hill Sehool, Pilop Xnob énnrcn, Hanging Rock Creek,
Damsi te, snd even Izkeside.

Fourteean kinds of trees are ropitsaated in the nemes
of this section of Missouri. ?1n;. hickory, ceder, and
Ouk are useu most freguently, snd three dlstinet kiuwuws of
osk are mentioned: pin oak, post osk, and red osk. The
ouk is the most common tree in the Ozerks end is found im
many combinstions: Osk Grove School (2), Oank Torest
School, Oak Hill Church, and Osk lawn School, in aé&ltion
to the specisl kinds of o&k uwntianﬁé. Bloomgarden,
Blooming Rose, Fosebud, Tlag Bpring Schocl, =nd Spenish
Needle Frairie show that the settlers were not unawsve of
beauty. There ere three Brush Creeks snd ome EBrushy Fork

Creek. Pea Vine Creek, Gourd Creek, ¥Mint ¥ill, Nossy
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Spring, Leurel Ridge School, and Glnger Ridge School are
other examples of vegetation.

Meny of the esnimals for which places have been named
are extinct., The buffalo, the bear, the elk, snd the
beaver are gone; the wvif and the panther are almost gone,
but the deer is sald tc be luecreasing in numbers. Casconade
County, especislly, is cne of the best deer-hunting coun-
ties in the state, snd deer are occasionally seen in
Yaries, Osage, end Pulaskl. Swans are still seen occasion-
ally, but, along with the wild turkey, are greatly dimin-
ishing in numbers. Coons aud opossums are trapped for
profit. '

Iron is prominent smong the mineral nemes. Phelps
County has many working ircn mipes and hes had at least
three iron works. A very faluable aluminpume-bearing fire-
clay is found near Folla. Lead in small yuantities is
found im Phelps, Pulaski and ¥iller Counties. Salt is.
found a;ang the place~-nsmes, but no salt deposits could
be located in this part of Kissouri. Probably their lo-
eation has been forgotten in these duys when salt ie more
ensily obtuined than 1t was in the éars when these places
were nsmed. Seversl artifieial salt licks sre remembdered
but no natural ones. ining taltpnirt from caves along the
Caseonade River was at one time a lively industry. The
saltpctrn was floated on rafts and barges to St. louis and
used in the making of gunpowder. Saltpetre from Saltpetre
Cave was used by the pioneer settlers in making gunpowder,



and the gunpowder wes traded to the Indisns. Large quan-
tities of guauo were teken from Pat Cave and others and
shipped to Zt. louls to be sold for Tertilizer. The de-
posits of guenc in several of the caves wes gaid to be
several yards thick.

In the names of approbation the repetition of the
word pleasant becomes monctorous und would seen to show
sonme lack of imaginstion on the part of those who nsmed
the schools znd churches.

V. SUBJECTIVE NaNEs (204)

A. Idesls, Emblems, und Mottoes (57)

Comeord Chureh (Z); Equality Township;
Enterprise Schocl (&); Excelsior Sehool; Fair
Flay; ¥reedom; Friendship Paptist Churen;
Harmony Chureh; Harmosy Tovnship; Hope;
Independence Baptist Church; Iiberty Churen;
Liverty sSchool (&); Liverty Township (£); lLone
Ster School fcg; lone Ster Ichocl FRo. 1; New
Eope Chureh (Z); Peach Intheren Chureh;
Prosperity School; Sufej Ster School; Success;
Sweet Home School; Triumph; Union Church;
Useful (?); Vietor School; Vietory School;
#elcone

B. Religious Namee
1. Bible nzmes (44)

Antioch School; Berean Baptist Chureh;
Eethlehem Baptist Church; Roez; Csalvery
Baptist Church; Cansan; Christ ¥piscopel
Church; Tdumea Paptist Churech; ILittle Floek
Baptist Chureh; little Flock School;
Yucedonie Ehptint Churen (2); ¥acedonia
Christian Church; ¥ount Carmel Church;Vount
Hermun Chureh; ¥t., Clive Baptist Church(z);
¥t. Tabor School; ¥t. Zion Church (4);
Philadelphis Eagtiat Chureh; Pisgah Baptist
Chureh ; Pisgah Church; Pisgah Sehool; St.
Jumes(?); 5t. James Evangelicel Chureh; 8t.
Johannes' Lutheran Church; 3t. John; St.
John's Svangeliceml Chureh (£); St. John's
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Iutheran Church; St. Joseph's Catholie
Chureh; 5t. Mary's Cathollie Chureh (Z); St.
Paul's Fvangelieal Church; Salem Baptist
Church; Salem Presbyterian Chureh; Zion
Evangelical Church; Zion Hill Baptist Chureh;
Zion ¥ethodist Chureh; Zoar Methodist Church;
Zoar Presbyteriasn Church

Z. Beints' nomes (not from the Bidble) (14)

Chureh of 3%t. Theresa of the Child Jesus;
Church of the Little "lower; =t. iloysius
Catholie Chureh; £t. inthony's Crtholie
Chureh (2); 3t. Aubert; 8t. Boniface's
Cathelie Chureh; St. Cecilia's Catholie
Church; 3t, Elizabeth's Church; St. Ceorge's
Catholic Churen; St. lawrence; St. Inuils
Catholic Churceh; S8t. Patriek's Catholie
Church; S5t. Theresa's Catholie Chureh

$. Other religiocus names (8)

Churech of the Foly Family; Chureh of the
Suered Heurt; Gospel Ridge School; Woly
Trinity Catholie Church; Immeculgte Comcer-
tion Catholic Cnuren (2); Our lady of
Perpetual Help Catholic Churen; Trinity
Episcopal Church

C. Literary and Eythnlogiaal Nomes (5)

Aurora Springs; Byron; Cadmus; Flsnders Cave(?);
Rolla(?)

D. Humorous and Wocking Nemes (83)

Broadway; Pucksnort; Buzzard Roost School;
Chinchbug; “liunking Beard Follow; College Hill;
Contrary Creek; Orook; Domsite; Devil's Besekhone;
Devil's Elbow; Devil's Tea Table; Nugout;
Mudville; Needmore Baptist Church; Pay Down;
Possum Town Tchool; Punkin Center; Sinful Bend;
Tea; Tribune; Veto; ¥ild Cat “Zchool

B. Coined and ¥iscellnneous Names (7)

Colon School; Gascondy; Coscozmark; Wari-Csa;
Mariosa; Delta; Veto; ¥oodend

Of the subjective names the most interesting are the

humorous and coiled numes. MNobody who hus msde & study of
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Place~-names has complained of 1%s dulluess, especiuzlly
when suoh numes occur as: Clinking Beard Mollow, Coatrary
Creek, Crook, Devil's Dackbone, levil's Elbow, Devil's Tea
Table, Needmore Church, Fay Down, Sinful Bend, Tea, and
¥ild Cst School {the lutter numed for young numan wild
cats).

The 1deul numes are mostly for churches, schools,
and townships. The favorite names are Ldna Star, which ia
fourd four times, and Liberty, which ccours six times.

New Hope, Harmony, Concord, aud Enterprise eech ocecur
twice. Nost of the religious nomes whieh are not from
the Bidle are Stock Catholic courch names, Literature

and mytholagy loft small imprint on thls section, whieh
until recent years hus besu rather backward ia culture amd
educstion. Two numes are from mythology, and two or three
are from literature.

The following naxes are thbse concerning which con-
tinued inncuiry produced no informmation or no plausible
conjectures. Several probably never existed or were
errors of mupmakers. ?oi instuance, loose Fotk mignt have
been meant for loose Creek. Sone were probably for pro-
Jected or advertised towns which mnever materiallzed. CSome
were given for mo reasocn at all except thet they‘sounded
sood“or were easlly remenmberesd. Tvo or lhree postiusters
who némbﬂ post offices ndmitted that they sclected the
names beocuuse they were short und essy to spell and remem-

ber. Many of the unsoclved nemes were given probably with
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& good reason which has been forgotten. Several, such as
Margaret, Charlotte, Cussie, and Tlors seem evidently
girls' names, but they may have been nemed for places in
other atates. Several of these unsolved nrmes are of
rlaces which are knnwn to have existed, Wt théy existed
only for a yesr or twn and so long amo that those who
knew are deed.

UNSOIVED NaWER (686)

A. Unsclved becsuse probably non-sxistent (11)
Bleschke Islend; NDailey; Enlenberg; Fainswiek;
Faulkner; Loano' iooss Rnck, Nallace's Lsnuing,
Nulluce's lanaing; Pace; Rehnrd lake

B. Unsolved becnuse srbitrarily assigned (a)

Bay; Bem; DMxie; Posebdud
C. Unsolved for lack of informatiom (ol)

Avory; Bartonsville; Bloomington; Biythe's Creek;
Blythe's Fork; Bex; Charlotte; Coles Creek; Combs;
Crawford Tovwnship: Cullins Township; Debruin;
Delphi; Drennsaville; Dundas; Edeaville; ¥loraj;
Prancis; Clbson Township; Clenn; Clenn's lznding;
Cussie; Hawkins, Yallowsay; Jaceks; Jenkine Spring;
Jerome; King's Rluff; lacon; Leander; ¥anton;
Murgaret; ¥itchell; Mount Sterling; Portage;
Prairie Creekr; "uebec; Rethbone; Follins Creek;
Russellville; Seloto; Signal; 8ills; Stickney;
Taylors; Titus; Ulr; Yeeful; Vest; Vilean;
Westcott



CHAPTER THREE
SPECIAL FEATURES OF PLACE~-NAMES

This chapter treats of certain phuses of place-numes
that are especially important for the student of English.
Some nemes ure cluassified in more than one of the sub-
divisions; while others are not subject to clussification
in eny division.

The plan of the study is as follows, with the total

number of names studied in each:

I Composition of Plsce-Names (1225)
II COther Linguistic Features { 212)
IIT Non-English Words ( 41)
IV Changes of Names { 183%
V Folkways snd Folklore 527

I COMPOSITION OF PLACE-NAMES (122%5)
A. Chief Elements of Place-Names
&. Suffixed elements
1. Detuched suffixes (950)

Ball: Pleasant B, School
Bani: ClintonB.; Lemb B.; Lennox i.;

heea B.

Bend: Brouses B.; Haley E. School;
Moceasin B.; 3Sinful B. focsesioc

Blutf: Bell B.; Brysnt B.; King's B.;
Pine B.; Poimt B. School;
Shockley's B.; Starky's B.

Branch: (1o)

Camp: Sugar C. Creek; Sugur C. Hollow

Cave: (42)

Center: Punkin C.

Chapel: Bowles C.; Mitchell C. Church;
Kush C.

Church: (145)

City: Gasconade C.

County: (6)

Creek: 13z)

Crossing: Tox C. Sehool

Dam:

Bagnell D.; Osage D.



Delta:
Diggings:
Elbow:
Farm:
Ferry:
Fora:

Fork:
Fountuin:

Gap:
Garden:

Graveyard:

Grotto:
Ground:
- Grove:

Henth:
Hill:

Hollow:

Home:
House:
Islana:

Knob:
Luke:

Landing:

Leg:
Mill:

Mine:

Mound :
Mount:
Park:
Piv:

Point:
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Yariosa D.

Huckney D.

Devil's E.

Pl‘alunt F.

Gasconade F.

Brockmun's F.; Butcher F.; Gaines F.; Inaiun F.;
Erueger ¢.

Barren F,; Blythe's F.; Brushy F.; Brushy F.
Creek; Cedar F.; Clear F.; Dry F. (2): Little
Dry F.; Watson's F.

Rieh ¥,

LOV Ge &hooju

Spring G.

Cranny Baker G.

Alhambdra G.

Carnes Camp G.

Cedar G, School; Flaut C. Sehool; Forest G,
Sechool; Hickory G. Chureh; Hickory G. School;
Cak G, Church of Christ; Oak C. Schoocl; Pleasunt
G. Church; Pleassnt C. Wethodist Church;jPleasant
G. 3enhool (3); Shady G. School; Walnut G.Sehool
Rolling H. Sehool

Cave H1.; Cedar H. School; Compton ¥, School;
Cooper H.; ¥int H.; Cak H. Church; Fleasant H.
Churen(2); Pleasant H. School; SQnﬁ H. Senocol;
Stony Hj; Thompson H. SBechoonl; zion H. Baptist
Chureh; Ziom H. School

Asher H. S8chool; Big ILick H.; Clinking Beard H.;
Colly H.; Fanchner H.; Gaaay H; Hay H.; Kaintuek
H.; Normun's H.; Puck H.; Peter fuuphrey H.;
Poole H., Cave; Ruttlesnuxe li.; Sanastone H.;
Sugar Camp H.; Sycamore Spring H.

Mary's H.; St. Mery H.

Califormia H.

Benson's I.; Bluschke I.; Bloody l1.; Heckmun's
I.; Held's I.; Koelling's I.; Hamsey I.

Pilov K.; FPllot K. Basptist Church

Argyle L.; Frisco L.; Glenco L.; Ko.ltztomn Le s
Rehard L.; Swen L.

Glenn's L.; Nallece's L[.; Nullace's l.; Old
Bloom l.; Shipley's L.; Tappehorn L.; Yulluce's
L.

York's L.

Bartlett's ¥.; Bates ).; Bonnots VM.; [ipscomb N.;
lock's V,; Owen Wills; Pillman's I'.; Yaney ¥,
Beaver Creek ¥.; Bradvy %.; Bronson W¥.; Buckland
¥e3 Clark ¥.; Clinton ¥.; De Camp ¥.; Pickles
¥.; Smith ¥.,; Stimson ¥.

locust ¥.; Pleasant I.; Roeky M,

Pleasant ¥.; Rocky M.

Riverside P,

¥orbes Clay P.

Central P. Sehool; Hickory P. Chureh (2);



Pruirie:

Ridge:

River:

Hoad:
Roek:

Roost:
Sehool:
Seminary:
Settlement:

Hickory P. Sehool (2); High P. sehool; Stony P.
Big P.; Douglus P.; Hagar P.; Elk P.; Gaulloway's
P.; lane's P.; Little P.; Metthews P,; Spanish
Needle P.; Spanish P.,; Steemn P.

Bear R.; Demoerat R.; CGinger F. School; Gospel RH.
Sehool; Creen E. Chureh; Laurel K. School;
Plessunt R. School; Turkey F. School; Ulmaen's =,
Big Piney R.; Bourbeuse ¥.; Bourbois FR.;
Casconade F.; Little Berger FK.; Maries ©,;
Mary's R.; Yeresmeec T.; Csage R.
Iron R.; 0ld Iron R.; 0ld 8elt R.; Cld Wire H.;
Wire R.
Castle R.; Flat R. School; Henging R. Creex;
loose R.; Table R.
Buzzard R, School

(279)
Springdale 3.

Pendleton 5.

Spring or ilder S8.; Aurora S.; Burtlett 8.; Big S.; Blood
Springs: 3.; Blue S.; Chureh; Boiling 8.; Cave 8.3

Spur:
Station:

Svore:

Summit:
Switch:
Town:
Tovwnship:
Valley:
Village:
Wood :
Works:

Coppedge 3.; Dorl 3.; Ebb und Flow 8.; Hdgar S.;
Elm 8. Ghmh. Fecater Jog Freemun 30. mncy Se
Sehool; Hopkins S.; Jenkins 8.; Merumee S.(2);
Miller S.; Mossy 3.; McCourtney S8.; Piney 8.3
Relfe S.; Rouring 5.; Houblidoux &.; Shackleford
8.3 Skphon 8.; Stark S.; Sulphur 8,) Sycamore o.
Hollow; Vernon 5.; Weynesville 35.; Wilkinms S.;
Wrigot's 5.; Yelton S.

Cotton's 5.; Gooumsn's 3.
Barnett's S.; Barret's S8.; Gullaway S.; Isbell
C.; Jonnson S.; Viessman 35.; York's S.
Boegers S.; Gullasway's 35.; Grunge £.; Lange 8.
Snider's S.; Thompson's S. (£); Tucker's S.;
Wishon's &.
Iron 8.
Campbell'’s S.
Trugont T.; Indian T.; Poasum T. School
b2
Beaver V.; Saline V. Churech
French C.; Indian V.
’llt We
Knotwell Iron W.; Massey's Iron ¥%.; Mermmec Iron
#.; Oszark Iron W,

Z. Attached suffixes (77)

-berg: Enlenberg (?); Frankberg

-borg: Swedeborg

-burg: Freeburg; Newburg

-burgh: Fredericksburgh

-0y Cainbdy; Clexby

~dale: Ferndale; Crovedule; KMilldale Churech;



b.

-@nd :
-farm:
-field:
-garden:
-grove:
~house:
-purst:
-lund:
~mount
-ridge:
-
-pide:
-site:

. =g8tein:

-ton:
-town:

-vule:
-view:

-ville:

-Woo4d or
-woods:

-loo-

Springdale Seminary; Taverndale Church
#oodend

Pleasunt-farm

Summerfield

Bloomgarden

Highgzrove; Highgrove School

Rocknouse

Cakhurst

Blooulund; Peacnland; Riehland (z)
Fleasuntmount; Rockymount

Kiwuridge

Bray; Goodmans; Yorks

lakeside; Riverside

Damsite

Frankenstein

Arviliagton

Babbtown; Bentown; Bobtown; Brinktown;
Charlestown; Charleytown; Georgetown
School; Keethtown; Koeltztown;
Iisletown; Iunystown; Hocktown
Springvele

East Fairview School; Feirview Chureh
(3); Feirview School; XKnobview; hiver-
view Church; ¥%est Fairview School
Bartonville; Bartonsville; Cleavesville
Cookville; Nrennanville; Edenville;
Etterville; Cageville; Honseville;
Pudville; Owensville; Waynesville

Big Richwoods; Flatwood; Flatwoods
Church (£); Clenwood Church; Linnwooaq;
Little Richwoods; ¥Wildwood

Prefixed elements

1. Detached pretixes (18%5)

1. Big(1s) - 19, Foly(1) $7. iieh(1)
2. Blue(2) £0. lake(4) o8, River(l)
S. Camp(3) 2l. Little(19) 49, Riviere(6
4, Central(z) 22. Ilone(z) 40. 3ehool(l
5. Church(4) 25. long(a) 41l. Seconal
6. Clay(l) 4. lost(l) «2. Shaay(l)
7. Clear(z) 25. love(2) 40. Southi{x)
8. Cold(l) 26. low(l) @4, 5panish(2
9. College(z) £7. Mount(2Q) 49.5pring(8)
10. De(z) £8. Mud{z) 46.3tony(1)
1l. bouble(1l) 29, New(B) &7 .5weet (1)
lz. Dry(lo0) U. Horth(l) 48.Thira(o)
13, Bast(l) dl. Cla(?) 49.Upper(l)
lé, Pirst(l) og. Our(l) H0.viest(x)
15. Flat(4) wo. Pleasant(1ld) dl.wet(2)
16. Port(l) 4. Point lg 92.white 1}
17. Grana(3) 90, Post (1 So. Wilu(l
18, Hign(s) J6. Red(d
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Z. Attached prefixes (10)

au~-: Auglaize; Qiarks

Bloom-: Bloomgarden; Bloomington
grove-: Grovedale

Bigh-: Highgrove; Highgrove 3Sechool
new-: Newburg

U= Caurks; Czark Iron Works

B. Other Compounds and Combimations (29)

Bloomgerden; Buckhorn; Bucksnort; Colon School;

Damsite; Ebb and Flow Spring; Fernaale School;

Cascozark; Hawkeye(z); Hopewell (M. Churen, H.School)

Enobview; Mari-Osa; kariosa Delta; Neeamore paptist

Churech; Newburg; Pay Down; Possum Trot School;

Fabbit Head Creek; Shut-in{S.-Eranch); Summerfiela;

oodenu

The largest group of affixes is the list of detsched
suffixes with 900 cases., Of these the most common suffix
is school which oeccurs 279 times. Next in frequency are
church (145 snd creek {132). The frequency of such
suffixes as creek, bend, branch, ford, fork, river, spring,
und others shows thet these six counties are well watered.
Eseh of these six counties has & consiverable stream in it
in addition to many small ereeks snd springs. Two connties
border the Kissouri Fiver. Two contain or bomier the
Csuge River (the largest streum within the vorders ot the
state except the Missouri kiver), three are crossed by the
Cusconade River, and the others eontain the keramec Hiver
sna the Big Piney. Bank, uiggings, mine, =nu pit give an
inuicstion of the mineral weulth, especlially in Phelps
County.

The separable prerizes show less color una meaning

tnun the seperable suflixes. Host of the detacneu prefixes
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are color, size, shape, or direction sueh as Big, Little,
Bast, West, Wet, Dry, ete., while practically all the de-
tached suffixes give some indication a8 o tThe character
of the place: OCup, Grove, Bend, Islunu, Lake, Knob,
Valley, ete.

The sume difference cun be noted between sulffixes in
generul und prefixes as that between Jdetached und attached
elements. The suffixes are far more meaningful and Jdes-
eriptive then the prefixes.

In the above arrangement ahoﬁing the composition of
Place~numes & laurge number of dislect words and American-
isms ean be found. Weny of them are found as detached
suffixes such as ball, benk, bend, bluff, ereek, hollow,
voint, ete. These are discussed in the Appendix with re-
ferences to the Oxford or New English Dictionary end other
standara disleet dictionaries.

The list of compounds and combinations is an inter-
esting one. Damsite is a perfectly appropriate name since
the place is at a dun site, yet it rather asmusingly re-~
minds one Of seversl common phraaoa‘in the nuture of puas.
Whether or not this thought was in the ming 01 the namer,
the suggestion is there. Several other numes Carry an
element of numor. Needwore Baptist Church, Pauy Down, and
Possum Trot School have less daignity than some of the
other nemes in this classification. Shut-in is an inter-
esting compound when used as a noun as it is here. It is

found in several parts of the iissouri Ozarks. Woodend and
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Colon Sehool are reminders of the days when wood and char-
coul were more necessary fuels thun they are now. Charcoal
was used exclusively as fuel im the iron works in Fhelps
County.
II. OTHER LINGUISTIC FEATURES (2l12)
A. Spelliing anu Pronunciation
1. Ortnographicel verisnts (o0)

Baileys Creek (Bailies, Buley's); Barnett's
Station (Rarrett's); Bartonsville(Barton-
ville); Big Berger Creek(Hoeger, Burger);
Blue Spring Chureh (Biue Springs Chureh);
Boeuf Creek (loeff); Bolumn's Creek{Bolin's,
Bollins, Bowlin's); Hourbeuse River
(Pourvois); Prumley (Brumly); Byron(Byrne);
- Dooline Creek (Doolings Creek); ¥rene Creek
(Freme); Glaize Creek (Gluze); leduc(loduc);
Iittle Yaries Creek (Marais); lLittle
Oravois Creek (Grovoixz); loose Creek
1.'0urs, L'Ourse); Merais (Mavais); Maries
River Imau. Mary's, Maria); Meramec
River (Masramee, Merumac, ¥errimasc);
¥ersmec Springs (Merimee)

2. Cmission of epostrophe (13)

Balley's Creek (Bei leys Creek); Hoeger's
Btore (Hoegers Store); Bolun's Creek(Bolins
Creek, Bollins Creek); Bomnot's iiill
(Bonnots Nill, Bonnots); Brouse's PBend(
(Brouses Bands: Cotton's Spur (Cottons);
Doolin's Cre=k (Doolins Creek); Goodman's
Spur (Gooamsns); Nery's Home (u5t. Mary
Home ); Normun's Hollow (Normun Creex);
York's Station (Yorks)

3. Consolidation of detached sufifixes snd pre-
fixos (&)

"New Burg" (Newburg); FPleasant Furm
(Pleasuntfarm}; Pleasunt Kount
(Pleasnntmount ); Rockymount (Hocky iount)
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B. Phonetic Peculiarities
1. Anglicizeu Pronumciations of foreign woras

a. 8hifts of accent (le)

Auglelize(Orand A.) De Cemp

Boillot Gravois

Bounots Lacon

Bo;arbc\mu wa/x-i}»- (Mareis)
Bourbols ¥éresu(south ¥. )
Berger(sig B.) Csage

céaﬁz Eo/ubid;ux

b. Substitution of native for foreign sounds
or spellings (3%)

tugluize; Paumhoer School; Berger;
Bloongurden{From Blumengarten); Bode;
Boegers; Boes; Boeuf; Foillot; Bonnots;
Bourveuse; Bourbois; Chamcis; Clinger (for)
Klinger); %ichorst School; Treme (from
Frene); Gravois; Hoecker; Koelling's Island;
Eoeltatown; Koenig; Eroceger; Isboeuf;

leduc; Leohner; kuench Cave; Osage; Host;
Santee; Stoenner; Struemph Scnool (from
Struenff); Swedeborg

£. Contuminutions, blenas, and popular etymolo-
gies (22)

Arlington; Clinking Beard Hollow (for
Clinkenbveard); Colon &chool; Frume Creek (for
Frene); Frisco R.R.; Gascozark; lay High
Gehool (for lenigh); loose Creek; leries
River, Mery's River, River Maria (for lMarais
R.); Mariosa; loro Sehool; ¥t. Herman Church
{for Mt. Hermon); Mt. Vernon Church; Fotsdam(?)
Punkin Center; Rolling Creek (for Follins);
Ssint asnnie; Swedeborg (foreign suffix);
Tavern Creek (for Caverme); Vienna (blend of
Vie Anne s«nd Vienna, Austrie)

5. Other features of promuncistion (6)

Barren Fork; Kaintuck Hollow; Penther Creek;
Sudheimer; Vichy; Vienna
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C. Dimlect Nords and Americenisms (73)

Adventist flatb possum

Alder fork post oak

bank frame church preirie

bend gap punkin

bloom ginger rabbit

bluff grange rattlesnake
-borg gunm red bird

branch nickory red oak

brush hollow rolling

brushy horseshoe bend (usea of country)

buck knobd sand

buffalo landing (for sandstone)
-burg or laurel settlement
-burgh lick sink

buzzard loecust shut-in

chapel moecasin Spanish Needle
ehinchbug mound spur

Christien Hew Light store

elifsy (Gott's Chr. Ch.) sugar (maple)
coloreu(lt.View C.)  panther sycamore

cove pea vine tick

cresk pentecost township

erook piasy trot (Possum T.)
diggings pia oak turkey
Evengelical poiut walnut

wild eat
The orthographical variants are mostly errors in

transeription of mepmukers anu others. However, the ver-
ious spellings of Big Berger Creek (Boeger, Burger) pro-
vided a nice problem end heliped to settle the origin. The
g is given a soft promunciation by the people who live near
it, and it is reasonable to class it as » French word.
Buigor and Boeger are Uerman spellings assigned more or
less arbitrarily by explorers and mapmakers who were une
familiar with this part of tne country. French influence
i® shown on the Indian neme liasremigous, which hes undergone
various changes to resch the finsl established fomm,

Mersmec . Maramec, Meramac, Merrimaec, and Nerimec huve dis-
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apreared and Vermmec is now generally accepted as the
correct spelling. Inose Creok is & folk etymology from
L'0urs or L'Curse Cresk. It seems t0 be a tendeney to
drop the apostrophe from place-nsmes. Probubly this is due
to confusion s %0 its correct use. Twelve casss were
found where the apostrophe has dDeen definitely daropped.
Pronunciution provides one of the most interesting
vhases of pluce~nsme study. The case of Blg Berger Creek
has been noted. Often the correct German promsunciation and
sometimes the correct french pronuncliusvions are retained by
the older inhabitents, dut in Mmost cases uhess have givean
way or are giving way to snglicized pronunciations. Zither
the vowel sounds such us Cermun Qe or Fremeh g9l, which are
difficult for the Americas tongue to manipulate, ure being
replaced by similar but more femiliar English vowel sounds;
or the asoccent, especinlly of French nemes, is being or hes
been shifted from the last syllable of the name to the
first -- a firm tendency of the English language. With
most of the French names both substitution of native sounds
and shift of aceent have taken plsece. This double chsuge
is especiully noticeable in the names Augleize; Doillet,
Bonnots, Bourbeuse, Dourbois, Cadet, Cravois, and Maries
(Mareis). Boillot is an interesting pronunciation in that
it has been only purtly engliclzed. Probubly it was origin-
ally pronounced lDW“jO/; it is now pronounced baTg by
everyone in that part of Osage County. Fossibly future

Place~-name students willi find it in sueh further stuges
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of anglieization as bazlo ; botlo , or borlat.
Other exsmples of half-anglicizavion are Cadet anu Gravolis.
An interesting example of suvstitution of native for for-
elgn sounds is Chamols. Xveryboay in the town seys gamalz.
Why shouldn't they? People in Paris, Missouri don't pro-
nounce the neme of their town pi\“i,. Natives 9:‘ Versailles
and New Madrid don't say VEr 5&/I and 'm\ae oy i @ or even
madrad , They say pi/vas ) vrselz, and madvrad, The
pronuncietions of some numes are in process of change.
Some of the local inhabitants of Bode say bod while
others say bod: . So in Fost, Yosl and 725l are neard.
Attention has been called to the peculiar dialect pro-
nuncistion of panther in previcus place-name theses. An-
other dialect pr.onunciation to be found in this section of
Wissouri is that of the word barren. It is often pronoune~-
ed barn instesd of bvom |

The misspeliing of Mt. Herman Baptist Chureh may be
due t0 & desire Lo honor some pPerson named Hexman along
with ¥t., Hermon in Palestine. That aouble idea was present
in the naming of the town of 5t. Jumes, and Prodbubdly
Vieanna, Rolla, and Arlington. XNariosa and Cuscozark are
conscious coinages. Clinking Beard Hollow, Colon School,
Prame Creek, lLay High School, loose Creek, Maries River,
Rolling Creek, and Tavern Creek (?) seem to be popular
etymologies. Several persons interviewed insisted that
Lay High School was so named because it was on high
ground; it "lays high". The only apparent explanution for



-l64-

the evideat popular evymology loose Creek is that the origin~
al L'0urs was unfemiliar and somewhat difficult to promnounce.
Anyone who is interested in words is interested in
dialect wordis. These are treated fully im the aprendix,
but attention should be called here to & few of the more
unusual ones. A bloom was a large plece of pig iroan but
not too large for & man to lift into & wagon. These blooms
were the very crudest kind of pig iron full of impurities.
They were hauled from the various primitive iron works to
the river for shipment to S5t. Lbuiu where they were refined.
They were of irregular shape but were, ia genersl, round
and rather flat. A bluff 1s any preecipice or cliff provid-
#d 1t is ut lewst twenty or twenty-flve feet high. Branch
has a definite meaning., It 1ls & very smell ntrﬁaﬁ; usually
iess then six or eight feet wide «nd mot deep ensugh for
fishing. Any stiream Detween six or eight ane thirwy feet
wide is calied a oreek, andt a stream more thun twenty-five
or thirty feet wiue is a river. 4 fork is a large breneh.
Brush ies indefinite in meaning. It mey mean shrubbery,
emnll trees, or even iorest, but it usually vefers to
serub or stunted ocak which is abundent in the Ozarks.
Serub oak bushes or trees are from two to eight feet high.
They are csused by poor and rocky soil. Clifty snd c¢lift
are common dialect words in the Ogarks; in fact, I have
heard them in mearly sall parts of Missouri except the east-
ern part. 1 kmow pecople who spesk standard English other-
wise, who say c¢lift tor cliff end clifty when they meen
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eliffy or precipitous, A knob is elither a knoll or & hill
without a peak. A sink is a peculiar formation. It is
neurly always formed by the c¢ave-in of an underground
stream of which there are muny in this section. Spur is
& reilrosd term. It is elther & short, bruncn line or
more often, &« siding or switch, Trot is a place whicn some
animal frequents, i.e. whers the snimal trots. Boeufl wus
commonly used by the early French for buffelo, though it
really means cow.
IIT. NON-ENGIISH WORDS (41)
A, Indisn: WNerumec; Yultnomah; Osage; Cehawa;
Ozarx(?i; Osarta(?i; Seioto;
Shuwnee; Tuspumbia
B. Trench: Auglaize; Bourbeuse; Caverne;
Claize; vois; L'Curs; L'Ourse;
Marais; Noreau; pzark(?}; Rividre a
la Caverne; Riviere au Berger;
Riviére au Boeuf; Riviere aux
Prenes; Riviere Zaline; Vichy
C. Hebrew: Bethei; Bethlehem; Poag; Zanaan;
Carmel; Herman; ldumes; Visgah;
&alem; Tabor; Zion; Zaar
D. Creek: sntloed; Corinth; Macedonia;
Philadelphia
This seotion of counties is riech in French numes; at
least slxteen are definitely from the Freuch lunguage not
counting the many local traensfers and variations. Two are
animal nemes, L'Ours Creekx and Riviere au Boeuf; ome is
for a tree, Riviere aux Frenes; one is a personul nsme,
Moresu; aund all the others refer to minerals, soil, end
water. There are a few names suoh as Spanish HNeedle
Preirie, Saint Annie, and Moro School which suggest the

Spanish but none whioh show the imfluence of the Spanish
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periou in Misszourl's history. Churches have contributed
the next largest group of foreign words, the Hebrew and
Greek. DPossibly Corinth is not the result of Biblical
iafluence, vut all the other Treek or Hebrew nrmes must
be. Severul are very common Iin Missourl ss protestant
eburech numes, such as Tethel, Pisgeh, Swlem, =nd Zion.
The Tndien numes are diffieult to solve because the Tndisns
have gone &nd are either extinct or their languege has been
forgottea. Tor instance, the lenguage of the Nissouri
trive of ITndisns has been completely forgotten and the
trive is thought to be extinet. Such nomes ns Osage and
Ozark (which is probdably purtly French) have been studied
by scholars but ne ocertzin conclusions have been reached.
Other Indiap mawes such as Tuscumbia and Meraumee have been
80 badly misspelied that nothing cam be snia of them with
gertainvy.
IV. CHANCIS IN NAVES (1838)
4. liaterial Ressons
1. Changes in locstion or surroundings (&)
Woollam %o Old Wollem wnd New ¥Ollam
2. Orowth of community as signelized by in-

corporation or establishment of poat

office (9)

Beaver to Bem; Boegers Store to Wope;

Brouses Bend to Hoecker; Grange Store to

Flora; Iron Summit to HMancock; Snider's

Store to Bourbois; Thompson's Store to

Brumley; Thompson's Store to Westphalla;

Wishon's Sters to Nillom;

J. Death of community and later reestablish-
ment (1)



B.

.
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Tisletown to Wariess DNelta

Chnnge of ownershin, management, or
citigenry (26)

Agee Cave to Planders Cave; Bates ¥ill to
Partletits; Tart to Fonseville; Rolin
Behool to School of the Osage; Coppedge
Soring to Freeman Spring to Relfe Spring;
Double Chimneys Church tc Bowles Chapel;
Tundss to Bailey; Feekney Diggings to
Gageville; Hopkins Spring to Wilkins
Srring; Xnobview to Spading to Enobview;
Enotwell Iron Works to Osark lron iWorks;
lawson Cave to Hamilton Cave; lenox Mine
to De Camp Mine; ILick Branen to whalen
Branch; pseomb Mill to Wheeler; Kesaey's
Iron Works to Xeremec lIrom Works; WeCourt-
ney Spring teo Viller Spring; Fickles liine
t0 Clark liine; Shackleford Spring to Dorl
Spring; Touth Pacifie R.R, to Atlantie

and Pgelific R,R. to St. louls ana San
Francisco INR.; Stariky's Bluff to Shockley's
Bluff to Nount Sterling; Thompson's Store
to Westphsnlia

Practicsal TFeasons

1.

2.

To avoid confusion (11)

Bourbois to rosebud; Elmirs to Fldca;
Enobview to Fosetl; Lyon to Richland;
Vedora to 5t, Avdert; Proctor to Cove to
Chester to Clean; St. Lawrence to 8t.
Elizabeth; St, Mary'a to Vary's Home;
ﬁtnr to uanda

To shorten ond aimplity (12)

Beaver Velley te Beaver; Cotton's Spur to
Cotton or Cotten's; Dry Auglaize to Dry
Claize; Ooodman’s Spur to Goodmens; Grand
Auglaize to Crend Glsize to Gluize or
Claze; Linnville to Linn; Spanish KNeedle
Prairie to Spanisn Prairie; Ulman's Ridge
to Ulran; Wet Auglaize to wbt Glalze;
‘gyni;'vllls to Ysney; York's Station to
orks .

To translate u'faraiau name (10)

Fruukberg to Freeburg; L'Ours Creesk or
L'Oures Creek to Bear Creek; Fiviere a le
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Caverne to Big Tavern Creek; Rivloro au
Berger to Big Berger Creek; Riviere au
Boeuf to Boeuf Creek to Buffalo Greek;
Riviere aux ¥renes to Frene Creek to Ash
Creek; Riviere Crand Glaize to Grend
Auglaize Creek; Elviora Saline to Saline
Creek

C. Personul Reasous
1. Dislike or unpopularity (o)

Drysse to Summerfield; Kaiser to Success
(an unsuccessful attempt); Potsdum toO
Pershing

£. To show bonor (1lo)

Charlestown or Charleytown to St. Elizubeth;
Dauphine to Bonnots ¥ill; Heck to Hadley;
Iron Summit to Hancock; Knobview to Fosati;
Iittle Richwoods to Watkins; Pleasant

Grove School to Bond School; Seioto to St.
James; Shipley's lenaing to Medora; Stony
Foint to Linnwood (o0 Ryors; Viessman o
Brinktown; York's Leg to Dawson Township

D. Aesthetic Reasons

1. fg)aﬁvertiso or make more "high soundaing”

Agee Cave to Flanders Cave; Bartlett's Mill
to Bartlett's Springs; Etter to Etterville;
Flatwoods Churches to Harmony Church;
Klindt Sechool to Pleasant Ball School; Mud
Spring Baptist Church to College Hill
Baptist Chureh; Third Creek Beptist Church
to Bethel Baptist Churech

Z. Nicknumes later adopted (6)

Baur to Tea; Hawkins to Punkin Center; Lake
Benton to lake MeClurg vo Lake of the
Czarks; Neeumore Baptist Church to Gaseonade
Baptist Churen; 8t. louis and San PFrancisco
K.H. to Frisco R.R.

E. Various anu Unxnown Keusons (16)
Big Richwoous U0 (Uakhurst to KHocktown to

Iberia; Curty School to Gageville School;
Dugout Sechool to Dixie School; Engelbert to
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Frankberg; Fremout Town.to Jerome; Galluway's
Store to Gallaway Station; Jenkins Spring to
Feaster Spriug; [ock's ¥ill to Russellville
0 loose Creek; Liller Spring to Ebb and Flow
Spring or Sipnom Spring; Cla FPrame Church to
Liverty Christian Chureh; Snider's Store to
Bourvois; Tuvern to Humphrey's; Weeks
Christian Church to Fuirview Christium Chureh

F. Two or More Nemes (former rival names, or
names still unsettled) (67)

Argyle or Campbell's Switch; Argyle Lake or
Koeltztown Lake; Aurora Cave or Stark Cave;
Baumhore School or Red School; Bend School or
Horseshoe Bend School; Bethel Baptist Church
or Third Creek DBaptist Church; Big Richwoods
or Iberis or Rocktown; Bloomington or The
Mill or Chinchbug or lLeis; Elythe's Creex or
Blythe's Fork; Boesuf Creek or Buffulo Creek;
Buck Elk Bartist Chureh or Pilot Xnobd

Baptist Churen; Bucksncrt or fichey; Caprps
or Ramsey; Cedar Branch or Cedsyr Fork; Chureh
of St. Theruss of the Child Jesus or St.
Theresa's Catholie Church or Church of the
Iittle Flower; Clesr Creek Branch or Clear
Fork; Curty School or Gageville School; Dry
Fork or Dry Fork Creek; Tbb and Flow Spring
or Siphon Spring; Freme Creek or Ash Creek;
Gardner Brunch or Rabbit Yead Branch or

Lenox Branch; Hanging Reck Creek or Braneh
or Humphrey's Creek; Jim Henry Chureh or

Fush Chapel; Feethtown or Bentown; WeKpignt
or Isbell Station; Mary's Bome or Bobtown;
Mitchell Chapel Methoaist Churchn or Mitchell
Metnodlisv Chureh; Osage Dem or Basgnell Dam;
Fockhouse or Him Henry Cave; Smith's Creek or
Inudiau Creek; hulen EBrunch or Hymen Braaneh

Many & place never nud an offieisl neme unvil a
post office was established. 4 post office, even in a

Crossroeds country store or in & farmer's home must heve
a neme., In this section are six country stcore numes

which were changed when & post office or a town was est-
ablished. Wines, mills, springs, and caves change owner-

ship and usually change nemes at the same time. Xnodbview
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changed to Spsuding when a new postmasier used his iaf luence
to name the pisce for himself, but when politics changed
and postmasters with it, the name changed o Knovview again.
The Frisco is the official nicknume of the rauilroad which
began as the South Paeific 7.R., chunged to the Atlantie
and Pacific R.R,, and then to the St. Ipuis and San
Franeisco R.R. %While the latter name is the official name,
even the company now uses the name Friseo on its staticn-
ery and its ecars.

Sometimes, after a name has been adopted, it is
found to confliet with ihe name of some other place in
the state either because the two nemes sre the same or be=
cause they are so similarly spelled that confusion might
result. Olean and Iberies eaecn had four names before one
oould be found that did not conflict or that was suitable.
Mary's Home mnd Hosati had thre~ each. ‘hen Beaver
Falley, Cotton's Spur, Goodman's Spur, Ulmen's Riage,
Yancy Mille, =«nd York's Station ceased to bDe merely &a
valley, spur, ridge, miil, or station, uhose detacned
surfizes were droppea, not only, powever, because the
places became more important, but glso the names seemed
to0 long and unhsndy. They often just wore away and
shortened or simplified themselves. Spanish Prairie ident-
ified the place just as well and was simpler then Spunish
Needle Prairie. Sportsmen nand fishermen all over the state
know Grand Augleize Creek, an arm of the Lake of the

Czarks, merely as the Glasze.
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There seems to be no logicel reason why some names
amw translated and others are not. Both iyllabagl of
Ffankbsrg were translated ana it became Freeburg. L'Ours
Creek was trauslatea to Bear Creex, but the wvrunslation is
lost and it is now Loose Creek. hiviere au Doeur una
Riviere aux ¥Frenes were able, partielly at least, to
rosist transletion. They occasionully appear on ola maps
as Buffalo Creek and asn Creek, but preseat genersticne
know them only as Boeuf Creek and Frene Creek.

An interesting story is connected with the change in
names of Fosati. In 1950, the plece was named for the
Catholic Bishop Joseph Rosati, the second und omnly Italian
bishop of St. loulis. Soon after the name weas chunged 8
newspaper in the Italian town where Bishcp Fosati was born
carried a news story saying that cne of the largeat metro-
polises in the new world had been named for a famous son of
that place. Coples of the paper were sent to some of the
residents of Rosati whose populstior is chiefly Itelisn.
hiosatl is a very small place und tne incident was cuite a
Joke., This story is vouched for vy lev. 5.7, Stocking,
Catholic priest at Rolla.

Nemes are sometimes chunged for aesthetic reasons.
Flanders Cave is & more intriguing name for &« vommerciulize
ed cave thun Agos Cave. Bartleti's Springs is more likely
t0 attract summer visitors than is Bartlett's Mill. College
Hill Beptist Church is certainly more "high sounding” than

Mud Spring Baptist Churen. Nicknames ure always more color-
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ful, i1 somevimes less aignified, thah the real numes,
Funkin Center is a common nicknume in the Czerks us is
Possum Trot. Luke of tne (Jzarks seems more in kKeeping with
the deauty of thatl boay of wuler than Leke Benton or lake
¥eClurg.

Sometimes numes are chunged without & definite reason,
but, more often, the reason is forgotten. The oldest
settlers do not remember or have neve heerdi the reeson,
Cften the only person who knows the resson does not think
1t importent and dles with the knowledge. Many names are
still unsettled. Tberis is stil1l known es Foektown,
especially by neighboring, rival villages. Rush Chapel ia
still culled Jim Fenry Church by the older inhabitents, but
Jim Henry Cave is czlled the Rockhouse by the older people.
Since S5t. Theresa wus known as the 1ittle Flower of Jesus,
The Churen of the [ittle Flower is commonly known as St.
Therese's Catholic Churcn,

V. FOLKWAYS AND FOIKLIORE

A. Ipcul Ingtitutions snd Inaustries
1. Churches (l46)
Alder Spiings Church of Christ; Bailey
Holiness; Barnett Baptist; Beaver Union;
eemont Methodist; Bell's Creek Christian;
Berean Baptist; Bethel Baptist; Eethlehem
Baptist; Big Piney Baptist; Rlue Spring
Baptist; Bowles Chapel (Methodist); Braneon
Methodist; Brick Pentacost; Celvary Baptist;
Camp Cround Methodist; Central Baptist;
Christ ¥piscopal; Chureh of St. Therese of
the Child Jesus; Chureh of the Little Flower;
Church of the Sacred Heart; College Hill

Baptist; Concord Bemptist; Comeord Methodist;
curry's cnristian; Dodd Christian; Double
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Chimneys; Dry Creek Baptist; Dublin Baptiat;
Dyer Baptist; Elm Spring Baptist; Fairview Bap-
tist; Falrview Christiunn(z}; Falrview Methodist}
Flatwoods Faptist; Flatwoods Methodist; Frasnklin;
Friendsnip Buptist; Casoconade Baptist; Glenwood
Baptist; Gott Christien; Green Ridge Baptist;
Harmony Baptist and Vethodist; Hickory Crove
Christian; Hickory Poiat Baptist; Hickory Point
Christian; High Point Baptist; Woly Trinity
Catholic; Hopewell Church of Christ; Humphrey's
Christinn; Tdumesa Baptist; Immaculate Conception
Catholic(2); Independence Baptist; Jim Wenry
Methodist; Kalntuck Beptist; ¥notwell Presbhy-
terian; Liderty Church of Christ; Liberty Christe
ian; Iittle Tlock Raptist; Little Waries Bup-
tist; lone Ster Baptist; Mscedonie Baptist(2);
Macedonie Christian; Milldale United Brethren;
Mitehell Chapel Methodist; Mitchell Methodist;
Yossy Spring Vethodist; Mt. Aerisl Methodisi; Mt.
Carmel Baptist; MNt. Yermen Baptist; ¥Mt. Olive
Baptist(2); ¥t. Plessunt Baptist; ¥t. Vernon
Buptist; ¥Mt. View Church of Christ; ¥Mt. Zion
Baptist(2); Mt., Zion Colored Baptist; Kt. Zion
Congregational; Mud Spring Baptist; Nesdmore
Beptlst; New Hope Baptist; New Nope Pentecost;
New Sslem Buptist; New Woollam Methodist; Onk
Porest Baptist; Cnk Grove Church of Christ; Ouk
Hill Christian; Oklahomu Christian; Old Frame;
Our lLady of Perpetual Melp Catholic; Peace
Lutheran; Philadelphia Baptist; Pilot Knoo Bap-
tist; Pisgan Beptist; Piggah Christiun; Pleasunt
Grove Baptist(z); Pleasant Grove Methodist;
Pleassnt Hill Christian; Pleasant Hill Unitved;
Red Ouk Wethodist; Rhes Baptist; Ricker lemoriul
(Nazarene); Riverview Baptist; Rolling Heath
Baptist; Foubidoux Methodist; Rush Chapel iMetho-
Gdist; S5t. Aloysius Catholic; St. Anthony's
Catholic; St. Boniface's Catholic; 3t., Ceeilia's
Catuolie; St. Elizabeth's Catholic; St. Ceorge's
Catholic; St. James Evangelical; St. Johannes'
German Lutheran; St. John's Evangelical; St.
John's Iutheran; Sv. Joseph's Catholie; St.Iouis
Catholie; St. Mary's Catholie(2); =t. Patrick's
Ceathollic; St. Paul's Evangelical} St. Theresa's
Catholic; Snlem Baptist; Selem Presdyterian;
Saline Valley Christian; Sheppard Methodist;
Skaggs; Gmith Baptist; Spring Creek Baptist;
Teverndnle; Third Creek Baptist; Trinity Episco-
pal; Union Adventist; Washington Baptist; Weeks
Christian; Zion Tvangelical; Zion Hill Baptist;
z.im; lethodist; Zoar Methodist; Zour Presby-
erian '
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2. Scehools (277)

Admms; Adkins; Alder Springs; Allem; Anderson;
Antioeh; Asher Hollow; Atwell; Berbaricx; Barnett;
Barton; Extes; BSaumhoer: Bear; Bear Ridge; Bell;
Bend ; Pen Fore; Berry; Blood; Bode; Poes; Boeticher;
Boiilot; Bolin; Bona; Brauson; Bridge; Brown; Buck
Elk; Buckenfiorf; Burchard; Burnett; Burns; Busse;
Buwzard Roost; Cadet Creek; Camp Grouna; Campground;
Cedar Grove; Ceaal Hill; Central Foint; Clark;
Cleino; Clevelana; Clifty; College Hjill; Collier;
Collius; Colon; Comptom Hill; Cooper) Cowan; Cross;
Crossromds; Curry; Curty; Davis; Dean; Deer Creek;
Demoeret; Descher; Dingley; Dixie; Doda; Dover;
Dry Creek; Dugout; Esst Tairview; Fichorst; Elllo%s;
Elm Spring(2); Enterprise(z); Evening Shade; Execel-
slor; Falrview(Z); Feeler; Perndale; ¥lag Spring;
Flat Grove; Flat Rock; Flet Top; Fletcher; Foirest
Orove; Fox Crossing; Frenklin(g); Caday; Cegeville;
Carfield; Ceorgetown; Cinger Ridge; CGlaving

Gospel Ridge; Gottschall; CGrace; Grayson; (reen-
bush; Haley DBend; ¥Mall; FHamby; Femllton; Harbison;
Harmony; Harrison; ¥ay Follow; Yeckman; Hickory
Orove; Fickory Point; Hicka(&&; ¥ighgrove: Highe
land; High Point; Hilton; 7inton; Hirsche;
Hochstetter; Holder; Toney Springs; Hopewell;
Hopre; Horseshoe Bend; Indian Creek; Islund;
Jeffries; Jim Henry; Johnson; Juedeman: Keintuck;
Kempker; Kenner; ¥Yern; Feves; ¥iehl; Xlindt;
Enotwell; Xroeger; lacy; lambetn; lange; laurel
Ridge; lawson; lay High; lee; Liberty(3)}; Little
Floek; loehner; lone Star; lone Star No. 1; Long
Ridge; lost Mili; Low Cap; Iurton; ¥cDaniel;
¥eXinley; McMimn; Meoe; Meddem; Menning; kathis;
Mauze; Miles; Miller(d); Miller Crove; Morgan;Moro;
¥t. Aerisl; Et. Clibson; Mt. Herman; it. Pleasant;
¥t, Tabor; Mt. Zion; iivua Creek; Mungy; Needmore;
Keese; New Taft; Qak Forest; Oak Grove(z); Osk
lawn; Pelace; Perkins; Persimmon rond; Pisgan(2);
Plattners; Pleasant Ball; Pleasant Grove(s);
Pleassnt Hill; Pleasant iidge; Point EBluff;
Pointer's Creek; Possum Town; Possum Trot; Post
Quk(2); Prewett; Prospect; Prosperity; Labbit Heed;
Rembo; Red(Z); Feeu; Renneke; Lnes; Ricnel; Roll~-
ing Heaih; Hoseberry; Rost; LKuwwe; Sznd Hill; Senn-
ing; 8chool of the (sage; Shady Grove; Shanzmeyer;
Shawnee Creek; Sbeppard; Shinkles; Shockley;
Skinner; Snodgrass; Spearmsn; Springdale Seminary;
Star; Starke; Stoenner; Strawhun; Struemph; Success;
Svede; Sweet Home; Swyers; Tayloe; Taylor; Tenay~-
son; Terry; Thompson Hill; Topping; Trower; Turkey
Ridge; Upper Kill Creek; Verhoff; Veraonmn; Vietor;
¥istory; Valker; Walmut Groye; Warren; Wesh;
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Washington; #est Fulrview; Whecsler; ihive; #ild
Cat; Wiles; Wilson; Winkleman; Wishon; Wiseman;
¥ittenbach; Wolfe; “right's; Wynn; Yelton;

Zionm EHill

Kills (14)

Bartlett's Mill; Bates Mill; Bomnots Mill;
lipscomb; Lock's Mill; Mill Creek; Owen Nills;
Pay Down; Plllman's Nill; Safe; Schlieht;
Wheelsyr; Wright's Mill; Yeney Mills

Poads and highwey towns (7)

Casconade; lake Ozark; Cld Iron Foad; Cld Sslt
Road; Cld Wire Road; Springvale; Useful

River traffic and river or lake towns (14)

Bagnell; Brockman's Yord; Capps; Damsite; Freneh
Villege; Casvoncde; Cusconade Ferry; Clenn's
landing; Hermann; Morrison; St.Aubert; Shipley's
Ianding; Teprehorn landing; “allace's Landing

Failroad towns (92)

Bagnell; Cotton's Spur; Dixon; Goodimans; Isbell
Station; Johnson Station; Newburg; Riehland;
Summi tt

Resorts and amusements (12)

Alhambra Grotto; Aurora Springs; Devil's Elbow;
Fredericesburgh; Cuscondy; Hooker; Jerome; Lake
or tne Ozarks; Meriosa Delta; Viechy; Westphalia

Other occupations

Q. Agriculture =znd norticulture (1)
Puaehlahd

b. Mining (26)

Beaver Creek Mine; Brady Wine; Broneon ¥ine;
Buckland Mine; Clark Vine; Clinton Rank;
Clinton Mine; De Camp Mine; Forbes Clay Pit;
Cageville; Hackney Diggings; Irom Romd: Irom
Sumnmit; Kelleely Bank; Knotwell Irom #orks;
Lamd Bank; Lesd Creek; Lepox Bank; Mussey's
Iron Works; Meramec Trom Works; 0l4a Irom
Road; Ozark Iron Works; Pickles Mine; Reed
Bank; Smith Mine; Stimson ¥ine ;
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¢. Wocdeutving (1)
Yoodend
B. Imeal Traditicns =nd Customs (13}

1. Cave Dwelling: Jim FHenry Csve; Taveran Creek

2. Charcoaling: Colon Zehool

S. Tay Noking: Hey Follow

4. Honey Cathering: Money Springs Sehool(?)

5. Tndisn lore: Indlan Creek; Tndiun Town'

6. Powder making: Saltpetre Cave

7. Sugar making: 2ugar Camp Creek; Sugar Camp

Hollow; Sugar Croek(a)
8. Uine msking: Rosati
C. Local Legends and 3upsrstitutions (7)

Bloody Islanu; Devil's Dackbone; Devil's Elbow;

Devil's Tea Table; Dog Creek; Pabbit Head Creek;

4ilson's Cave

The pionesr churches and schools were anot only places

for worship &#nd leavuing, but they were alsc neigunborhood
centers. 4ll coumunity activities, projects, meetings,
and eatertalinments were neld either in the "e¢hurchnouse"™ or
the "schoclhouss™. In some places religicus services were
held im the school, especislly in places where no one de-
nominution had emcugh foothold ©o orgunlize = church, MNt.
Tabor 3chool was given tihat Bible nzme becauss cirecuit
riders snd travellag preachers of various denomlaations
frequently held "preaching” there, and there was no churech
ia the inmediate vicinity. #uay sehools are mamed for
ehurches, but omly & few churcaess are named for nearbdy
schools. This would seesx t¢ indlcate that, lm gemeral,
churches were established first, which is the fact. After
he had bullt his house, the next thing the picneer settler

usually built, with the help of khis nelghbors, wes & chureh.
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Whether this was due to religious fervor on the part of
the plonesr, or to the fact that teachers were scarce and
there were many whe were willing to preach, or to the faoct
that education was not considered Importent, we have no
way of knowing. Tt is true that in some sections of the
six counties under consideration education is not yet
regarded as essentisl. Tn faet, in sore of the more re-
mote and hilly seeticns which I vieited the rete of illit-
eracy is alarming, and it is not considered disgraceful.
The people =lect to the school boards representatives who
can neither rnad.aor write. In the early daye wihen clear-
ing the land and establishing o home in the virglin wilder-
uess was the importsat thing, there was little time for
schooling. Several psople were interviewed who atteaded
the early subscription or tuition sehools. In these re-
mote sections there were no school tax districte seveanty-
flve years ago. A tescher would go to all the homea where
there were children in a certaln section and offer to
teach them for a certuln price deternined by the numbder of
ehildren of school age in the feamily., This tuition fee
was seldom paid in oaén. It was more coften pald in
commodities such e&s homespun shirts and trousers. One
woman told me that she remenbered her mother’s knitting e

pair of mitten® and two pzlrs of sccks for the teacher to
pay him‘fék'ha?‘daught-r's tuition. These articles were

knitted from virgin wool whieh her father bad sheared from
nis own sheep and carded, und which her mother had spun in-
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to yaran, Some of the school names are for nearby churches,
but most of them are for lundowners who slther donated or
sold the sites for the scheol buildings. In some cases they
allowed the school beildings to be built on their lund
without deeding it. BSeveral schools are practicully femily
schools where relatives live nesr each other endi most of

the puplls are cousins,

One early miller hued diffioulty in collecting the
money for his work. He tola his customers that they muet
"puy down" before he would begin to grind their grain.
Another miller had for a sort of slogan thﬁt grein was
safe with him, hie customers would recelve full measure of
flour for thelr grein. The places in time came te be
known by these slogans or mottoes, Cafe and Pay Down.
These early mills were not cnly flour and grist mills.
Wright's ¥111 wes at once flour mill, woolem; mill and
lumber mill.

Wnile there are no faumous rosds in this section of
counties such as the Poone Trall or Foome's Lieck Trail
north of the MNissouri River, there are three lnteresting
roads. During most of the Civil War Folla was & Union
hesdquarters. There wus already a road from G6t. Loule to
Folls and & telegraph conmection, but there was no anunt
of communication sercss the hilly wilderness oetwesn nolla
and Sprimgfield. & telegraph line was built aloag the
ridges between these two pluces early im the war. For the

most part It wes atvacthed vo tress aanu feances, but it soom
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became apparent that some means had to be provided to keep
it in repair. The road which was built along this old
telegraph line is now for the most part U.5, Highway 66.
It was known during the Civil %ar and for maay yesrs after
es the 0ld wire Roed. |

8ult was one of the most valuable commodities in the
pioneer days because in most places it was aifficult to
procure. IV is ssla tc have been usea as legal teander in
some gections. IL often hau %O be haulea for lomg aistences,
and if there were wot adecuate 1oads it nea o be eaurried
in sacks on horseback. Une county hlatoryl mentions the
fact that Williem Moore mede salt at a poinl near Waynes-
ville and heuled it over & primitive road to Jefferson City.
The rosd was kmown as 0ld Salt Roaa for that reason.

¥ention hes been made before of the blooms of nig
iron which were smelted at the verious iron works in this
section, These heavy iron blooms were hauled in wagons
pulled sometimes by double teams of oxen over primitive
roads, parts of which were plank and what was known as
corduroy. A eorduroy road was made of saplings end smull
logs lnld orossways. These log rosds, ] am told, were not
such uncomiortable traveling as one might imaegine. The
cracks between the logs soon filled with bark and dairt and
the tops of the logs wore down until there was & fairly
smooth wheel track. Such & track was necessary along low,
marshy parts of the rouad 0 that the heavy wagon loaas of

1. Hist. Laclede, 109
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iron blooms would not sink into the mud. The Old Irom
Road had several branches, though it is difficult to find
out exactly where they were located. It seems certain that
the road began at the Meramee Iron 7orks and was built to
0la Bloom laniing on the Casconade River which was the
nearest good water transportation connection., It had
branches connecting it with the Knotwell iron Works and
the Ozark Iron Works. lLater, when Hermenn bdbecame an im-
portent shipping point on the Missouri River, the main
line of the roai was from the Meramec Iron Works to
Hermana with a branch to Old Bloom landing und another
branch to Jefferson City.

The reilroad tie business and its railroed and weter
eonnections were responsible for Begnell's growth, but when
the tie business dled, Bagnell became less important. with
the bdbuilding of the Union Rlectric Company's large dam
across the Osage River in 1901, Bagnell mushroomed into a
busy town. #hen the dam was finished, however, Bagnell
was again almost deserted. TFrench Village, long ago wash-
ed away by the treacherous Missouri River, was built by
French people whose homes had previously been washed away
at Cote sans Dessein in Callewey County. @Wnen French
Village began t0 be eaten away, the people moved to
Bonnots ¥ill. There they built their homes on the side
of a steep hill out of reach of the river. Boanots Kill
is a pioturesque little village like one out of the ola
world, with its quaint houses ¢linging to the hill ana ite



ateep streets. QCesconade is a summer resort as well as a
government river boat dock. Tappehorn lsanding was an im-
prortant stoppring place for (Osage River steambouts which
carried on a lively trade. There was a large warehouse
there for storing grain and other commodities for shipment.

Newburg was a mushroom relilroad town and a division
point. It is said the aivigion point was moveu to Dixon
because citizens of Newburg made t00 many demands upon the
rallrosu and that they bought ami held for high prices the
lapd whieh they knew the railroad would neea. The rail-
roed gave as its reason for moving, however, that Newburg
was halfway up the long grade to Dixon and that it was
easier to stop the trasins and get started agein at Dixon.
A% any rate, whether through the greed of Newburg's citi-
zens or Dixmn's strategie position, Dixon beceme the more
important place.

These counties are full of beautiful trout springs
and fishing streams. Phelps and Pulaski Counties, especi-~
ally, are often ealled the sportsmen's paradise because,
in addition to fishing end other water sports, these count-
ies, together with Gasconade, Osage ana Maries Counties
8till contain wild deer. DlNiller County, of course, touches
the lake of the Ozarks. Small resorts and amusement places
are muny but those with uistinetive place~numes are rather
few. Aurora Springs was at one time a large =nu booming
heaslth resort, but it is mow only a peinie grounu with a

spring and tables. Vichy was salso boomed as a health
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spring, but it is now known only for its proximity to
good fishing. Devil's Elbow, Freaericksburgn, Gasconay,
Hooker, Jerome, lake Ozark, ILake of the Czarks, Mariosa
Delta, and Yestphalla are all {ishing or swimming resorts.

Peachlund ie the only agriculturel name that wss
found. Agriculture is not the important dusiness here
that it is in other purts of the stute because the land,
except on smull prairies, is very rxocky, thin, and wot
fertile.

Mining is an important business in Phelps County as
is shown by the many wmine names from that county. Irom is
the important mineral though there are others in small
quantities,

Of the local traditions and customs mentioned only
hay making and wine making remuain. There is a very little
meple sugar maeking, and wild honey trees are scarce. Colon
Sehool gives a reminder of the charcoaling industry which
was at one time considersble and supported muny families.
Por many years charcoul was the only fuel ussd in the iron
workas. The legends attached to numes where they have any
bearing on the n:mes have been related in the Dictionary

of Place-}Names and neea not be repeauted nere.



APPENDIX

A GLOSSARY OF DIALECT WORDS AND AMERICANISNS

Included in the glossary of dialect words and Ameri-
canisms are a few distinetly original combinations for
which definitions are offered. Zxplanations of other
words ineclude: the word, its use in a place-name, the
sense in whieh it was chosen as a place-name, and defi-
nitions found in leading dictionaries and diaslect studies.

Tor convenience the following abbreviations have

been used:

American Speech AS
Bartlett, Dictlonary of imericanisms B
The Century Dictionary and Eycio edia C
Clapin, New Dictionary of simericanisms cl
Dialect ﬁBfes DN
Farmer, .Americanisms, 0ld and New F
Funk and Wagnalls, New Standard Llictionary of the

English Language S
Horwill, A uictionary of Yodern American Usage ;
Neneken, The imerlcal é%er ean &gnguag M
The Oxford Dietionary OED
Supplement to the Oxford Dictionary OEDS
Thornton, An American Glossary : Th
Tucker, imerican English T
Webster's ﬁew Tntarnat!onal Dictionary of the

English Language W
“right, The En;lish Dia'eet DIctIonary Wt

#yld, Universal D ctionary of the English Language U
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rdventist
Union adventist Chureh. O0IDS. 4 member of any of the
verious religious sects nolding millensrisn views...
%g_ Adnm;%;ti orig. the fuller designation of the
owers faem ¥iller (died 1849)...a Millerite.
m’“... ﬁ’” ﬂ.ﬁ.c. A 13 B"'OI.T~ W

Alaer ‘
Alder Springs Church of Christ, Alder Springs School.
OED. A tree (gfggg, ti )} related to the biren,
common in wet places over the ncrthern hemisphere, from
furope to N.W, America anda Japsn, the wood of which re-
slets decsy for an indefinite time under water. 9%00...
S0 C,B,We,W,5. Cl. Deserves & place suong Americanisms,
only in so far as the term is recklessly trensferrea to
other shrubs that resemble the originel in the fam of
their leaveas. Hot A in H,T.

Bank _ ’
Clinton Bank, lLemb Benk, Lennox Bank, Reed Bank., ORD7b.
An ore-deposit or coal-bed worked by surfuce excavetions
se0 lmo 30 c,u,m.’ﬂ',ﬁa

Bend
Used 4 times in comneetion with rivers (see list p.153)
A dln DN, V. I: Used of a river....in the Southwest, and
in most of the Paur Yestern stetes. This spec river sense
not in OKD, W,8,C. ~

Bloom
Cld Bloom landing., CFEDE. Sometimes improperly applied
to the 'ball' or mass of iron from the pudaling furnace
whieh is to be hammered or shingled into & blcom. 18686.
80 C,U,we,W,8,

Blurft
Used 8 times (see list p.lB83). Eauch name was derived
from the location of the pluce on & sheer-fuced nhill.
OED. First used in N. imerica, znd still mostly of
american landscupes. 1737...B: In imerica appliea %o
& hign vank presenting &« steep front along a river.
80 Cl,Tn,T,M,DN.II,III,V,VI, in @.w. §0., B.w.irk., 8.
I1l. 48.11.362,IV.6 Not A4 in ¥,5,C,U.

~borg
Swedeborg. OED. ON. wsno De. DOFE, the ejulvalent fom
to OE bur , Borough. So W.

Brush or brushy
Used in various combinetions for 4 creeks; all were named
from the “eick undergrowth slong the banks. O0IDE. The
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small growing trees or shrubs of a wood, a thicket of
small trees or underwood (Esp. in U,s., Caneda, and
Australie) 1330....50 W$,C,¥,S,B,F,C1,Th (1774}, DN VI.
0EDS (U,S.Exemples) 1801....

Branch
A detached suffix applied to 16 small streams in this
section. OEDEb. U.Z, spec. A amall stream or brook.
18350..00%3 1‘?‘..0‘& » ,3,5.?,01,%(1&17),T.Dﬂ.II.
ITIIV.S,AS.IT.30 (1834), IX.320,X.859%.

Buek
Buck Elk Creesx. OFKDOa. Appositive indicating sex, as
buck-fewn, ~goat, -rabbit, -rat. %o C,V,U,¥%,S.

Burfalo ;
Buffalo Creek: named for the anmimal. OED.le. Applied
in popular unsgientific use t¢ the imerican Bison.
1789"96:.030 c,W,B,»B,F.CX,T,Aﬁkxxssl,,lv-‘ﬂ,a,vxxn“.
OED3 1635 %

-burg or ~-burgh
Fredericksburgn, Freeburg, Newburg: -burg and -burgh are
suffixes used to form town names: Wo. burg A4 town or
eity. U.5. oolloq. 1846,...0urgh, var. of burg 1l90l. W.
does not list the suffixes as Americanisms. M. states
that the U.S, Geographic Board shortened burgn to burg.

Buzzard
Buzzard Roost School 3 @ derisive nume, given because
many buzzaris do roost in the viecinity. COEDl. Name
for the genus Puteo of birds of the falcon family, esp.
B. vulgaris. Applied also, with defining woris, to
other birds belonging vo the Fuleconidee. C 1300...F.
A aaunlappliod %0 a vulture instead of to a hawk.
S0 C,Cl.

Chapel '
Bowles Chapel, Mitechell Chapel Vethodist Church, Rush
Chapel: a detached suffixes applied to churches. OED.
Not listed in this speecisl American sense., ¥: In
imerica, chapel simply meens a small churech, usually
the dependent of some lsrger churen.

Chinechbug
Chinehbug. OEDE., U.S, an insect or -bug, resembling the
bed-bug in its disgusting odor, which is very destruc~-
tive to wheat and other grasses. 8o C,C1,T,M,P,Th,B,
w,S.

Christian
A freguent denominational aname; ef. list of churches on
P.172. OED B4 Used as a denominational or sectarian
name. Pronounced christiasn, it was assumed as a title
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by & sect whieh arose in America. 1818... So %,S8,R
{1801). The pronunciation with e long i mentioned by
OED is unknown in this section.

Clifty
Clifty Creek, Clifty Dule, OED, Cf. Clift. 4 by-form
of e¢liif, due to confusion between that word and clift,
eleft, a fissure. Clifty -y - Cliffy. 8o C,B,%,S,N.

Colored
¥t. Zion Colored Baptist Chureh. OED &c¢. Of the negro
race. 1866... So W,U., A im S,C,B,F,C1,Th, 1 760 T,M.

Cove
Cove. CQXDS. 4 sheltered place or recess among hills,
md" '“. 50 G,Glﬁ&,?.a,w,s.

Creek
A common suffix element used 1lo2 times in this section.
OED2b., In U.S5. end Britisn Colonies: A branch of a
main river, a tributary river; s rivulet, brock, smll
stream, or run. 1l674... 80 C,W,5,B,F,C1,Tn(1674),T,¥,
DEOIII 'v "iI .d‘hgov.lﬁs.x’%s' i

Croock
Humorous name of a p.o., OEDS 19. One whose conuuct is
erooked. U, .1886...5%0 ¥,Ci,Th,T,M,H., Not A in %,5,C.
lencken mistukenly assigns 1878 as the date when Che
word was first used in this sense,

Diggings
Hackney Diggings. OID4., A place where digging is car-
ried on, an excavation; in pl. (sometimes trested as a
ai ’ applied to mines; endi especially to the gpl&-
ti & of California amd untralia. 8e C1,7,Th,B,¥%,8.

Evangelical
A rruquent denominational neme; e¢f. list of ehurchas on
p. 172, ¥; Evangelical Asaeoiatiau~ 4 religious body,
Methodist ia polity and doetrine, founded in 180U by
Jacob Albright in Pennsylvenia; & division in 1291 re-
sulted in the formation of the United Evangelical
Church. Hvangelical Protestant Chureh: A Christien
body in America(German). So¢ 8,0, WNot in OED

Flat
Used a8 a detached prefix to four names, Cf. OXD De.
Australien, & low even tract of lanu generally occurring
where creeks unite...with the usuul rich auriferous
driftv immediately overlying the bed-rock. 1869... This
sense not given as U.S. by the OED; but the dates inai-
¢ate that it was borrowed by the iustralian golaminers
from the U.3., usage. Cf, 8,C: A low-lying plein near
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“«sed ri?‘r’ E'ﬁ' 30 B,F’Cl.?’?i’Dﬂ‘III'VI’ is.V.160. Not
A in ®,U,Wt.

Fork :

4 detached suffix used in 10 plece-names in this section
(See p. 154). The neme is applied to smaull streams or
tributaries of large streams. CXl 1lZ2¢. The point at
which a river divides into two, or a point of Jjunction
of twe rivers; a braneh or tributary. Chiefly U,25,1783
LE N 4 30 G,W.B.Th(1753),TgnH-III,V.QEﬂﬂ 1‘9&1

Prame Church
Ula Frame Chureh, Comb., uncot in CED. Cf. ¥rame house
and freme shop. Cf. ¥rame &b, CEDS 10b. 4 builaiug;
in later use, one composed chiefly or eantirely of wood.
Obs. exe. U.38, 1425...1884., O0EDS V.5, exs. 1732...1873.
A in Th.III. Not A in ?«‘Y,E‘.c-

Cap
low Cap Sehool. OED O. A pass or gorge; very common ia
th‘ ﬁoﬁ‘ 1555010& 1& C.B.ﬁﬁovx¢ ﬁot A in W,s.G,thﬁﬁnlo
S50, : ‘

Ginger
Ginger Ridge Sehool., C. wild in the U.d,, ssarum
Canadeuse, the root of which has au alOomMatic OWOr snu &
warm, pungent tastie.

Gruuge
Grange Store. OL£DH. U.S. 4 lodge or locul brsnch of
the order ¢of 'Putrons of Husbundry', an associstion for
the promotion of the interests of egriculture. 1667...
S C,C1,4,T,P,W,S5.

Gun
Gum Creek. OED H. Short for gum tree; vasrious specles
gf gha N. Amesricen genus HNyssa. 1802...5¢ %,8,C,U,B,F,
1. .

Hickory
A detached prefix used in 3 place-names of this section
(see Dictionary). OED 1. A North American tree of the
genus Caryu, closely allied to the walnut, with tough
heavy aoo%. and bearing drupes (mostly with a hard woody
rind or husk) inclosing 'nuts', the kernels of which in
several species are edible. 1853... 80 C,%,5,B,F,C1,Th
‘l?Ql),‘f,i’i,ﬁ.D‘ﬂ« I.i‘iﬁc IV.@.

Hollow
Used in 16 place-numes in this section (see Dictionary).
OiDe. Epec...a valley; a basin 1550...188585. MNot A in
W,8,U,C: Used in many place-names in the U,5. So ¥,
m‘i.VI ’iaigoII ,163.
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Pilot EKnob, Knobview. OED 2. A prominent isoclatea round-
6d wmound or hill...l!ap. 1!1 Go&o 1650...1'7‘91, fil‘&t vcﬁc
ex. 8o 3,0,B,F,C1l,Th,¥,DN.VI,s8.11.90. Cf. F: Primarily
& Kentuckien term. Not A in W,Wi,T.

Landing
Used in 7 place-nemes in this section (see Diectionary).
CED 5. A lamding-place. 1690...1793. OEDE later U.S8.
exs., 1832...A in AS.V.165. Not A in w,8,C.

Laurel
laurel Rldge School. C5D J. In modern use, applied to
meny trees and shrubs having leaves resembling those of
the laurel tree. Je. With defining word: American Dwerf
or Meuntain lLaurel (Kalmis); Creat lLeurel, an imericen
neme for Rhododendron Max e« 1760.,.8+ Im the U.S,,
seme a8 mountmin-isurel. 8o W.

Lieck
Big Iick. OED &. U.4, A spot to which animuls resort to
lick the salt or salt earth found there. 176l1... S0 C,W,
8,B,F,C1ls,Tn(1751),7(1751),DN.IV,V. OERDE 1750.

locust
locust Mound. OED 2. 4 well-known North imerican iree,
having thorny bramches und dense clusters of white,
heavily~scented flowers. loé4U... S0 W,5,C,E,Th,T,M.

Moccasin
loccasin Bend. A kind of foot-gear...worn by the Indisns
of North Americe. 16128... 80 W,8,C,U,B,F,C1,Th,¥,DN.VI.

Kound
locust Nound, Plessant Mouna, Rocky Mound. OED 4. 4
kind of earthwork formerly coustructed by natives of
pﬁns of North America. 1849, . .50 G,E.’B,Cl,?-

New Light
OED1lb. The religious sect or the doctrine of the 'new
lighuvs'. So C,C1,F. #: Cae of the Disciples of Christ

Panther
Panther Creek. OED 2. Applied in smerica to the puma
or cougar. 17%... So W,5,C,U,C1,B,7,Th(1803).

Finey : ‘
Big Piney River, Little Piney Cresk, Piney Creek, Piney
Fork. OED. erron. form of Piny (abounding in, covered
with, or consisting of pine-trees). So C,B,¥,S.

Peavine
Peavine Creek. Oil a. U.S. The vine or climbing stem,
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with 1ts foliage, of the peaplaut or any plent called
pea. 1766...50 0.3.

Pin Oak
Pin Ouk Creek. Named for the tree. Thorntom 1i857.
ggyrunu Pulustris. 7Thne Swamp-oak. W,S5.

Foint '
Used in 8 place~numes in this section (see Dietionary).
OBEDS Bl. d. to & point to a precise form 2.b. Also, any
tapering piece of land, or of rocks, wocas, etec., comn-
stituting « speciel feature of this (B.L.D.) S0 DN.V.835.
Th. Caupes formed by the devious course oi the Lievisesippl
River 1826. This sense of a river not givem in CED.
Cf, OED BZb spe?. A tapering promontory ruuning into tvhe
sea.

Possum '
Fossum Town School, Fossum Trot School. OED. Aphetie
fom of §gnggg!y 1616... S0 %,8,C,U,B,F,C1,T™h,T,%,DN.II,
I1r,1v,vi.

Post Csek

Post Cek School (2). OEl. A species of oak (juercus

obttusiloba) foumd iu senduy s0il in the eastern U.5., have
ng & herd close-grained dursble wood much useu for posis,
sleepers, ete. So C,5,Th{lB1%). Cl. A variety of oak
found in the Middle States, ana furnishing « wooca much

used in sbhipouilding. S0 F. UH.II. A king of ouk

used to make fence~posts.

rairie : :
Tnis nume is used 1l times in this section (see p. 155).
0¥D. A tracet of level or undulating graesslsand, without
irees, and usually of greal exteunt; appiiea chiefly to
the grassy pleins of North America; a savannah, &
steppe. 1682...80 ¥W,C,8,B,C1,U,Th,T,%,DN.II1,IV,V,VI,
AS.11,38. F. Writes "Prairie, which is derived from
the French, is un imericaniam, which has never been
questioned”.

Punkin
Punkin Cemter. O0ibD. U.3. dial for ¥Fumpkin. The large
frult of & cucurbitaceous plant (Cucurbita Pepo), egg~
shaped or nearly globular w»ilth flattened ends; widely
cultivated for the fleshy edible layer next to the rimi,
which is used in cooking, esp. for ples, and as a food
for cattle; in U, 3, applioa spec. (o0 particulur varie-
ties in distinction from the squash. 3o C,M,F,Tn,B,Wt,
w,S.

Rabbit
Rabbit Head Creek. C. The common gray rabbit or wood-
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rabbit of the U.3., ggegg gi;vaticus. 8o W,3,¥. The
Am, species is not mention n QxV,.

Rettlesnake
hattlesnake Hollow. CED., A vencmous Am. Snauke., 1830...
8¢ “’!,S,G,U,B.F.’I’.QR.II. '

Red Bird
Fed Bixd. CID. A name given to varlous small :merican
birds with red plumaege, esp. the summer tanager

(Pzr%gggao tiva), scarlet tanager (P. rubra), Baltimore
oricle, and eafﬁiaul grosbeak. &¢ C,U,W,8. E |

ked Oak
Fed Cek Creek, Sed Quk Methodlst Church., OFD (Rea 174),
goxgrtn Americen csk, guercus ;ggggund G. feleata.

» W - . i %’;:,_-‘ 4 .

Folilng
Rolling Creek, Rolling Heath Bauptist Chureh, Folling
Heath Sehocl. OCEDppl. abd. Of pruirie~land, ete.: Having
a succession of gentle unuulations; wavy, undulatiog.
Also wransi. of mountainous scemery. Orig. V.s. 1819...
80 C,wW,5,B,F,C1,Tn(1818),T(1818). '

Sund
Sand [iill Schecl. ¥, For sundstone, as the oll-sends
of Pemnsylvania. So C.

Settlement
Peudleton Settlement. OED1S. 1In the outlying districts
of America and the Colonies: A small village or collee-
tion of housss. G&o C,U,%,8.

Shuv-in
Shut~in Braanch. C(Supl.) 2. In ggxﬁ. §§§5., a8 narrow
part of @ valley which is elsewhere broadly open
(Missouri). So W.

Sink ‘

Sluughter 3ink. 0ZD7. 4 flat, low-lylang area where
waters collect and form a bog, mavrsh, or pool. Now U.3,
15960“ 30 B.Th.’r' mot Alv 1:3‘ %‘,S,Go

S8panish Heedle W . '
Spanish Needle Prafirie. 0ED9. Thtiernrtcan plant
Bidens bipianeta or its priekly frui%, 8o C,w,S.

Spur 2 ‘
Cotton's Spur, Goodman's Spur. OZD lle. A brameh of
a lobe, rallway, ete., 1l8dd. Go ¥,5,C.
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Store
Used 9 times In this section (see p. 156). 0Qillza.
Cndefly U.L, and Colonial., In esrly use, « shop om a
large seule, und dealing lno & great variety of srticles.
How, the usual U.J, sad Colonial swivalsut for shop.
%?*gaté 530 G,W,E,S.F.Clgw.ﬁ,ﬁ(lwa) '?‘MOV'&B‘I.‘QR'
iy Ve

P
Uaod in & place-numes in this section (see Dictiomary).
0ES. GSugar-maple. The North Amevicum tree jicer
sacuharious, wiieh ylslds maple-suger. 1780... Jo ¥,3,
Vs

N ‘,«-.» . » "-IIO

Sysanore
Sycanore Opring Follow., 0:5D8a. Ia ¥, Awerica, & piane
or tree of the gunus 2 s B8p. Lhe bDustonwood.
181‘000 30 ”,3,3.”, . Q" L4

Township
Used in D2 pleceo~pumes in thls seciion (see p. 150).
0EDG. U.8, and Cenade. A division of a county haviug
cartuin corporate powers ol loceld adminlastrution.
lﬁﬁﬁo.- 330 ﬁ,&,ﬂ.ﬂ.ﬁ.?,@l.ﬂhll:. lﬁw Thg m. 11.

Trot ‘

oseul Tret Seheol. Naweu from lte localics la a possume
buasing nelghvorncod. No dictiona:y gives the speciul
Hissouri seuse of ; b ef, wulk, Coi & piecs of
ground on which domestic animsale feed or have exsrcise.

Turkey (wild turkey)
Turkey Cresk; Turkey dldge Sehool. OCLEDEb. 7The wild
oriuual of the domestic fowl; oopmsonly «pplied o the

?3 mgcl¥ird. E!&!a‘;;!hkﬂeziuﬁﬁk, 161o.s. SO &.&.C‘ﬁg.
AS.d1.

“alowt
dulout Gfovc Sehood. OLD@b. Black Walout, the ..
species, Wm. QEDE,  1714... S0 %,5,C.

%1lé Cet
wWild Cat %haol. Ciide The HBuropesn wild species of cat,
gg%;% ; am a plied to other wild anlmals of the
r 3. o species of lymx, J&. The
imerican hay u— FYelis rufus), or a releted species.
S0 ¢ W,m.h,i,ﬂl, _
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PRIMARY SOURCES

1. Personal Interviews (9%

Allee, Priest, borm in 1888. Lifelong resident of

Andres,
Atwell,

Bailey,

Barron,
Barton,

the community and great-grsndson of a pioneer.
Banker at Olean. '

J.T., Jerome, Summer resort owner.

Mrs. Josie. Born 18568, Ilives s. of Iberia.
Lifelong resident of the county.

Alvis, e. of Iberia. A great-grandson of
R.B. Bailey, pioneer. :

¥rs. R.R., Bagnell. Lifelong reviaent.
L.A., Capps, age 70, lifeloag resideat and
former mill owner.

Bass, C.B., postmaster at Ulman, age 55, lifelong res.
Berry, CG.A., Tuscusmbia. County clerik.

Birdsong, J.H., Belle, Mo.

.bond, Bugene, Olean 3

Bﬁnd, I.JO’ Sl)l’lns Garden. Born 1806. uf‘lonﬁ res.
Bradley,Ches., farmer near Bugnell,age d0,lifelong res.
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Frankstetter, F.A., St. James. Born looV; life-long res.

Brewster, C.D., FRolla

Brockman, Judge, Tuscumbia. County judge of District No.
1. Born 1864, lifelong res. of the co. and a
grandson of John M. Brockman, ploneer setciler
of the co.

Brumley, W.C., Iberia. Former County collector.

Bunch, John M., farmer s.w. of Eldon.

Burton, J. Kaiser, age 70, lifelong res.

Cain, Thos. J., Dixon., Lifelong res.

. cansholl. pr. G.H., Hermann, Mo. Born 1860, ‘1ifelong

4 res. of the co.

Clark, Clifford, Iberia, age 52, lifelong res.

Clark, Henry E., Claxby, age 74, lifelong res.

Clark, J.B., Edgar Springs. Bormn 1864; lifelong res.

Clark, Tom, Capps, age 69, lifelong res.

Collier, Wm., Bem. Born 1856.

Condra, E.A., Tuscumbia. Deputy County Clerk.

Cordsmeyer, G.W,, Viehy, Mc. Former County judge and

lifelong res. Age 79.

Cox, N.B., St., James. Born 1852; lifelong res.

Dinwiddie, Jas. W., near Kaiser, age 76, lifelong res.

Duncan, Mrs. lLucy Route, Newburg. Born 1844, lifelong

res. of the co.

Duncan, ¥.E., Newburg. Postmester, lifelong res.

Durham, E.E., Ulmen, ¥o., age 70, lifelong res.

Esmond , Heary, Bdger Springs.

Ferguson, John, Iberia. Known as Sguire Ferguson. For-
mer Justice of Peuce. Hes. of co. for 8&
years. 97 years ola.

Freeman, M.7T., Edgar Springs.

Garstang, J.R., lawyer, Cnemois, Mo., born 187Z.

Geume, B.A., farmer, Aua, Mo., first postmester at

Crook, borm 1l86o, lifelong res. of Osage Co.

Graham, Dave, Etterville, born lodv, lifelong res.

Groves, Frank, Vica, Postmaster.

ﬂil’g\ll, C.M., Yancy Mills.

Harrison, John, Between Tuscumbia ami Eldon, lifelong
res. of the co.

Hart, J.P., Vicny, Mo., 54

Kolton, R.A., Tuscumbia

Henderson, M¥rs. Burl, lLake Ozark, wife of the principal

of the school of the Osage.

Hite, J,.%., merchant at Olean, born 1868, lifelong

res. of the community.

Howard, W.%,, Dixon, lifelong res.

Johnson, Frank, Fredericksburgh.

Jones, John, farmer near Bagnell, age 62, lifelong res.

Joyce, A.L., Vichy, Mo., romr postmaster of Veto, No.,

age 80.

Keeth, Tom, Iberia, lifelong res.

King, Evorott. Vienns, Abstractor.

Krone, W.M,, Dixon, No.
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Landwehr, Iouis, Bem, Born 1859.

Lane, George W., Jefferson City, Secretary of the State
Penal Commission, lifelong res. of Pulaski Co.

Lengeberg, H.H., Rosebud.

Iiek, A.8., Dixon.

Iuetkemeyer, John, banker at St., Elizsbeth, age 52,

lifelong res.

Malone, M.F.,, 8St. James.

Mayer, Father Herman J., Pastor 3t. Elizabeth's Church.

Mertens, E.¥., VMorrisom, ¥o., postmaster, born 1900.

¥iller, Gum, farmer, Useful, Mo., born 1855.

Nickles, Mrs. Adolph, St. James.

Page, Robert, Crocker, Realtor.

Peters, John, lawyer, Linn, No.

Petty, W.M., Dixon, lifelong res.

Prater, Napoleon, near Humphrey's, born 1853, lifelong

res.

Price, J.C., Blund, Merchant and fommer postmaster at
Woollam.
Pruitt, Jas. R., Owner of Flanders Cave, age 4o, life-
long res.
Remori, Hector, Rosati, res. of the c¢co. since 1898,
merchant.

Reed, G.M., Waynesville, Attorney, lifelong res.

Ridenhour, R.H., merchant, Belle, MNo.

Robertson, Sem, Koenig.

Robyu, L.E., Hermann, bormn 1860, lifelong res.

Rush, John, Eugemne, Cole Co., until recently, a lifelong

res. of Miller Co., uge 8&2.

Scheel, O0,.F., Blana.

Scheppers, Heury, Castle Roek.

Schmudde, A.A., Danker, Chamois, Mo., born 1lBBd.

Schultz, Gerald, Iberia., professor of History in Iberia
Academy, lifelong res. and author of the co.
history.

Schwartz, Jacob, Holla.

Shelton, Mrs. Bdward, Tea.

Smith, West, Rolla.

Stark, John, Tuscuubis, lifeélong res., farmer, age 50.

Stocking, Rev. 8.P., Rolla, Catholic priest.

Strehlman, W.F., Bland, lifelong res. of the co.

Studenbrocker, August, Owensville.

Tellmen, ¥rs. H.H., former postmistress, lifelong res.
Maries Home.

Terrill, Jno., Attorney, Belle, Mo., born 1866, life-
long res.

Terrill, R.E., City Clerk, Belle, Mo,

Wald'@kﬁr, H.Fo, Bﬂy.

Walker, Tom, Byron, born 1862, lifelong res.

Weeks, E.P., farmer near Eldon, member of a pioneer

family.
#wWoods, Col. Charles L., Rolla, Editor.
#ornell, C.C., farmer, near Brumley, age Dl,lifelong res.
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Wright, James, farmer near Tuscumbia, age 5O, lifelong

res.

Wright, ¥rs. G.L., Tuscumbis, age 80, lifelong res.
Wright, Otis W., nesr Tuseumbia, former co. assessor

and lifelong res., age 50.

Young, Thomas A., Rolla., born 1867, lifelong res.
Zevely, E.¥., Linn, Mo., Newspaper editor and lifelong

res. of the co., age 70.

II. DOCUMENTARY (The items in the respective subdivisions

A.

B.

have been arranged in chronological order
of publicationmn).
Early travels

Scehooleraft, Henry H., Scemes and Adventures in the

% gerk Mounteins, Philadelpblia;
ppincott, Grambo, and Co., 1855

The expeditions of Zebulon Montgome Pike, ed.
T11Tott Coues, New ?b?i Franecis P.
Harper, 1895, 8 vols. An important re
fereuce for this section of counties.
Conteins a useful map for ola fomms.

The Jesuit Relations snd lied Documents, Travels

ana Laplorations of Lhe Jesuit Mission-
@iries im New Frauce, lo9o~1vul, Vol.
LAV, "lower Cunsda, Mississippli Valley,

(1396-1708} 1900; Reuben Cola Thwuites,
8d., Cleveland; The Burrows EBrothers
Co., 75 vols.

Original journsls of the Lewis and Cl expeaition
‘L‘T"‘aw- oS, 'aéxL'. Reuben a Th'!w]ainn‘ill', =’
N.Y.; Doda. Mead & Co., 1904, & vols.
Thwaites, Keuben GCola, ed., Early Western Travels,

%748»1846, Cleveland; Tne Arthur
lark Co., 1905, é2 vols.

Session Laws

Acts of the First Gen Assenbly of the State o
S8OUrL , S% uls; Isasc N, Heary of
’o..
Laws of the State of Mi;souri Passed at the First
ssion of the Jeventh General Assemb
Jefferson City; 1802 (Title page gone
Laws of the Stete of Missouri Passed at the First
ssion oZ the Lleventn General
esem Jefferson Clty; Printed by
alvin Guan, 1841.
Laws of the State of Nissourli Passed at the First
“Bession of Lhe ﬂlnth General Assem
, 5t. louls; printed Dy Ts
and Knapp, 1841




xiii.

laws of tn- State of Missouri s:od at the First

Session of the teen anra Anuonb
Jefferson cI" §mnca Tusk ??Intor,

1855.
laws of the State of Missouri ssed 5% the Adjourn
ed Session of the Nin noE%anE ne rul

Assembly, Jeiferson City; C.J. Gorwin, public
prinfcr, 1857.

C. Postal Guides

Table of the post offices in the United States,
arranged by states and counties, as they
were Qctober 1, 1880..., Washington;
printed by Duff Creen, 1l8ol

U.8. Postal Guides, 1930, 'o4, '069, 'ue, 'o0, '29,
'288, '87, '26, '25, '24, '22, 'zl, '18, '1Y,
'10, '04, '0Ug, '0l, 'OU, luee, '97, '96,
'95, '95, '9r, '91, '90, '89, 'e8, '87, ‘86,
'76, '70.

SECONDARY SOURCES
I. Histories
A. Cenerzl histories of Missouri
Davis, Walter Bickford, and Durrie, Daniel 3.,

llustrated History of Missouri, St. Louls;
A.9. Hall & Co., 1876, Contelns & chapter on

counties.
Conard, Moward Iouis, Encyeclo dia of the History
Missouri, N.Y., 8V , ©6C.;

Eaufiorn History Co., 1901. 6 vols.
Very helpful
Williems, Walter, The State of Missouri: for the
ﬂinsourl EEmnIssIon to the louislana

on, 19
Houck Lou!s A. story o uiaaouri Chicago;
' Donmelly éna"”“"'zf % vols. ’

B. County and local histories
History of Franklin, Jefferson, wn-higetoa, G?g!y

ford, and Gesconade counties, Missour
Chicago; The Gooaspeed FEFIIuhIng Eo.,lBBB

History of Isclede, Camden, Dallas, Wobntér. Wright,
eB,

exas, ol 8, ount
iIunourg, %hiea&o The '"Ebpoon Publish-
Ins Co., 1889,

History of Cole oniteau, ko Benton, Miller
s -y s * I_____:

IOI, & I QUITLES , S850Url ,

Chicego; Tne aa""?“?ﬁ?l;g§;;£;53..1889



xiv.

reminiscent his or tne Ozark on, Chicago;
4 spee 8., lbve. Contalns aformation
on the Cullen family of Pulaski Co.

Historical, Pictorial snd Biographical Recorﬁp&;
haeriton County, Kissour i alisoury,; ctor-
al ana Blographica shing Co., 1l896.

Contuins a chapter on the governors of Mo.
The Qzark Hegion, Its Histo and ;gﬁ g!gg%o
pii ngft oid, ¥o.; Interstate Histor c&l
Soelievy, 1917. J53pp.

Sehultz, Gerald, A History of ller Count Jefferson
¢ity; Midlend Prizting %$3;‘Ie vty

C. Church histories and records

Vinutes of the Missouri Baptist General Associstion,
Kansas ty:

D. Newspaper articles

Jefferson City Peoples Tribune, Jefferson City, Mo.
Jefferson City EZIE Tribune, Jefferson City, Mo.
Jefferson City In uirtr, Jeiferson City, Mo.
Springfield Re 5§I¢an, Springfield, Vo.

Bland Courier, %IEEE, ¥o.

(Dates and page numbers are given in the Dictionary)
II. Ceographical References

A, Directories and gazettieers

Brown, Samuel R., The western gagetieer or emigraut's

directory, AUDUTn, N.Y.; 1817.
Beck, Lewls C., A gaszetteer of the states of Illiuocis
d Missouri, AlDany; 1B&v.
Mitchnell, S.A., Mitchell's traveller's guide tarough
he United Siates, ?&II&EZIBEIE? Thomas,
owperthwuit & Co., cop. 1lbJb. -

Ceclvon, J.H., The western %oug;at or gﬁgggant'a
: 1&.’ Ncic‘ soﬁa Eo n, m. s8e -i map
Wetmore, phonso, Gaznftoor of the State o

Missouri, St. Iouis; C. Keemle, 7
Massey, S.%,, Jumes's trnve%or’l oougaui*n.
- k . * m.'

Cincinnatl; J. .
Hayward, John, A gazetteer o U.3. of imerica,
H&rtfnr&. Conn.; Case, any & 5%., .

Fisher, Richard S., Colton's traveler and tourist's
uide book gg§g§§§'%s: western states, N.Y.;
.B. Co n,
The ¥issouri State Cazetteer and Business Directory
. uls; Sutherlsnd & MCEVOY, pubs. an ’
compilers, 16860. Some use.

Parker, Nathan H., The Missouri hand-book, St.louis;
b,V.Pinckard, 1865. Contelns a useful map
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Nicely, Wilson, The Great Southwest or Plain
Guide foT Emigrants and Capitelists, 4,
iéﬂ"pp. 8%, louis; R.P. Studley ana Co.,

6

Goodwin, J. West, Paeific Hallway business de ana
azetieer 8Souri ena Kansas for ?%q"
__E, Bt. Louls, Mo.; J. West Gooawin, 1867.

Cempbell, R.A., Gazetteer of Missouri, St. lLouis;
R.A. Campbell, pub. , 1874, Contains a

Laseurt Tamigration Seetosy, Eandioeeh oF Wi i

Missou mmigration Society, Hand- of Missouri,
St. Iouis; Times Printing House, .

Veughan, C.F., Osage County Directory and Statisti-
e¢al Compendlum, Linn, Mo.; ﬁ 5.

MeCanse, Keith, %he book of the Ozarks. Fourth
annual edition. Where to go in the Ozarks.
"} thousand znd one placeés to go". St.

louls; Kieth WeCanse, 1941.
Maps and Atlases
¥issouri Ceological Survey, MNap of the Lead Region
{78 Regon

of Centrsl Wissouri, JetTerson City;
and Earter, ofle

keek, T.B., Geoclogicel kup of Killer Couat:
" 'wissourl &I@' cel Reports, 1870 !

Cempbell, R.A., Campbell's new atlas Missouri
with d;smfﬂu h%s—iur c .2§c en .
3

Nata S,
anda VntaEIm s SL. uls; R.A. Eupﬁll.

1875,
U.5. Geological Survey, Missouri Kap, Yersai :
ls_lynt. le86, (shows w. part of A er Co.).
U.8, Geological Survey, Missouri iap %’u&mh&g
Sheet, 1866. (§novu 8.0, par‘;. ) ler Co)

U.3. Geologlicel Survey, Chamo g-g Sheet, 1887.
(shows parts of Usage Co. and Gasconade Co)
Rand MeNally Imperial Atlas of the World, Chicago;
. .- ?ani Mgﬂally and Co., 1901 ( ) o
eSe ologieal Survey, To raphy bis ¥o.),1904.
(shows n.e. part of uilgor 53?)
Cramm's Stendard Americen Atlas, Indianapolis;
George ¥, Cramm Compsay, 1804.

Stendard Atles er Count uri,Chiecago;

Standerd Atla s of Osage County, Wissouri, Chicago;
N T e T iy B '

Standard Atles of Gesconade County, Missouri
¥ ey R R Lt W

Stendard Atlas © l;%;or County, Missouri, Chicago;
G.A. GgI% O., IFI% : : !

Missouri Bureau of Ceology and Mines, Geological
Map of Missouri, 1922 ' -
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Cramm's Modern References World Atles,
Indianapolis; Ceorge ¥, Cramm Company,l9i4.
Map of niasouri, National Mep Co., Inaienapolis;
v24.
New World loose lLeaf Atlas, New York; C.S.
ammona & EOQpany, 1929
Qfficial Survey _Tg of misaouri. National Mep
Company, dlanapolis; 1930.
Rend MeNally Commercial Atlas, 66th ed., Chicago;
Rend MeNally and Co., 1936
A collection of early maps, l822ff. on file at the
Missouri Historicel Library, University of
Missouri, Columbia, Missouri.

11I. General References
A. Dictionaries and encyclopedias

Iittre, Emile, Dictionnaire de la ;%%5%2 rruneais,
Paris, ete,; Hachette & cie., vo
Bartlett, John Russell, Dictionary of Anoricaaians,

4th od., Boston; LittIe Eﬁaan and Co.,
Wnitney, William Dwight, The Cent Dictionary and
Enazglosoﬁla.l‘ vols., New %o%k he entury
Quy 1
Farmer, John S., Americanisms, O a gh_ New, Iondon;
: Tno?ao Poulter anu Scnaii o 1 x R
#right, Joseph, ed., The sh Dialect Dictiona .
6 vols., New Yor%?"ﬂ.%. Fﬁ%nan s Sona.I§93~I§§5
Clapin, 3ylva, !ou ctio c cuni
1New York; ET? e a: a?a CO., ke
Hastings, James, ed., Dictionary of tne ble,
New York; Chnas. S% baer's cons, 1900, © vols.
Thornton, Richard H., An American Glossary, & vols.,
Philadelphia; J.B., Lippilncott Co., ig.
Catholic Encyelopedia, New York; The Encyclopedia
ess, ¥no., 1915, 116 vols.i ‘
Tucker, Gilbert M., American H; sh, <45 pp., New
York; Alfred A. nopi, 19z
American Speech, 10 vols., Baltimore; The Williams
WfIﬁIna Co., 1985¢f.
Ene clo dia §r1tannica, l4th ed., 24 vols., New

eyc a Britannica, Tnec., 1929
obsto 's New Iuternational Dictiona of the
%ﬁgzlsh age, opringfield, Mass.; G & C.
erriam o., (second ed. 1935)

Dialoot Notes, 6 vols., vol. I J.B, Cushing & Co.,
Norwood, Mass.; Vols. 2«8 Cuttle, Morehouse
and 'raylor Co., New Maven, comu. 189011,
New Standard Metiona of tha lish language,
“Wew Vork; vunk anﬁ Wegnalls Co., 1
#Wyld, H.C.XK., The Universal Dictiocnary of English
Language, 1431 pp.,New York; E.P.Dutton an
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Co., 1933.

A New ?1&:!: Dietionary on Historical Principles
ed., James A H, rray, Heary Bradley, W.A.

‘ Craigie, and C.T. Onions, 12 vols. (with a
supplement), Oxford, 1953.

Horwill, Herbert William, 4 Qiet%ona? of Modera
Imericem Usage, 560 Pp., ord; The
Clarendon Press, 1.935 ' ”

Mencken, H.L., The imericen Language, 769, xix pp.
New York; Llfred A, ‘Knop%, Igoa

Dictionary of imerican Biegaﬁhx. edited by
by %uma Yulone unaer the auspices of the
Americuan Council of learnea Societies.
:{xsgolx., New York; Charles Seribner's Sons,

9,

Hamsay, R.L., and Embexson, ¥.G., Mark §m\;n

?xioon (University of kéiasm%rf Jvudlies,
Ol 11, H‘Qol)' 1908. Cﬂlmniﬂ' ¥o.

B. Miscellaneous

Stevenson, Robert louis, "icross the Tlaiss” in

ne Aimateur Emigraat, in the Works of Robert
uis Steveanson, South Seas Edaitiom, Vol. IV,
New York; Charles Scribner's Sous, 1988

The Missouri Hisg_oiricu; Heview, l=8VU vols., The
State Historieal Soeiety of Missouri,
Columbie, ¥o., 1906ff.

Hodge, Frederick Webb, Ea., Handbook of imerican
Indisns Norsh of )&axicg'._m%iian Instit-
ution, Buresu of American Ethnology,
Bulletin U, Washington, 1905, £ vols,
Goolo%eal Survey of the State of Missouri,

- ) Jefferson City; Regan &nd
Carpenter, 1873. Contains a chapter on
Miller Co. &nd others by Veek

Ball, Sidney H., and Smith, A.F., The , of
¥iller County, Jeffersomn City; Tribune
Printing Co., 1903

Sauer, Carl 0., The Ceograephy of the Ozark
Highlends of ___kﬂiuourf, Chicago, 'gni versity
o% Chicago Press, 19&0.

IV. Previous Place~Name Studies

A. General '
Cannett, Henry, "Tne Origin of Certain Place-Names
in the United States", U.S. Geologieal
:“hu'v% , Bulletin 258, 358 pp. Goverament
rinting Office, Washington, D.C., 1909
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Feipel, Iouls N, "Americam Place-Names”, Americen
Nawer, A. and St‘ntcn, F.N., Introduction to the
Survg¥ of English Place-Nemes, viili, 189 pp.,
ambridge; University Press, 1925
MeKnight, Ceorge H., English Words and Their

ggegground. X, PP« Iehap. 24, "Place~
tames™), New Vork; D, Appleton and Co., 1925
¥issouri

Faton, David W., "How Missouri counties. Towns,
and Streems were named"™, Mo. Hist. Rev.,
V. 10, No. 3f (1916) hey
Fead, Allen Walker, "Pleans for the Study of Missouri
Place~Names", Min;ouri Historical Review,
Collier, Bransfors. Place Hewes of Geseonad
o er, Bransford, a¢ce Names of Casconade
c:nnt , (a verm paper, in Names File, Mo.
Hist.
Taylor, R.J., a term paper on Fhelps County in
Nemes lile, Wo. Histi, 198 .
Pace, Nudine, Pluce-Nemes in the Centrel Counties
 of Missourl, Tneses, ii, Zol pp.,unlversity
of Missourli, 1926 (Saline, Howara, Boone,
Callaway, Cooper, ¥oniteau, Cole) "
Adams,Orvyl Guy, Place-Numes in the North Centr
gountiaa of ﬁIssourI. Theses, Vili, &40 PP+
niversity of Missouri, 1928. (Mercer,
Putnam, Schuyler, Crundy, Sullivan, Adsir,
Livingston, Linn, ¥Yacon, Carrcl, Cheriton)
Ewing, Marths Kennedy, Place-Names in the Northwest
Counties of Missouri, 177 pp., Tneses,
Unlversity of Missouri, 1929. (Atchison,
Nodaway, Worth, Harrison, Holt, indrew,
Geuntry, DeKelb, Davies, Buchzpen, Clinton,
Caldwell)
Myers, Robert L., Place-Names ih the Southwest
Counties of Wissourl, Theses, XV, PP.,
niversity of Wissouri, 1930. (Bartom,
Jasper, Newton, Cedar, Dade, lawrence, Folk,
Greene
Pell, Bargaret Xllen, Place-Nomes in the Southwest
Border Counties of Wissouri, 229 DPp., lheses,
University af"Eisnouéi, 1935. (“ebster,
Wright, Caristisn, Douglas, ¥MeDonald, Barry,
Stone, Taney, Ozark)
Johnson, Bernlee Rugenia, Place-Names in Six of
the West Central Counties of Missouri, vii,
317 DPp. Theses, Univerasiiy of Missouri, 1933.
(Bates, Cass, Henry, Johnsom, St. Clair,
Vernon
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Leech, Esther Gluays, Six bBust Central Counties of
Missouri, 209, Xix pp. Tnesis, University of
¥issouri, 193o. (Renaolph, Konroe, Kells, Pike,
Audrain, Montgomery)

Remsay, Robert L., Head, Allen W., Leech, Esther
Glaays, Introduction to a Survey of Missouri
Place-Names, (The University of Missouri
Studles, vol. IX, No.l) Jan., 1954, Columbia,
Mo. (econtains a practicallv complete biblio-~
graphy for the Study of Missouri place-nsmes)

Atchison, inne ®liza, Pluce~Names of Five West
Central Counties of Vissouri, XXi, Lo4pp.,
Thesis, University of Wissouri, 1937.
(Platte, Clay, Rav, Jackson, lafayette)

Elligtt, Xatherine, Place-Names oI S5ix Nortneast
Counties of Missouri, ‘hesis, University of
¥issouri, lycb. (Wariom, Shelby, Knox, Lewis,
Clark, Scotlend)

Haml4tt, Mayme l[ucile, Pluce-Hames of 8ix Southeast
Counties of Missourl, Thesls, Unlversity o
Missouri, 19-6. (lemiscot, Dunklin, New
Vadria, Scott, Mississippi, Stodderd)
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